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Board's Report for the year 2017-18

Your Board of Directors has great pleasure in
presenting the Ninety Sixth Annual Report with the
Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2018, the Profit
and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the
yearended March 31,2018

1. Business Performance

The Bank had a successful year in its 96th year of
operations and recorded satisfactory performance.
During the year under review, the total business
increased from 1 54,162.47 crore to [156,197.05 crore
registering a growth of 3.76%. The gross NPAs and net
NPAs both in absolute terms and as a percentage of
total advances marginally increased over the previous
year.

Performance Highlights:

= Operating profitincreased from 1 875.63 crore to [
1005.99 crore.
= Net profit decreased from [1 316.66 crore to [
221.92 crore (-29.92%).
= Deposits of the Bank increased from 1 32,190.15
crore to [ 32,428.33 crore (+0.74%) during the
year.
= Net Advances increased from 1 21,972.32 crore to
[123,768.72 crore (+8.18%) during the year.
Gross NPAs increased from 2.91% to 3.60%.
NetNPAs increased from 1.74% t0 2.16%.
Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) improved from

66.51%t072.71%
The total income decreased by [1 54.86 crore

during the year from [13,811.47 crore in the previous
yearto [13,756.61 crore during the year under review (-
1.44%).

udu

Interest income decreased from [13,380.96 crore to
[13,250.49 crore. Other income increased by [175.61
crore to [1506.12 crore during the current year. The
decrease in total expenditure was at [1185.10 crore. The
total expenditure decreased from [12,935.72 crore
during the previous year to [12,750.62 crore during the
current year. Earnings per share decreased from
122.22 to 1115.57, whereas the book value of the

BwsEmisefer Sinésensd 2017-18

o RI& 6T 6 Rl & ud et SwsGmT &L,
QHTesoTetMOM SHDTEUS!, EUBLMBHET OIfleH6emaIL|L 60T,
seotllsems — QFLwWLLLL  31-03-2018  Siedrm)

PREUEMLES 6UBLSSDETEOT (bl [Bemed &H60uTEHE
e [HEQL HE0UIHG LDOMILD LIGOTLIL|LDSS Sinfléems
SpBWeUDHemD 2 _RIGET (LpedT FLOMINILLSED QILBLDSLDES
SlemLBEDSI.

1. eukIBUN6OT eletUllE QFUILEMEDT :

B — eumBuler  96-6ugl  6UIHLLDITEDT
8eleunetor® SlemerHFH @ seomsefiayd  Eflw
QFIWIDBDEDIL 60T OFWIOLILLHMED [HLDG EURIBHS Qb
616UMMSILDTEIT SheTOTLTE SlemLDIbFI6Teng). &eileunsvor®
6UrRIBU 6T owngs euettllsld I 0 54,162.47
Gampuiedlppgl I 56.197.05 GCamouns 2 WIMHg
3.76% &56NBsD euenisdl &Hevor(BeTengl.  eurklBuieor
GDM5® &L6v6D QLDNSS LDOMID B&ET eUTTSHEL0TSH6IT
ONILD SiGetT §5MBHD HLHS eudBLHMS el §HED
2 _WIMhSI6Tengl.

QFWIEOLIMLLR60T FMLIL| SILDETRISET :

* esweoum®G &eomuib I 875.63 Gameuiedbhal
%1005.99 Gamouwins 2 _WINHSIETETS.

*Bey &eomub I 316.66 GampuidmhHal
3 221.92 Gamawins GeonhaleTengl (-29.92%)

*aumduier emeuuyBd I 32,190.15
Compuiedlpbad I 32428.33  Gsmowns
o _winpglemengl. (+0.74%)

* eurRld eupmIBW BET sLeTHEET I 21,972.32
Cameuiedlpipg I 23,768.72 Gsmowns
o_winpglenengl. (+8.18%)

*owngs eunssLeT 2.91% &56lissS0ldmhal
3.60% &&6NHLONG 2 _WINHSETENF.

* Bar euInssLe 1.74% §56156860ldbHaE 2.16%
FS6HSLDNG 2 _WIMHGIETeNS

*umrgisnly @5&es6G eNdsb  66.51%
e56l858H0mBHE  72.71% FSHEHHLDNG
2 _WINbGI6Tengl.

6URIBUI6IT GILDMES eUIHLDMENTLD X 54.86 G&p GemDHSI
BLIHS eUdHL eUBLDMeUTLDMET < 3,811.47  Gampuiedldphbal
33756.61 Gampuins Gemmbgl 2_6Tengl (-1.44%). euLlp
eugmeumil I 3380.96 Gameuiedlmhal % 3250.49
Camauwins  GemDHSIETENS. ST 6UIHLDTETD LI
Spevoiged 75.61 Game o wiihg  I506.12 Camewins
2 _WIMbgl 2 6Tengl. eURIBUNGT CIDMSHS 61FE0EYHET HLIHS
6uUpL  6FeeumesT X 2935.72  Gsmeuieddphal
8eeumpLd I 2750.62 Gamowns GeDDHSIETENSI.
66leeUTH URISHGLD FLpwl eomud I22.2260mhal
R15.57 & GODHSIETENS. SheDSHILITED LIRIGs6reor
Usss sy 226.23 lphd I 238.91 S
2 _UWIMBSI6Teng!.
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2. Profitand appropriation

The net profit stood at [1221.92 crore after making all
necessary provisions under various categories as per
the prudential norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of
India. During the current financial year 2017-18 2nd
interim dividend to the tune of ¥17.10 crore for the
financial year 2016-17 and dividend distribution tax
%3.48 crore were paid out of the profit and loss account
balance figure of ¥ 23.82 crore brought forward from the
year 2016-17.

[J225.16 crore, which has been appropriated as under:

There was an available balance of

2. 8eomuLpLd Q&IHSBSHETHLD :

8eieuneoor® ungs Medel  eumiSufer
EUEDTIWIEDMES S6tuThRIS CHEMEUITET  65IHSBEHEN6IT
uedGeum| Wrfleysefledr & OFILIS 6Ty 2 rRIG6T 6uEIH
3221.92 Gsmp Bsp eomubd FLlQU|ETeNS. BLUL BS
Ohevor 2017-186d &LHS 2016-17&M60T Syevormeugl
8ewLésMe0 LURSEG I 17.10 Gsmeujb wHmID &eomu
uRE® effGuns eufl I3.48 Gamoujldb 2016-17 &b
ShevorG &eonu OMID [BLL HEOOIHHET SIHLILTET
323.82 Campuielmba &TEHSULLLS.
SenLsasamPW SmLY 225.16 Game 2 _steng. &g
8CLp Qan@EasLILL(BaTeTLIR LBTLILLB6T6rg)..

Transferred to: %in crore FHHEBH6T : 3 Gempuied
Profit and Loss account opening balance 23.82 8oL HNID BLLE HUHEG OSTLES SHLI 23.82
Less: 2nd Interim Dividend for 2016-17 paid (31.20 per share) 17.10 () 2018 BewLéaTD FEUGASTENE 2016-17EHLD
Less: Tax on Interim Dividend @ 20.357647% 3.48 Spampssns arQssILLLE. (120 @O URSHE) 17.10
Available balance in Profit and Loss account 3.24 () 8mLsaw reygesTeawd Batar afl 20.357647% 3.48
Net profit 221.92 Seonu LHNID BLL BeesD Shossamipl bl 3.24
Available for appropriation 225.16 B eomuLd 221.92
Statutory Reserve 67.00 QEIEEEHEhsHTaT L 225.16
Special Reserve U/s 36(1)(viii) of IT Act, 1961 29.00 sLLILT6 Q5680 67.00
Investment Reserve 0.04 fnly 9p666 awnar afsseh 1961, Afey36(). (il & 29.00
Capital Reserve 6.50 WE6 QFEEG 0.04
Interim Dividend paid (1.20 per share) 17.10 APOSHET QFESB 6.50
Tax on Interim Dividend @ 20.357647% 3.48 BewLsamn Sl LREG AsNGHSE (5.2 QB LREHE) 17.10
Transfer to General Reserve 66.00 BwmLbame Sanu LmEE el 20.357647% 3.48
Balance carried over to next year 36.04 OUNgl REGELLNE LOIHDLILLLF. 66.00
Total 225.16 SIB6s SN BNIE OFDOILGD LBEH ognens 36.04
QLDESLD 225.16
3. Dividend 3. 8eomull LRISEH :

Considering the profit earned and the overall growth in
the business of your Bank during the year, your Board of
Directors was pleased to declare interim dividend of
12% and 20%, on February 7, 2018 and June 25, 2018
respectively. The total dividend for the year 2017-18
comes to 32%, i.e. [1 3.20 per equity share of (110
each) involving an outgo of [154.94 crore (including
dividend distribution tax) towards dividend to the
shareholders.

2 MIG6T SWESHITHET 2 _BIGH6T 6UnIE ML |6T6T
&eoruLd HMILD QLG 6GILDNSHS eueTTEFUIEDETS B([HEHSH6D
e@mesor® 2018 1ugeurl 7 Sledim) 12% &eig Wb, 2018
&1 25 Sledim| 20% FBHEIGPLD SewLEBTD SeOLL)
uRdLTe Snfelluds EPFALDLEDTTSET. 2017-
18&HLD  ShevITRDETENT 6IDNSHH Seomull UREG 32%
go6lipld Sgmeug I 3.20 @0 URSHG Seonull

URIBLTE  eUDRIBLILLBeTengl. &seTepedld  Sh@LD
eFeeuTeiE 54.94 (Beomul umEG eufl o 1)
Gameuwin@Ld.




96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

N

Be a step ahead of life

4. Capital andreserves
The Bank's issued and paid up capital was

142 .51crore as on March 31, 2018.

During the Financial Year 2017-18, there was no
change in the capital structure of the bank. The capital
plus reserves of the Bank has moved up from ¥3224.04
crore to ¥ 3404.79 crore on account of balance
transferred of profits from P/L Account after distribution
of dividend during the current financial year.

Sec 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 provides
for deduction in respect of any Special Reserve created
and maintained to the extent of 20% of the profit derived
from the business of providing long term finance for
industrial or agricultural development or development of
infrastructure facility or housing in India. Accordingly,
the Bank has created a Special Reserve of [129.00
crore during the year to avail of the tax benefit under the
Sec 36(1)(viii) of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

5.Issue of Equity shares
During the year under review there was no issue of

capital.

6. Capital adequacy

The accretion to capital funds during the year
amounted to 11180.75 crore which raised the net worth
of the Bank to [ 3,404.79 crore. The Capital to Risk
Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) stood at 14.83% (as per
Basel Ill) as on March 31, 2018, which is more than the
minimum required level of 9% stipulated by Reserve
Bank of India. The CRAR consisted predominantly of
Common Equity Tier | (CET 1) which constituted
14.31% of CRAR.

7.Deposits

The aggregate Deposits of the Bank as on
31.03.2018 stands at [132,428.33 Crores, registering a
growth of 0.74% over the level of [132,190.15 Crores as
on 31.03.2017. The interest rates for deposits were kept
aligned with the prevailing trends in the Banking
Industry.

4. (LPEDSEVILD LDHMILD FHIBSBESE

2018 &b Shevor(B LOME 31Gp0 CaBwiedrm)
eurRIBuNed LDHMILD
cpeogeuTLD I142.51 @& epUMLITE SdbhHSHSI.

2017-18 &hD  ShevoTEed  GURIBUNGDT  ELPEDSHE0T
SlemLDLIL6d eTHSHE6UTH LDAHDWPLD &6ebemed.  HLLIL
BSwinevoriged Seomul URIEE eupRBW D& Seoru
seouTHBD  BmHEH  SeomuHHenerT  LDMMHMLD
QFlLISHed euRIBUIEDT ELPEDSEUTD LDOMILD  &HLIseT
33224.04 Gamguied &mHa I3404.79 Camowins
2 _WIMbSI6Tengl.

GULDMRISLILIL L QFQSHSLILILL

BLLE

eugpLomeor eufle gULib 1961 Ofley 36(@) (Viii)edr

ug  esmle, SlfeNmsS,
sLLemLIY 6uFd LOMID 6iF SLLEOLULSERSS

efleugmul SliliLienL
QEN®Hs HeoorL &M sLer LOgner SeonusHed 20
g86isd APy Q@HSELNG QFELIWILLGETETS. SIH6TLIR
29 Gsmgp
eugpomeor euflg FuLb 1961 9fley 36(@) (viii)edr L
Aol &I6EG OFLIWILLB6TETS.

6udpLDMenT  eurflFsalemses  EILMIEUSDHETH

5. FLDUMIE CLPOSHE0ILD 1&TBHHED :
8b5 ShetoI® Splley (Wpigedled  6THHEUMH
UMI@&&ehLD eeuefluiLLiuLeiebemed

6. CLPEL&HEUT H60T60N6MME) :

eurIBuledT cpeoseT B Slemey I 180.75 Gamg
Sifefssdeommed eumiBuiledr Bey Sy I 3404.79
Gampwins BASEL
CLPEOSOTHENGSLD SLIT FNIHS C1FNSHSIHSHEHLONET NiBsHLD
31.03.2018 &leim 14.83% &gl
GUMRIBUN6DTTED eUEMIIMISSLILILBET6

o _WIMHGIeTeng. [11-eoTL11p
ungs  Mgmey
SEODHSLILE
Slemaunest 9% il SIFHNGLD. LPOSOTHEDGLD LT
&S
oies® 1 (CETI) wer dpsnerons SmHes. S
POSHHENGSLD BLIT  &FMibHS  OFTHHIHEHEHGLDTE0T
g56l55PD 14.31% FH6IGHLLNG 2_6T6Ngl.

QENSHSHIHEHHGSLDTEOT  ELIMSHIEUTEOT  FLOLIMBIS

7. emeulll B8 evenm&s :
euRSulerT emeulLBd sLbHH Shevor(® 2017 LDANE
31 Gsd Peweowmenr I 32,190.15
Gameuiedlphg 2018 mis Mg 31-b  Csd
332,428.83 QGamowns 2 wiihg 0.74% &HeNHLD
eUeMTEFIIemLIBGI6ToNE. 6meuUlil| BHHES 6ULPRISLILIBLD
eflesLb BeoeyLb
NB558M& Barmer SlenelGeoGL eneussLILLIRIHHSS.

LDM&LD

euLIR GURIBHSHIemMUNed euLIR

R O -
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8. Advances portfolio management of assets and

8. eukIfHuiedr HL6OT QILDIRIGHED Hli6mm :

development of business

The Bank continued its lending activities in
conformity with the policies and guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India. The Gross Advances of your Bank has
increased from 322,262.49 crore as on 31.03.2017, to
324133.29 Crore as on 31.03.2018.
growth was mainly attributable to the growth in retail

The increase in

advances and MSME advances.

The Bank continued its thrust on lending to priority
sectors including Agriculture and Micro and Small
Enterprises comprising both manufacturing and service
enterprises. The level of advances to priority sectors
stood at [114651.54 crore as on March 31, 2018, which
constituted 65.38% from the level of 58.87% achieved
as on previous year as against the regulatory minimum
requirement of 40%.

Agricultural Advances reached 15153.40 crore as
on March 31, 2018, which constituted 23% of quarterly
average ANBC (without including the RIDF advances
and other qualifying investments for priority Agri.
Advances) as against the regulatory minimum
requirement of 18%.

Total advances to the weaker sections stood at
[13798.89 crore as on March 31, 2018, which
represented 16.95 % of the quarterly average Adjusted
Net Bank Credit, as against the regulatory minimum
requirement of 10%.

Your bank also achieved the stipulated mandatory
targets for the sub-sectors like Loans to Small and
Marginal Farmers and Advances to Micro Enterprises
with comfortable margin.

Under export credit your bank achieved a level of °
601.04 Crore as on 31.03.2018 showing a growth of
24.52% over the level of I482.68 crore achieved as on
March 31,2017.

During the current year, your bank will strive further
toincrease the flow of credit to Agriculture, Retail Sector,
Weaker Sections and the MSME sector.

ungs  Memel  eurRIBUNDT  EUEMTUIEDMEEHEHE
2 'U(B [BLDE 6URE &HL60T EULDHIGEUHED OSMLITHS
FOULG 6udmSmgl. eumiBuied SleMsaLULULL  CLDNSSHE
BLET GHMem&IINeoTdl 2017 s 31 Sleorm)
322,262.49 Gamguied &wmmha sHM SiFsfsg 2018
g 31 Sledtm I 24.,133.29 Gompuwings SEHeSI.
devevemm  efbuemest  LOMID  AMGMI.  HESST.
euevUfi&mIseMeor euenedl (peHSWILDNS NBsSg6Teng.

euRSWNerg &ml. BGSST asMbled, efleusmud
shuBsLULLL 2 pusd GCsemen BMICUEITRIGEHSHEGLD
wonib  pereniflemn  giemm  UflefermeELd  &L60T
QUPEIGUSAILD OFs  (PpsBWSFHEID  sTBSHS
eupdBeTng. 2018 s 31D Gsd  HeoeupLiLig
Wperen)flemd  HEMMBEBHES  QIPRIGLLLL  CLDTHS
sL60TH6T X 14,651.54 Gamy. sLHS Shevirieed &emDHS
urs Caemeuwlner 40% 6L SIHHLONGLD SLHS UL
58.57% &56igsPe0\mhs 65.38% &&eisLONsa|LD
2 _WINbGI6Tengl.

2018 s 31b GCed HeoeugLile efeusmuis
sLeT&EET I 5153.40 Gsmaun@ld. &LHS Shevor®
B&rssLeofled 85 23% o dieng. g
UEDIIWNIGHELILILL.  GemDBSHLLE Slemeurnest 18% eflL
Oifsioneotgl.  (Weoteniflemip  eleusml &L eoTEH6MTenT
SpIT.E3.10.6TL1. HLEOTHET LDOMID OO S&S (PHOBEHET
&6060ITLDED)

2018 eugpL s 31b Gsd  [BeoeunLiLig
medleuemLbs  LNfleflerhe@ EULDMRIGBLILILL — SL6OT&H6T
33798.89 Gampwin@ld. &g Bsy sLevfled 10% eT6dim
GEODHSLILE Sleremeuail 2_WiMbgl 16.95% 2_6Teng.

2 _MRIGET 6GURIBWITETSH HEWeUOsH  Slewmaeried
BreooruissiurL SesGseneT  SleWLHBIHHEDSI.
Sigeyb &m WOHMID &M eMeusmul &LeOTHET [I600T
BMI6EDTRIGEHSHEHTE0T  HLE0THEMED  GILIHLDLITEOT6mLDIL|L 60T
605G HEMET SEDLIHSIETENSI.

2018 e 31b Gz Beoeugliup  goMILDS
sLemiflefed o mser eumd I 601.04 G
SlemLbgleTeng. &g &LHS Shevor® 2017-60 482.68
Gamgemw el 24.52% &6l eueniEfuleneot
SMBSDGI.

BLUL B SLevoTiged 2 RGNS QUmid efleusmuild,
dlebevemy  euetvfigld, HedleuemLbs Lifleevn  LDOMILD
dmI. &NIBOSTLIODHEBHE  GUPHIGLLIEBLD  SHL60THEM6IT
Slfsl LBSSW6TeNgI.

2 MIG6T 6URIE OIFFTHIESHOT  SLLEIS6MED
BEOHG 6C\BMETOTI(B  (LPEWEDTLILL 60T  SHE0TEH  LIkiserLiemL
UpRIGSEDG. Upsner wmpSM wpwesr Guimegeorm HLLLd
aumISUetT OBMLSED (pemenTGoumT S LgHeor SLD

n o .
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Your bank actively participated in all the initiatives
and schemes of Government including Pradhan Mantri
Mudra Yojna(PMMY) with a specific loan scheme in the
name of TMB Micro Entrepreneurs Scheme. Crop
loans / KCC are covered under Pradhan Mandri Fasal
Bhima Yojana (PMFBY). Government Schemes with
NABARD administered subsidy, like Dairy
Entrepreneurship Development Scheme (DEDS), Agri-
clinic and Agri-Business Centre Scheme (ACABC),
Solar Water Pumping system Scheme,
Entrepreneurship Development & Employment
Generation Scheme (EDEGS) etc, are implemented by
your Bank.

During the year your bank has adopted two villages
viz., Kottampuli and Kannirajapuram in Thoothukudi
District as Digital Villages for financial transactions.
Further to provide finance at the time of need without
going through normal processing by the MSMEs, your
bank has lodged MSME Privilege Gold Card and
Exporters Privilege Card.

Under the Financial Inclusion (FI) programme the
number of villages allotted to the Bank has increased to
127. Under FI, a total of 583196 Basic Savings Bank
accounts have been opened by our branches of which
59,260 have been opened under SBFIN and 91809
accounts are opened under SBJDY. As part of its
endeavor to improve credit linkage in Fl villages, your
bank has introduced overdraft facility to SBJDY
accounts under Financial Inclusion Programme. AEPS
On Us transactions through Hand Held Machines was
made operational.

9. Investments and treasury operations

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the Bank
made a total turnover of 132,043.53 crore in trading
operations, resulting in a net profit of (138.72 crore, as
against [197.70 crore in the previous year. Sale of
securities from 'Held to Maturity' category to the tune of
[1545.00 crore was made during the year resulting in a
profitof [114.21 crore (previous year [141.97 crore).

The net investments of the Bank stood at
[110,363.62 crore as on March 31, 2018, as against
[111,504.48 crore as at the end of the previous year. The
Investment-to-Deposit Ratio of the Bank was 31.81%,
as against 35.74% atthe end of the previous year.

The average realized yield on the investment
portfolio during the year decreased to 7.50%, as against
7.77% in the previous year, due to redemption of high
coupon securities and reinvestments at current yield.
The income earned during the year from investments,
comprising interest income and dividend income
excluding income from RIDF was [1883.51 crore as
against [1798.74 crore in the previous year.

esmLmisLLCLE. NABARD Brieuns  LomesfluiggiLeor
OIpsMMhIGES SLLMIGEMTET  LIMEDLIGTOTEm600  6\HMLHled
Guwum-@s SrLb, Geuermevor HMID Geusmmevor
aueolis emDWSSLLLD, Siflw Bis@Lpmil Wpenn SLLLD,
asmbled pwundl Sillelgpsd woHMILD Geuemed eUMLILILS
GumedT m e M 6w M 6 Bl &
HEDL(LPEDDLILBSBIL|ETENS].

BLLL  SheOITIgRd 2 _MIGET 6URIS  HTHHIHGSIL
LDMEUL L HP6D, SnlLMbL6eMl LDDHMILD SHe0TedfiTmegLILD Shewl
8yevor® uflomHmieusHameor
QSMYleOmILL  Symbons  gnalurGereng. ml,  &m)
ONID HESST 6UTTiBSB60T  cpeod  EuledLimeot
FweNTHEESemS GLom esmeTenmbed GHemeuuieor Gug

SLLLb o Ml & 6iT

SUnmIGsT  [BHL

B8 eIpRGUsSHE 2 mseT eumd HAouyflend SHmis

OHMID  gohmiSwiment
SILemLUIem60TE OB TE0oT(BETENS).

SlemeaTeUBEGLD 6URE Cremen BULHPHeor ELp

127 &5

Gsemeu

Sl emL Ly rflenLp

DG QURISHS QSISSLLLL  SINLDRIS6T
2 _WINhGIeTenEl.  SleMETTUIHHESLD  6UmIS
BriLgden &p 59,260 SBFIN sevoré&@send LDHMILD
91809 SBJDY sems@sepbbd 6NssLD 583196
EETH
Bemenserfled LIMDASSILLG 6UBBDE. SleMEOTEUHSHELD
ams Ggemey HULHHeoT S [BLDF EURIBWITETSI
Spmomigefied Geblly HeooT&ESNG HLEOT  GULPMRIGLD
ausHemwl SM(PELILGSSIWeTeNSl. ShSHTT SemevorLiL|L 60T
LI6OOTLD QIFQISSILD (LPemD &L SHS SWHHTHHE0T CLpeOLD
BLEUIREEMS E1FWOLBSHSLILILL .

SlipliLenL HOUTHGHHEBLD  6IMRIGET  6URIS

9. (LPHEOBEET LDHMILD HIHEUED HLEURGEDHSHET :
31.03.2018 SidTM  (PREUEHLU|LD  Sh6ToTIEED

uRBWINeTg SIJFMmIs  &LedT

Ah&LD eueooliasPed eb.32,043.53 Game eNwmumgLd

USSITRIGET  6UMTRIS

QFILIGIETENE. SeleUetuiEsHHe0T eLPeOLD FFLIQUI GUJHEUMIL
€5.38.72 Gameun@ld (pHemsWl 6UdHLLD ¢H.97.70
ey
UGB HEHS Fnlol P&EOHEMEBHS ch.14.21 o
Seomud  FLIQUETENE.  (PHEDSW  ShevoT(B  EedrmLLD
ep.41.91 Gamig)
eumiBufeor  Ber

Gamowin@ld) &eleuHLLD &MEOLD  6UEDT

WsdBaEeT  31.03.20186d
¢5.10,.363.62 Gamuines S@EHed (PHewsW 6udbLLD
835 5.1,504.48 Gasmewn@ld)  eumiBuler
WeOGBaHERHGLD el BHeEGLD 2 6en eldsb 31.81
goHEIHLNS 2 diengl. (PHeosW eudLLD 35.74%
F5615LD)
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The average realized yield on the investment
portfolio during the year decreased to 7.50%, as against
7.77% in the previous year, due to redemption of high
coupon securities and reinvestments at current yield.
The income earned during the year from investments,
comprising interest income and dividend income
excluding income from RIDF was 1883.51 crore as
against [1798.74 crore in the previous year.

10. Foreign Exchange Business

The total merchant turnover of our bank for the year
2017-18 was [126,923.36 crore against [128,411.85
crore during the previous year 2016-17.The profit on
foreign exchange business for the year 2017-18 was
[117.65 crores against 120.23 Crores during the
previous year 2016-17. This is due to the decrease in
import turnover for the importers of branches in view of
dull market conditions for the commodities viz., Pulses,
timber and Edible Oil imported by them and
discontinuation of Buyers Credit / Short Term Trade

Credit (STTC).
Our Bank has arrangement with a global network of

654 overseas Banks by exchange of bilateral key under
SWIFT (Society for Worldwide Interbank Financial
Telecommunication). It facilitates smooth and fast flow
of communication in the international business. The
SWIFT arrangement has enabled the Bank to give
timely and efficient service to its foreign exchange
customers. Our Bank has tie-up arrangements with

GCC Exchange Centre, Dubai and Times of Money.
The total number of 'B' category branches that dealt

in foreign exchange business was 39 (New addition of
Panruti & Ernakulam Branches). Our Bank has the
necessary infrastructure to render speedy service
relating to inward remittance and for crediting the
beneficiary's accounts on receipt of the foreign currency

funds in our Nostro accounts abroad.
Our International Banking Division, Chennai

provides information on Foreign Exchange market and
market rates on the Bank's website to help the clients in
knowing up to date information on forex. Our Bank is
committed to increasing the Forex Business activities
significantly in adding good revenues to the bank in the
coming year. We have provided online Electronic
trading platform named as TMBFXBRIDGE for
concluding exchange rate to all our 39 Authorised
branches and direct view access to 33 of our forex
customers.

SeleUBLLD 6UBEUML  BT&&nlgl  LSSIRISET
WpBiTey eunmened WpeedBaeMer cpeld BemLss Frnal
GUIBLDMEOTLD  7.50% &56isns  (PHemsW  eUBLLD
7.77%) &ODHSIETONE. (PHOGEENNEHE BewLSHS
eIlly OMID URBLGS 6STen&HUTN6T  6UHLDTETLD
BLLILITEDOTIRED ¢h. 883.51 Gampuins 2_etengl. (LPrhemsLL
6UIBLLD ¢H.798.74 Gamp)

10. SihBWE Q56TeUst0ll EUETTAGHLD

2017-18  &pevoriged  eurmBuledr  SBBWIE
elFeomeNetofl  6ueTONBLD  ¢H.26,923.36  Gamuins
2 arengl. (pHeWSW 6UdHLLD 2016-17 ¢F. 28,411.85
Gamp) OBl asemeuetl euettlissHed LUl &eomuLd
Selleunevoriged  (2017-18) ¢5.17.65 Game  (WPHeOSIL
Spevotiged  (2016-17) ¢20.23 Gamewins SEHSHS
U@L,  bFD  OMIID  FeMLDUIED  ETE0oTEl600TIL
eN(pL&afedr  LDBFHLDMET  &HemS [Hewed&HET LDHMILD
UMMRIGGeuNTT &L/ SN &HMD 6UTEHSHS SL6e0TE6IM60T
8L BMiHHD GUNEtTmemeUSHET6T HTTEUOILDNG BBUIEF
elFe0M6U6T0N 6)U6TUNELD GHEMMBSHSI.

BLDG 6URIE 2 6% SleTefleonedr 6URIBHEHSHE
SemLGUILITeDT LITOTLDADM)| QSMemeDRSTLITL SlemLbLiLled
SmLUudevtned 2 _esHH0 2 6Tem 654  6URIBSHEHL 60T
QBNLITL Q&meTem (PREMS. &s6dT cpeod GeueflBILB
euettfiEsHed Hoeued LfibnhHDHIGeT Wes eflenreunsed
Sogansad BLUUSHG  gseuTdngl.eurmiduier
QAMRGEMBWNNTHEEEES dDHS Wpewmuled
Gremeuyflueyd 2 _seyBedTmgl. B eumid  ufbmbhm
emLWILD, SUMil WHMID emLLDev &pli evofl,. GCC
GurnermeudmiLeor  Yfbglevoriey  @LILIDHS MIS6T
QFIIGIETETS).

Beleunecoor® SHBWIE EFeOTeUeTOfl  EU6TTlIESHDE0
FGUBLD Hemenseledr eTevoTeoollGems 39 Shs 2_66ngl.
(UeDOTEBLLR  LDDMILD  6TT6TONMEGOMD  GURIBHET  LBHTE
GerasLLL(B6Teng]) [HLDG EURISIITETS  Q6ueBTL LD
8mhg SpHuneilng SeUUILGLD LetoisHens 6ukis
QleuEMBMLIREd EMEUSBIHEGSLD HETUTHHED OSHTENHEMIL
eupmis esmevor. 2 L Geor@Gul LweoTmafise &eooTeaSnE&
gflgione uflomoplb 6FLsHS  eumduler
2 sl LenLLY GUTHILDNETSHTE 2_6T6ng).

BLDG 6URIE OIBBWE 6FMeNeTIl  HH6UEDSH6T
LOMILD &hews [BeoeurmisensT  eurRBuNetT SemevoriL
senHHed CleuelliL(B EUIHEUE CUMRGEDEWITETTHEHEHE
OIpBIE  6lFeomeusooll  BEEUTRIGEWET 2 L 60)SHEL 60T
ONbg O&MeTUSDS 2 HeLing 2 6Tengl. [HLDG! 6URIS
SlpBWE eFemeUetoll euetTliEsHems NBSIfLILISHE0T eLpeOLD
amBuIT  apaNmW 2 WSHsHE® —2-mid
LL600T(BETENg). SlenetiHs 39 OmBsMaslILLL. Benenser
wHmib 33  SiBBWE  aFeoneuedl  euetls
CUMQSEMBILITENTHEBEE 6Femeustoll 6NBsHLD  SMbg
eameter  TMBFXBRIDGE ereorp  uwifled  &emevoriu
LSl6OTEUTETD)| EUTEHSHE SH6MLD EULPTRISW|ETEETTLD.
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11. Branch network

During the year 2017-18, the bank has opened 77
new outlets (4 new branches, 68 new ATMs and 5 e-
lobbies). With this expansion, the Bank's network has
increased to 509 branches, 1131 ATMs, 12 Regional
Offices and 23 e-lobbies, covering 13 States and 7
Union Territories.

12. PERSONNEL

The Bank's total staff strength was 4298 as on 31st
March 2018, consisting of 1603 Officers, 1999 Clerks
and 696 Supporting Staff. During the period, 1 Company
Secretary, 46 Clerks and 38 Supporting Staffs were
recruited. Totally, the Bank recruited 85 employees
during the year and 182 employees were promoted to
the next cadre in the normal promotion process and 60
employees were promoted to next cadre under (STEP)
Select, Train, Evaluate & Promote programme.

Per employee business increased from 3 12.47
Crore to¥ 13.15 Crore during the year under review.

The Bank's Staff Training College at Nagercoil and
Staff Training Center at Chennai conducted 131
programmes, imparting training to 3794 employees
duringthe year.

In addition to the in-house 131 programmes, 393
officers were deputed to other institutions like SIBSTC -
Bengaluru, NIBM - Pune, IDRBT Hyderabad, FEDAI
and other training intuitions for attending training
programmes. Two directors of our Bank attended the
program for Non-Executive Directors on the Boards of
Commercial Banks and Financial Institution conducted

by CAFRAL at Mumbaion 23.10.2017 and 24.10.2017.
Industrial relations in the Bank continued to be very

cordial during the year with frequentinteraction between
the management and the Officers' and Employees'
Associations and various staff welfare activities were
undertaken during the year. The Bank continues to lay
emphasis on developing the individual skills of its
employees and providing a healthy and cordial working
environment so as to get maximum contribution from the

employees of the Bank.
There were no employees who were in receipt of

remuneration above the limit prescribed under section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 requiring the Bank
to furnish a statement with particulars prescribed under
the Act. Since the bank is an unlisted company
disclosure of the details with regard to remuneration
paid to its employees as referred to in sub-section 12 of
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, is not
applicable toit.

1. Bewenser eifleunsaLd :

2017-18 eu(bLESED 77 LS emLDIIBIHEMEN GRS
Bompgletengl. (4 yBw Hemenser, 68 LS Smevfirmisd
LesoTLILILGeunL Swb@prhiser OnIb 5 &-eomisen).
8zt elemeneuns 13 LDMBHEOMISET LDOHMILD 7 ULeviuliedT
UpGoemiselied eumiBuien sLLembly 509 Hemenser,
131 smeoflwmid UevorlULBeunLn  Swibdrmiser, 12
LD6TOTL6D ~ SIQQI6UEDEMIGET LDOHMILD 23 Seonuilsenns
2 _wWngSLILLBETeng!.

12. beviigeuen GLobun BHgIemn :

20180 eugpLLD LDMTE 316D 6URIBUNEDT 6ILDTSHS
oem Sluirgerfler eTevoTevNGBEmS 4298 SHhGLD. BHed 1603
Sifsnmlaer, 1999 e(WsHTEET OMNID 696 Eps5Ie)
om SluITHEHD SILMIGeIT. &b eumLSSd 1 Bmieuet
QFWeomeNT, 46 eIWSHSTHeT OHMID 38 2 sed
e Slwirser  BubleslurGeTeneonT. &hS  6UIBLLD
QLMHsLD 85 2emplwiiger BuILb&sLILIL (B6TensoT LDHMILD
182 2o SlITeEhsE EULPSSLDTENT LgHedl 2 _Wime| LbpmiD
60 eaflwiisers® Gorey. LuIDd, WHIIE LOHMILD
o wie| SgluenLuied usel o2 wiriey (STEP)
QULPMRIBLILIL (BET6N S

BeaaumLs5HDd sl @®  2oflupmed
emsWMeTILBLD  6uetoflisld  ¢b.12.47  Gampuiedldphbal
¢B.13.15  Gamowins o _wiibglereng. BraTGsmeNed
LDOMILD 6\FeoTemeTUNEd SlemLDibEI6Ten eurkliSuileor LuIne
seoarflasefied 131  Balpeyser  cpeolb 3794
oo Sl IT&EHHES LWIDF SlefsbsLILL (BeTerng.

Gweyb 393 SiFsnfleer 9D BmieueTRIGET
SIBSTC eumsesni. IDRBT emamspmuns. NIBM
yGeor, FEDAI mLsgIb wuibhd eu@Lliysefled &eobgl
QsmeTeUsDE HUIBGSLILLLEOTT [HDG euRSuler 2
Bus@miser  (pbemuuied  23.10.2017  bHMILD
24.10.2017 Gsgeefieo CAFRAL pLsSW euevoiis
eumIBseT LOMILD BF BmieueThiseafedr [BrieumaLieuof
Slebeons SwEGDHTeEErsGMw Lulhdwsnm euGLiLiled
&60[bFI C\BITEVITL 6DTIT.

Seleunevoriged eURIS BieUTESEDGLD Sibsmser
FRISSENGSLD LOMID 2emPluiT FRISSSHGSLD Sen G
Slsslp BHSHSIL UMDMHDRIGET HEWLEOLDMEDT. &relpsd
2 M6 QSHMLITHS SMETOTLILLLEl. 2PN [HEOE)IHETEOT
LeoGeum)| HL6YIREEMESH6T GLDMESBTETETLILILL 60T,

BmieuenTmigeT &FULLD 2013 Wifley 197 LOMILD
Bmieueor  (BwibedT DOMILD [BMIEU6TT  LIGTOAWITEMITEH6IT
oorfuid) efi@meT 2014607 LI GUeDIWeNDSHE GLDed

eumBuled sFlLoUeTD eaHS 2Ll (H& & LD
GULDMRIGLILIL 6X16D6m6D.
RIS @@ ULIQWElLLNS  [BMI6U6DTLDMSHE0MED

oo SluirseT Fbuend ubmlw efumEeT Bmieuer §LLLD
2013 Wrfley 197 2_1ifley 12 woHMILD Bmieueor (BuiLbeor
WOMILD BmieuedT Lievofiimeniaer 2erduib) efll 2014601
e eeuefuiL. Csemeuufedemen.
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13. Inter branch adjustments

The Bank has continued to maintain a very good
record in the matter of internal housekeeping. Since the
Bank has installed a core banking solution with hundred
percent networking, it was possible for the branches to
balance all their accounts and the balances were tallied
up to March 31, 2018.There was also timely submission
and scrutiny of the control returns, which was given

adequate importance at all levels with necessary follow

up.

14. Internal control and inspection/audit

Risk Based Internal Audit system

The bank has put in place an effective and strong Risk
Based Internal Audit (RBIA) System. During the
financial year 2017-18, RBIA audits were conducted in
480 branches of the bank. Submission of compliance
reports and closure of audits are followed up through the

respective Regional Offices.

Half-yearly review of the Treasury Department is

conducted by Inspection Department.

Post-Credit Supervision process

In addition, all accounts having credit limits of Rs.3.00
crore and above are subjected to post-credit
supervision. Totally 1001 such accounts in 203
branches were covered during this year. Receipt of
compliance reports is monitored by the Credit Audit &

Monitoring Department.

13. & 6 6T & 615 & & 6w L (B Wl Wi Im 601 & 600T & (& & 6 61T

griluniégeo:

URIBWTETEH  HemensEhsBenLCuw 2 6o
BLOIRGEEDHHENET  QUIRIGUGHSIUDD  HemLLIIRHELD
fnly SeTememWw OHMLITHE HemLLIESHS 6UBSDSI.
BemeTHeT SNeMMHSHILD 100% NpsGuwis ELDETEILIMIHET
eLPEOLD BemeTuTHEBLILILL SH60T LIWevTTe: 2018 Shlb Shevor(®

DI IT & 31 &b LD G5 & w et m) Sl 6» 60T & Gl
SemensEhsBEMLEWwner sHeosGser GBI
eFLwInLL BeTereor.  GLOpUMTEDEIGSTS — EUMRIGLILIGLD

BHH6UD LILLQUIEDSET SHTOSMDSHD  E6DEDMLDEd  6CUMTHIS
sflumMiuusm& Gunmdw W& & WS F ey
Q&MB&ELLGSENE. 2 6MBLUML  LEIGLBSSIeuHe0
2 gten DS HEOTEWLD QFHMLJBLD OUMBLG 6k
BLENGEDS — TBHS  eumBHDE. 2w GrysHed
BewEMHEHHES SemLUTe0NesT LD 6Ule)| &He0oTsEsere0
shenedls elsSunsmisemner He0oTGLIRSSHE0 LDHMILD
Bayemeusener  CHT  6FLISHOD 2 _MS6T  eunmliBuied
&6 L& &LILIBS60TDEOT.

14. 2 sl BUUT®G, Shlile) WhHnID &evoflloHens :

UmIE @ 2 MISwiner WOMID SMEMLDIITET
BLITeNMHe 2 61560016606 SeWLDLIEDL 6\&5T6TTBET6NSI.
2017-18 eaumpLEBD 480 Sewenseflled  Slii6YsH6iT
GpesneTeniULLer. Spile] Siflsenasuied SmesLd
GEODHEET FEFIIHED LDOHMILD SHeEooflEHemEemIL (LIRSS

emeusHed Gunerpemey  OIBHHS LT HHw
OIQICUEDBHISET  LPOLD  &H6voTHM6u0 1 &&HLIBGHEOTDSI.
smepeol  Uflefled  Slewpwinesor®  LLMISHUI6Y

sevorsmeoofiLiL] Lfleurned BLSSLILGSTDS!.
sLeTeuLpraIdBiL 60T GLDHLIMTemeN QIS0

URIBHELET  ¢5.3.00 Gsmg LOMID SEHS
GouLL  &LET  eUIDLSET  G&MetoIL  SleDeuTSHS
SHEUUIHGSHEBLD HL6OT 6UDMIBWILINET  HE00TSHMETONLILSE
o _eemnasLLGHTDET. SelalbLd 203 BHemenserfied
ewngsns &g Guneim 1001 HETUIHGS6ET Shliley
QFLWILLLL6OT. Shiley — Oflsensuiled  SmeELd
GEODEHENET  FHOFIINNS HLEOT H6eoleHems LDDHMILD
&600TSHME0AILIL WM 2_MIFH CIFILISDSI.
2_L 0)IHGL60T Hevofldens SlemLbLiL

2_LEIHGLET  Heollbens 182  Hemenserled
QsweouUBs s LUULLS. 6U M & W me &l
2 _IsLBUUTLGHLLRIGENED  GEOTDTET 2 L 60)SHEL 60T
Hevolisems GLODOGTETEBLD (LPeDMEMIL eDM)I&68T600T(B,

SlpBuwl  eFeeumetoll  eueTUBSHeMmE — GLDHOSBMETEHLD
&l e 6T & &l & ew oM & 6efl @ LD , & 600l & 6W &
GomesmeTeniLLL .

Gweyld  OlBBw  6Feeunevtfl  eustofisLiiey,

smeyeoLlfle) egaTeneTuigierer  CaemeusSenenaer,
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Concurrent Audit system

The bank continued to have the system of Concurrent
Audit, which covered 182 branches. Concurrent Audit
has been recognized as an important tool of internal
control and is in force at major branches including all the
'B' category branches designated for forex business.

Further, International Banking Division, Treasury
Department, DPS Cell, ATM Cell, Chennai Service
branch, Accounts, Establishment and Planning
Development & Resources Mobilisation Department,
CRAPC at Thoothukudi and Central Processing
Centers at Chennai, Coimbatore, Tirunelveli and
Madurai are also subjected to Concurrent Audit.
Submission of compliance reports and closure of audit
findings are followed up through the respective regional
offices / departments.

Information System Audit

An Information System audit cell has been established
under Inspection Department as per RBI guidelines.
Information System audits are conducted at all
controlling offices and 480 branches along with Risk
Based Internal Audit.

A process for continuous offsite monitoring of Core
Banking operations is deployed by IS audit cell. Under a
software tool based supervision process, certain key
and vital areas are subjected to offsite monitoring.

Every year, critical Information systems deployed in our
Bank like core banking system, E-Banking, Mobile
banking, ATM, RTGS, Treasury, CTS clearing process,
Server and network infrastructure etc., are subjected to
external Information Systems audit.

Management Audit system

To assess the robustness of the systems and
procedures established in various operational units in
the Bank and to have an oversight of the effectiveness of
management, various departments at Head Office and
all Regional Offices are subjected to Management
Audits once intwo years.

During the year under review, Management Audits were
conducted at Vigilance Department, Human Resources
Development, Planning Department, Business
Development Department, KYC / AML Cell, Credit Audit
& Monitoring Department, Accounts Department, MIS
Department, IT Department, Staff Training
College,Nagercoil, Inspection Department, Credit
Recovery & Follow up Department, Credit Department,
Risk Management Department, Mumbai and
Coimbatore Regions by the Inspection Department of
the bank.

DPS uwMey. ATM Wfley., seméa@semD.
effleunsssgienm, SLLSIGSH, Pper@Georhmd  LbHmILD
auemmIGemsn S @sed gHlewn., CRAPC  grssi@le.

esetTement,  GamuULbLSHMT,  HHebedGeuedl  LLHMILD
glemy ShBw  2aiseflled 2 _6iTem  6LDWIMRIG6MED
2 _LeIGGLET HeolHems  QFWULD  (PedD
GomesmeTeLLLL &l

BHHEUD LDMRIGLPEND HEUUHEms :

Mlarmel eurRiBuledT euLsML BSEOI6OTLIR 6(hH SHBH6UD
Slemiblil| Hevolldens emLDWID, Splieysgiempuienr &b
BoieuILLBeTengl. SHHEUD QLPRIGUPEDD  H600HEmE
OMID SLAFMHS 2 LHevisensd 480 Hemenserad
Sl 6 60T & SLGUUTLEB  Sie)6u60& M & 6rfl ey LD
BLSSULLBETENSl.  6URIBUNET  [BLEUIRSHEDHEETHSHETE0T
SlIRLILIEMLLITEOT  GILDEDTEILIMIHEMTEDTEl, HEHEUD SleWLDLIL
Heoofl&Eems — eDWSHETTD  @dh  OTLIEFwmeot
HEU0IHMEUNSHNGS 2 LUBSSULESDE. & s
(L & & Wi LD I 60T &l 60 D & @Ip LD, 6) LD 60T 61 LI IT (I 6IT
SlgliuemLuieomesr  Qeueflés  &600T&HM6001SHSH A& S
2 _'LIBSSLILBBDE!.

QEUGEUN[H 6UIBL(PLD 6uRIBUN6eT  (p&SWILDTEDT
BHEEUD  OlemDLL&emmer  eumiBuieor  SlgliLemL
GLDeOTEILINERET,  LblevoTevoTen) 6umld, emaGudl  eurms,
ATM, RTGS, aemeayeod. CTS Sitey agwedipemm, sreurt
WOHMILD Semevonil 2 LSl LWL Semel SlemeurHSHILD
6 euefl & & & 6u6d &l 6w LD LI I & 600fl & 6W & & &
2 _'LIBSSLILBBDE!.

(BLDEOMETITEMLD &6001HEME :
amdser LGN Swssmiseiar SleGserfed

® aTem  SlewUL&eT  LDHMILD  [FedL(pemmaeriert
eugyeunerr  SpGunsSwionenr  Bemeemw!  BLITE
QgD oMb  Gbeonetoremd  Hmemeot

Gnuniemel OFILISNGSD HEMEDEWLD SIQIEUEDSBHHED
2 etem  UOGAN) HEODEHEHLD LDOMID DTSS!
UpnpBw  SlQIeUESRISEHD STevoi®  ShevoTBHEHHSE
6 (b (P ™ D G LD 60 IT 600T 6 LD & 6001l & 60 & & &
2 _'LIBSSLILBGBDE!.

S6lleUNeToTIQd  LEDSUTILIEYSSIEWD,  LD6evTIG6u6IT
Gbun®. SLLLBESHD Hewm, eUeTTiGHEUETTES e,
KYC/AML emwwib, &LedT  gGevolldems  LDOMILD
Gpunemel FemD, &H6U0THS HleOD, [BIT6UTH HHEUED
SleLDLILSHSIEND, SHH6UD OSMIIEOMIL LISHSIeND, 2er ST
uipd  seoafl, HETETCsMeed &evoraMeofili Hlewm,
BLEOT  euEEHHED  LDOMILD  &H600TSMe0TliLILSIemD,
&Le0TEHImD, SLTGLDEOMETemLD HIEWD, (LPLD6ML LDHMILD

GamwbyssTT LD 600T L 60 &1 &)l 6) 6D & Ihl & 6T
S, & LI 6M 61 & 615 & & @ L 60 IT 600T 61 LD & 6001 & 60 &
BLSSLILLL .
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Revenue Audit

For the calendar year 2017, Offsite Revenue Audit was
conducted for 509 branches during the month of
January, 2018. Further, revenue leakages which are
monitored and reported by concurrent auditors at
branches were followed up for recovery through
concerned regional offices then and there.

Audit Automation

Audit automation was implemented in our Bank during
the year 2017-18. RBIAmodule (including IS audit, KYC
AML audit, customer service audit), Credit audit module
and Offsite transaction monitoring system (OTMS) were
automated, which facilitates paperless audit
environment, reduction in audit mandays and
minimization of manual data entry through seamless
integration with Core Banking Solution.

15. Vigilance
The functions of the vigilance machinery of the Bank

are broadly divided into 3 types, viz. preventive,
predictive and punitive. The Vigilance Department
undertakes a study of existing procedures and practices
prevailing in the organization with a view to modifying
those procedures or practices that provide scope for
fraud and also finding out the causes of delay and the
points at which the delays occur and devising suitable
steps to minimize delays at different stages. To educate
the employees of the Bank, the Vigilance Department
brings out various fraud awareness circulars and
conducts training programmes periodically. As a part of
creating awareness, 'Vigilance Day' is observed on the
31st of October every year. The Vigilance Department
plays a vital role in the implementation and follow-up of
the directives and guidelines issued from time to time by
Reserve Bank of India. Upon the directions of RBI,
Vigilance Department has also formulated/
implemented a Vigilance Policy from 1st April 2013 and
the Policy was lastly reviewed on March 8, 2016. The
'Whistle Blowing' mechanism is being actively
encouraged as a tool for better governance.

Further, a scheme of 'Protected Disclosure' framed in
accordance with the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank
of India on April 18, 2007 is in operation in the Bank.

As per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Bank being a company accepting
deposits from the public is required to set up a 'vigil
mechanism' for the directors and employees to report
their genuine concerns or grievances. Further, the vigil
mechanism should provide for adequate safeguards
against victimisation of employees and directors who
avail of the vigil mechanism. While the purpose of both
the protected disclosure scheme' and 'the vigil
mechanism' is the same, under the 'Protected

6UIHEULI &600(l&6me

BILSMLR  Spevoi®  20175&M60T  6UdHEMTIL
FevollbemsILTerrd 503  Hewenaefled, 2017  ggevreur]
IESHD  BLESLUULLE.  Bewmensefled  euheUmL
puyser ereTm & 600fl & 6W & W M6 T & 61 IT 6D
&60oTBLIGHHLILIL L 6MEUBET — FDUMSLULILL  LDEDITL.ED
&1 g1l 6 6D & B! & 61T T 6D 2 L e)& @ L 60T 61 & 60
QFELWILILGSEDSI.
SH6e00llB6me STEUALIMIGSHED

2017-18 eupLEP0 [BLDF 6URIBUTD SHevoleems
SNETILIMIGSHD (PewD HewLPenpLLGSsILLLg. RBIA
eB1es (Beaued QRIEGWemD selssns, KYC/AML
SHE00fHems, EUMeSemaEWITeNT CFemel, Hevolbemns 2 L L)
BLET HeUUGHemE 6HNGSH LOHMILD 6euefFaFedaILD
ufleurssemnenr SHeooTHMeuoilIL  Sle®LDLL 6T

sreolwumewrssUUrLE. Seweu  eurm S uler
BLEURSEDSEHHSTEOT  SllLILIeDL.  QILDEITEILITHETHL60T
Bewsaunedt  QIHRIBEMEUOILIL|  POLD  HMEHLDHM

Hevolleeme GpLpED, Heuollbensd Eealemed HITL&G6T &MLl
DOMILD  LDEDASHIT  ELPEOLD  H&EEUD LIHMEU  GHDMDEBS

2_56EDS-
15. SH600T&M60oALIL :

seoorsmevofilil  Wiflefleor  Geuemed  cLpedTm)
auemswnsll  WfssluGdng. Slemey  5GESHS60.
(PeOTERLIQUINISHED,  SHe00TESHSHED,  BLLULNED 2 eier

S600THME0UALIL| (Pe®D HEUMIHEWeT FHBLUUSHS GFHeUTEH
ULt smeo SBewLeeuefluled e pemmaEsT
LMHBWeNLD&SILGEDSE. GLOEILD 2o fluiTseEhed He0ed
UsLBL eaemsuied  WpedmEGs®B  OHmLTLTeT
sOOO&ensser siflwner smeo SenLeeuafiuied LD
SleafissUULB QUBHEDE. 2er 1511 17 & 6rfl 600 L (G Wi
eAPIiLjevoTTe)Y gDUBSSIUSDHTS EUEEUTIH GUIBL(LPLD,
SsGLmur 31D  CzpPwertm  ‘eflgdeleetred  BeorLD’
&enLLR&ELULEBSEDS!. H600THMe00fLILSSHIEMDIITETS LINTS
& el 6UmI &8, SleueuliGung 6 6 arfl Wi T & LD
& DD 1] & 60 & & 6W 61T L LD, 6P & ML (B & 60 & 60 61T | LD
euRIBufeoTTed  SIDOLGHSIUSDEGLD, HemLLlUILSDELD
Wwsdw umemHnEng. Goayb feren Gums Sy
8ndwnelesr  euflesn@Hedledr LR &HevoTHmevofiLiL]
QsNeTensHemeT  gLUId 2013 (psed HersSelhHIl
QUDTRIB euBSDE. S5edr LmiLfEeensor Lo 2016,
860 eEwiLLLg. "Whistle Blowing" ereotn ei&metema

HEDL(PEDDLILIGSSLILILBETENE.
Gayd ungs Maren eumBuiest gLged 18 2017
UPlEM GSHeOleoTLR  LUMGISTILTET  eleueflLIBSSISH60

BLLLDMenTgl 6uRIBuNed QFWOLGSHSLILBEDE!.
BmieuentmigeT gULLD 2013 Wfley 177 eNdaerflsor
&p eamdswnerg eneull [BEseneT  gDUSTED
efifliyeoniey Swsspenn gHUGSS SwaGbTee
HMID  2enfluieeT  SleUTseT  GeMDEET  SleDeg|
©_6DOTEMLDILITENT &6)6NEDSEmeT ESMellss cUems QFLISF.
Gogyd efiLfliievoriiey SWsHLPemD 6URIE SWISHES60TT

LD O M| LD &@mnassmen LI L 62 IT Rl & LI LI L IT LD 6D
UM &muUUsHG ebleuenswnsd & ELw
eeuafilu@sgIHeL HLb  wwomb  eNSliyevoriey
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Disclosure Scheme' prepared on the lines prescribed by
RBI, Reserve Bank of India is the Nodal Agency
designated to receive complaints under the Scheme,
whereas under the 'vigil mechanism' set up in
accordance with the provisions of the new Companies
Act, the Chief of Internal Vigilance in the Bank will be the
designated authority to receive the complaints from
employees and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Board will be the designated authority to receive the
complaints from directors.With a view to ensuring
compliance with both the RBI circular and the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank had re-drafted its
'Protected Disclosure Scheme' in tune with the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013. Itwas felt that as the two different schemes on the
same subject being in operation simultaneously may
lead to conflicts and it would be advisable to converge
the two schemes into one.

We had sought clarifications from RBI whether it would
be in order to revise the scheme, inter alia, by providing
for a common nodal agency, say for example the Chief
of Internal Vigilance in the Bank, to receive the
complaints under the revised protected disclosure
scheme.

We, later received clarification from RBI that they have
no objection in making the Chief of Internal Vigilance or
the Chairman of Audit Committee of Board, as the case
may be the Nodal Officer for receiving complaints.
Accordingly, the “Protected Disclosure Scheme”
suitably reviewed in line with whistle blowing/ vigil
mechanism under section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 was approved by the Board of Directors in the
meeting held on February 28, 2017 and the same
reviewed by the Board in the meeting held on March
03,.2018 and was adopted. Accordingly the
communication for the purpose of reporting any event/
information of concern, the complaint should be sentina
closed/secured envelope to the chief of Internal
Vigilance and the complaint can also sent by e-mail to
civ@tmbank.in. Suppose a director or an employee
who avail this mechanism may directly represent to the
Chairman of Audit Committee of Board in exceptional
cases through e-mail ID acbtmbho@gmail.com.

As such, the Chief of Internal Vigilance has conducted
and completed the study of Systems and Procedures in
fraud prone areas during the month of February 2015
and necessary directions were given to the respective
departments for taking corrective measures.

16. Customer Service

Customer service is an important part of maintaining
ongoing customer relationship, which is a key for
continuous business growth and to retain the
customers. The Bank is well known for its good,
courteous and empathetic service to customer and
constantly been endeavoring to meet the expectations

wndflwneorgl. unpgg Mgmel  eurRS LSMTHeT  6UD
BUb&SLIULL  (PHEDWTES 2 _6Tengl. LSl Bmieusors
gL ef@pemmeefieoiup eEhs QLI  HEmeDemLD
aigsnfl erflunselleor yUsTAsewer  6LUMD
BuSlssiurGererni.  eumiBuledr  SwsGmiTserer
UsNT&emer  6UDm  HeooléEems G Heweoeur
BUILBSSLILLE 2_6T6rIT.

BmievertmigeT UL 2013 fley 17760t
effserfieotLiQuild LM iflgmel eumIBUledT SFDOHIGEmSHEHE
2 | 6OTUMLN&eYLD GleueMLLGHSIHD SLLLD LDM)| 6UemT6Y
eFLwlLLLE. 8B &peo SLmsend @Gy
Coreasged @GCr GCnIsHed 6FWOLGSSLILIBEUSHTE
F&FTEYSH6T JOLEBLD 6TedTLHTd ST6vor® HLLIRISEMEIILLD
QTS SeMetoTLILg] 6160TM)| 2 _60oTILILIGEDS.

&g FbuUhsLIs LUMS Merel eurrbuiLd Smhal
eflen&sLd QIUMLILIL(BETENE. 2 6 60EhEF QLPILIL| HEmeDemLD
SPsnfiGm  Slebedgl Heovlldems &L HeweoeuGrm
PLPMDWTS  U&MTHemeT  eumeuded  ehs
S CaLemetoT|lD Gedemed 6TedTM)  QSIfleNSHSI6TeMEDTT
SlgeoTLIe LUMGISTULTeT  QeuefiliLGSSIHED HLLLDT6OTS
effliyeooriey Swasspenpuied &  OUMMISSLDTET
wempuied ufifedssiur@ BmieuethigesT sULLD 2013
Wfley 177er &p 28 19ugeufl 20176d HewLOLDHMD
GMRIG6NE [BTeUTs G Sl LHHD @UUHH QumULLEB,
e 3 20186d FHewLOUDD Sal LHHD &GP Sblile]
QFLSE WOMID gOHMIS eSmeTeTUULLE. SiGHeoTLIR
suBSLLLL  [Bepey uDPll  HHEUEDEET  LDOHMILD
Yanmsenel 65Meflss cpul LTSISTLLNET 2 _enmuied
2 6T &He0oTsMevviilil] SHEWEaU[HES SeDILILIEOND LDHMILD
civ@tmbank.in eredim LSleoTeOTEREFED ELPEOLD L|EMITEHEMEIT
SlgyIliLeond. @b SusGerT s 6db erslwim
8hs 6FWeOWpemDeDW — LWETLUGSSE  e\&meTern
Beneorssmed  Cruluwing  GLpeledr HeoolHEens  G(LD
semeoeulfiLd el  elessner  FhHSTLLMISEM6D
acbtmbho@gmail.com ereorn  LSlebTEOTERFED  ELPEOLD
a5 lexl&&e0mLD.
8CsCGumed  Wlpeurfl  20156d 2 eiT&H6E0OTSTETOALILY
semeoeugned  GOnFR&EE — eumilieTen  LGH&erfed
SlemLDLIL&H6T LDOHMILD  OFWEDWPEmDSBET UMM  Shliie)y
BLSSULULLE  DOMID  SHWTer  [BLOUGEEDHHEmET
GumesneTten  SbHSHHS HEODHEHHS CHeweulITeoT
QULPIBTL (BSHE0&6T ABTBSHSLILILLSI.

16. eunpsemanernT GgFemey :

euMesemaILITenT CFemeuuiedrt (LpeHS LIMkIE HLLIL
EUMISEMSILITENT 2_memeu LITMDALLSTESLD. &&60T eLpedLd
QsmLTFdwmeor  efwmuny  euemi&d  LDOHMILD
CUMQSEMSBILITETTHENENT HH&H WEUHSIH OBTTEN (LPLRBMESI.
GUmIBWLINEITS SigedT Amibs, Sevfleunet LLOHMILD LrflLyTevor
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of the modern day tech-savvy customers by introducing
new and innovative products for seamless digital

experience.
In order to provide a platform to the customers for

addressing their queries, a dedicated Customer Service
Cell has been formed at Head Office. The Bank has
also provided an all-India toll-free helpline (1800-425-
0426) wherein the customers can clarify their doubts
about the products / schemes and also register their
grievances. We have a dedicated Phone Number
(9842461461) for Customer care / Help. Italsoincludes
“SMS” based Customer Help Line. Customers can
invoke help by sending a SMS with the text, “HELP”.
We are also having two E-Mails for the use of customers
to register their grievances and complaints
customerservice@tmbank.in and
complaints@tmbank.in. Customers can also register
their suggestions / feedback / complaints / grievances
through our website www.tmb.in. The customer will
receive instant acknowledgements to their E-Mail ID for
the suggestions / feedback / complaints / grievances
registered by them. Our Bank has also implemented a
centralized registry / database for recording and follow-
up of complaints. Branches and Regional Offices can
also register the complaints received at their level in the
CCTS (Customer Complaint Tracking System) module.

17. TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT:
Our Bank is taking various efforts to provide technology-

enabled products and services to customers by
adopting latest technologies. Expansion of Branches
and ATMs by using multiple network technologies, such
as MPLS, Leased Line, VSAT, GSM and VPNoBB with
redundant connectivity to provide continuous customer
service without any disruption through various delivery
channels viz. Internet Banking, ATM, Mobile Banking,
Point of Sale terminals, Cash Deposit Kiosk, Passbook
Printing Kiosk, Cheque Deposit Kiosk, Product
Information Kiosk etc.

18. Product Innovation, new Products and Services
During the financial year 2017-18, the Bank has made /

done the following initiatives for the betterment of

customers.

* [naugurated New MSME cells in Chennai,
Coimbatore and Thoothukudi.

= 8 Branches and 1 Office of the Bank were accorded

with ISO 9001:2015 certification.

Gremeud® LW OLDHDG LOOMID Heleor OGHMleOmILLI
QUMIPEBEMSILITETTHEMET GTHTUMTLLSENET LTHE 6\FIIL|LD
QUNBLB OSMLIFSIITET 1eedll 60 SHEDILIGUSHHE0T LPEOLD
LSIemLDIIT6DT SWIMTLILSemen Sbgl Q&Me00TRHSSEDSI.

BUMPEEDSEILITENTHEHHS G SLHP Ls&sHAnHs
GCremeuemwl SlefiLILUSDHETS  GUMQSHEDSILITETT  GWLDIILD
GURIBUNEOT HEWEDEMLD SIQIEUDESHBE BMICULILIL BETETSI.
EUMRSEMBILIMTHEHHES SHHEUD SlefEHad 2 Heue LD
8eeus 6pmemeGLS eTevor 180-0425-0426  cLpedLD
Gremer SleflaaLILBBETDE!.

GUMISHEMSILITENTEHET  GSMIEHOFIS cpeold 2 sex
eup Help eteor emLL 65LIG 98424 61461 etedip
eTevotenoliD® Sl 2 sell eup  piujb. GLogyLd
customerservice@tmbank.in wpmb
complaints@tmbank.in &by &wm Leerehsed
waeufl  eUPlLNG  GUMIRSEDSBILITENTEET SRS EHEML L
& 6M D & 6 61T | LD 4al &, B 60 IT & 61 60T & 6 61T WL LD
&HSHGHMENLLD LBy 6siw  Sweyd. GLeyd
auRIBUIeT  6h® @dp Seeuemewld  Www.tmb.in
Semevorigend euflwns aun Sweyd. Gweyd CCTS
customer complaint tracking system eumg&enawiment
Geomsefletr Beoeugld ubnfl esfba estetemr CCTS
6T60TM SleMLDLIL| gDLBSHSLILILB6TETSI.

17. Q5MLOledRIL L euemTsd] :-

QIMRGEMBWINETTHEERSE dmhs  Ceeme
Slefllugpans eumd  (peor SmHss  GumeGeu
ueoGeum 2 Wb OBMPOHLLRSDeT  SleflsHg
aumdng. MRLS, @ssems Semevorliy VSAT, GPRS,
CDMA Gunetip LeosILLLL OSMLI6d MHILLIMISET eLpeOLD
demer  OHMID ATM elfleunésd Q&L  6UBSDS.
eunpsenaWtenT eusdsans ATM Semevorwsen eurid
Bgemew, GlpmemLed eurkld Ggemeu, LMuievorL. Shl GFeb,
ubm SllenL LoD QFQISSHID SwibBybd, &rGsmemned
QFBHID Swndrd eumld GCsemeuser UDM Sl
2 ga|b saaued Supdrd SpBweunmrler  epeod
FemLuleoeom GFeme eULPIRIS eUIHBMSI.

18. yHuw Geemeuse :

2017-2018 B8 Shpetorped UmE
EUMRSEDSIWITENTEHEMNEIT  [HETeMDESNE  SLDEHSHET0TL
GremeuseT ANHPSLLGHSLILLLSI.

GlFeoTeme0T, CHMULDLSHTT LDOMILD HTHSIHSIR
B SLmsefled UBw MSME eisebaer SpaesLiuLLgl.

8 demendeT LOOMILD 1 6URIBUNET SigI6UEDELD
ISO 9001 : 2015 &netingemLpL! OUDHDS!.

Sl LmbLefl LDOMILD &eoTeofigmesL|IsHHed el L ed
SpmbLd S LD SinflpsLd.
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Digital / Technology initiatives embarked during the
year2017-18

= Digital Village Scheme at Kootampuli and
Kannirajapuram were also initiated.

=  TMB My Delight Debit Card.
=  TMB MSME Privilege Gold Card.
=  TMB Exporters Privilege Card.

=  Top-up facility of RuPay Prepaid cards through
Internet Banking.

= Immediate Payment Service (IMPS) services
through Internet Banking.

= Instant account opening through e-KYC facility at
branches.

Online fee collection facility for Educational Institutions.

19. Awards / Ratings obtained by the Bank:

= TMB has won ASSOCHAM awards under Small
Bank class for the following categories on 17.02.2018
forthe year2016-17.

= Runnerup -Agricultural Banking category.

= Runnerup -Best Social Bank category.

= Runnerup-Government Schemes category.
= Runnerup- Priority Sector Lending category.
External Rating:

During the financial year 2017 -18, CRISIL renewed the
rating for the Certificate of Deposit programme of the
Bank for (11,000 crore as A1+ (indicating “Very Strong”
rating).

20. Risk Management

The Bank has a proactive approach towards Risk
Management. Its risk philosophy involves developing
and maintaining its banking activities within its risk
appetite and regulatory framework.

The Risk Management Architecture of the Bank
comprises of an Independent Risk Management
Organizational structure at the Corporate level, Risk
Management Policies, Risk Measurement Tools and
Risk Monitoring and Management Systems. The Bank
has a well defined risk appetite statement and all the
banking functions are dovetailed to the risk appetite
statement.

2017-18 B8
Cremauser :

TMB my delight Debit Card

TMB MSME Privilege Gold Card

TMB Exporters Privilege Card.

RuPay prepaid Card - Senetorugen eurmki
cpeotd Top-Up esilg esmenesLd 6uss.

Shevoriged  1gedrL6d [/ QL GevTmengd

Bemevonigen eurald cpeod IMPS Geemen.
omisengs eumld Bewensefisd E-KYC eusd
CLPEDLD 2L 6DTIR H600THE FHI6USHBLD.
&ebel BN 6)6DT R & ETh & & ITeDT
SLL600TLD 68360 6UFH SIM(LPELD.

S}, 60T6m 6D 60T

19. eurkld eumm ehgseT LDHMILD LLALISHBEET

gl eurkld Assocham &hed SirfleflssLiuLL
dm euRIBs6T eUenEHEHNET DS LOl&ES &Felpsh 6URIS
fouy eflgpems E6uedTmEl. GLDEYILD [HLDIPEWLII GRS
BLD&600TL. [BT6dTE el(hSIBemen QLDMIETETS.

efleusmu &L60T GULPRIGELHD FAMl eurrSEH6T
|5]rﬂ6)&]601 &Lp &pevorLnib SLLD euDmI6eTeng.

dlw eumiBser fledetr S HAoBH Fops
EUMRIBEST60T STevoTLD SLHemS CILDMIETENSI.

Olps HLLMIBEBSHSMET LDOMID  (LPedTen)flemip
SEODEEHEHE LT 6UpmIGauSed Bl eumSaer
Wrflefletr LD &pevorLmbd SLLb euDmeTeTg.

&I IIEG :

8ns B Spevorged 2017-2018 CRISIL sy

LDBLIGLIP6D [HLDGI CUMRIBSHSTET emeULIl EMTBIBLD SLLLD

1000 Gempwns ygililssliur@etengl. Gy A1+

Wens euedennwnerg) eeam &7  WSISELD
QULPMRIBLILIL (BET6NSI.
20. &L GLDeomeoremLD :

b LD &I 6 Ml & W meor & 8L

GLpeomevoTemLDUNEIT (LP6OT [BLEUIREEME HETD)(E(LPEDDEMIL
MBIWINETOTB  UBEME. 6URE QLEIG  (PemD
NPaEr6E 2 LULG SH60T6HG ghU 6H SbEImesawiLbmeot
Bensanemey o _(peunsdE  upmoss eumeuBs
UMRIBUNE0T CBMETEMEHUIMEGLD.

GweneooTemd  HLLEWLLUL &b
sohaoneor  SLi  Geonetoremd  SlemLbLiemL
e&mevor(BeTengl. SLIm  BLDeDMevoTemlD Q& MeTensd, LI
Sleneli@ smelseT SLIT seooraTeuofily HMILD Bieuns
Slemwliy, &L  CaMmun@EsersE o LUl  euRid
QIFWIEOLIMLIgem6DT 2 _MIF 6FIIL  EURISWITEITSH  [HE0TES
auenILNSSILLL LT Sifléens LDOHMILD &FIMESE0TLDTE0T
ST Igem6nT C\BMEvoT(BETENE.
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The Board of Directors of the Bank is primarily
responsible for laying down risk parameters and
establishing an integrated risk management and control
system. The Board of Directors is supported by a Sub-
Committee of the Board known as the Risk
Management Committee of the Board (RMCB), which in
turn is aided by the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO)
and the Risk Management Committee of the Executives
(RMCE). The executive level Committees are headed
by the MD & CEO of the Bank. The Bank's RMCB
reviews its Risk Management policies and recommends
to the Board for approval. The Board also sets out limits
taking into account the risk appetite of the Bank and the
goals set.

Credit Risk:

The credit risk mechanism consists of policies and
practices that include mechanisms for risk identification,
risk measurement, risk grading/aggregation
techniques, reporting and risk control/mitigation
techniques, documentation, legal issues and
management of problem loans to protect asset quality
and ensure orderly growth and targeted risk adjusted
return on assets.

The Credit Risk Management policy along with
Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques &Collateral
Management Policy address the Credit Risk related to
lending. Credit Approving Authority, Prudential
Exposure Limits, Risk Rating System, etc., are used in
managing credit risk.

In an effort to migrate to advanced approaches for
credit risk, the bank has migrated to system driven
internal rating using web based rating models solution
acquired from M/s.Crisil Risk & Infrastructure Solutions
Ltd.

Market Risk:

Asset Liability Management Policy and Investment
Policy aid the management in mitigating the Market Risk
in the Banking and Trading books. The overall
responsibility of managing the market risk lies with the
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the
Bank. The Committee meets regularly and decides on
the size, mix, tenor, pricing and composition of various
assets and liabilities. It primarily does
identification,measurement, monitoring and
management of liquidity and interest rate risk. It uses
tools such as Ratio analysis, Gap analysis reports -
Structural liquidity, Dynamic Liquidity, Interest Rate
Sensitivity, Value at Risk (VaR), Duration Gap Analysis
etc. for management of liquidity and interest rate risks.
The fundamental focus is to measure value both from
the earnings perspective and from the economic value
perspective.

QmmdemeHs SLiT  GLDemetoTemLDem I
Bnieysed sSLBUBSSHISO LOHMID SLi  Sleneysenen
GMDHHH SHpBWlemer eumdE  SwsHGeTT  Gpedieor
(PHEOTEMLD  QUMMILILNGLD.  [Brieuns  Gpedleor  Glemevor
Gupeuneor L GLDeDMEITemD&S(D LDOHMILD  OFTHSI
eummIly & Spdweney Bieuns SsHESeTTHEnHS
glemevor Lflsorment, Brieundaet Hemeouled HewLeILMILD
Ll LRIG6T eurRIBuleoT Biieuns SusEnT HemevemLbuied
mewLeOUMID eumiBuieor L GLpeonevoremid G, &L
BLp6DIT6TOTEMLD E\BTETENEHEMI! QLILSHED SlerfLiLgiLeor &L
(GLDEOMETOTEMLDEE — SHMTEOEUEDIWIDD  SleMLDHHE LDHMILD

Slgnaner Hmer  Sifised | ShBweunenmuLd
Brreud &80T meoT,
SL60T &L :

BLE0T LT QFUILPEDDWINEITSH ClBM6Tems LDMHMILD
&ledb  BEDL(IPEDDHEMET  C&HM00T(B — SHMLDSHSBLILILLFI.
Seupniled SLT SlewLwmend &mevorLgl, SLm Slemey,
8L srIuGSSHIHD (pemmseT SLi  &LGUUBSHSISH0
Wpemms6T, SLiT SNGens SheueTuTLILBSSISHD. &Ll
9 7 & & 60 60T & 61T Sy Bwemel 2 _6TeML&SWSHMTGLD.
SL6eOTEIfLILL 60T QBMLITL|6MLILI HL60T SLemI GHemmLILSDE
BLEOT ShLUSHS GeWDLIL [BILLIMRISEIBLE0TTE0r SL60T LT
GwenmeooTemD  Q&METemS  WHMILD  Llemevori
GLpeorevoTemLD Q1&METemS LNOTUDDLILIGEDSI. HL60T SLIT
BrreuBssedled HL60T QLULSHD ANHsMy Slemipli eGeus
eeuefliLn®G eugby, &L UG Slemiliy SpSwieneu
2 LBWNsLILESSLILGS6TMET, CURISWINETS E6meroTiLiLD
cpeold  LHIGGELD  (WPpewmES MlediULgl.  smaet
esmleomrud  M/s.Crisil Risk & Infrastructure
Solutions Ltd., BnieuersSLLb SdbHgl euNRISLILILL I
ghHens SLIT :

elmuny  &e00Is@® LSSHemisefed  eurnidufeor
sHems SLew GeMDLULSNES FTSHS aummiLiL Breunss
Q&METems WHMID WPHOLE esMeTens  ShBuleme
glemevor  UflBedTmeot. QUGB 6Ny shems SLewy
Brreuds@d eummiiy  eumiBuler  6ETHS  eUTMILILY
Brieuns  GLpemel  FIMHSE. OlbH  GLPEUTETS
6ULDGEHLDNS TFnl LIBIH6T Snllp Sl6M6)Y, STeOLD, HEDEM6L,
eflemed  HMID uOGeum — QFTHH  QuUTMLY
QSMGLLSBEMET  (LPIg6)  6FIIBETDETT,  Si&HE(LPeUTEuTS
SleMLIIMEND HMEnH0 SlenelBHED H00THTEU0NSHSHE0
womib Briewn  Brieudssed eutlp efds SLi
SpBWEUDDD  (PHEOTEMLDIINTS  LIGTONUIMDI)S60TM6DT.
8snaner smelsenns eNdsd LGLUMiE SenLeuef
uGLUMLE] Sinfléems &L LemLDLILMeT [BiemiD, LDIMILD
Biemw,  euly elds 2 et  SpBweunemn
2 LBWNsBHTDET. Bemer  SlemEUIHHOT  SllpLiILIEHL
&6U6ITLD (LpeOTGEOTITESME0T GUBLDMEOTLD ML (B&H60l60T LDELIL
ONILD  (PeOTCEOTTTSSMEOT  FLPSHMWILD  LDSLIEWLIL|LD
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Operational Risk:

Comprehensive systems and procedures, internal
control system audit and intensive training are used as
primary means for managing Operational Risk. The
Bank has put in place a Board approved Operational
Risk Management Policy based on Reserve
Bank/BASEL guidelines. All new products introduced
by the Bank pass through a 'New Product Approval
Process'in order to identify and address operational risk
issues, apart from evaluation of other risks.

Implementation of New Capital Adequacy

Framework:

The Bank has implemented the New Capital Adequacy
Framework under Basel-ll as per the timelines
prescribed by RBI. While the Bank, to start with, has
adopted Standardized Approach for Credit Risk,
Standardized Duration method for market risk and Basic
Indicator approach for Operational Risk, the initiatives
so far undertaken / envisaged are geared towards
enabling the Bank to comply with the standards set out
for more advanced capital measurement approaches in
the Basel-ll Accord.

The Bank has also developed a framework for
quantifying the Pillar-2 risks and has put in place a
comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) framework in line with RBI guidelines,

which has been validated by external agencies
In order to shift the matrices of measurement from

traditional volume based measures to risk based
measures, bank has implemented a robust and
scientific fund transfer pricing system.

The Bank strives to provide maximum returns to its
stakeholders while maintaining a solid capital base to
support the risks associated with its diversified
business. Ithas a strong capital adequacy ratio in order

WOMILD  (PeOTGEOTTTHSMEOT  FLPSHMILD  LDSLIEWLIL|LD
2 _WIMHSHI6USE Sh&LD.
QFWeLIMLG L1 :

QFweLmG &L  Brieunssdsd  efifleuneor

SlemDLILS6T  LDOMILD  HEWL(PEDDEH6NTE  SHL[BLITLIET
SlemLDLIL| DOHMILD SHevoflGems ShBUIemeN (LPSHEOTEMLDILITE

o etengl. ungs Mefel  eumd womib BASIL
SpBweupmledr  UPIETLBH0Hem6T  SHQLILIEDLUWITES
6\ & T6voTL aFweUNL(® 8L GLDedM6voT6M LD &

Q&meTemsIINeTEl  euniBuieor  GLbeomesoTemd & (Lpeled
MEUBSLILLB QULSHED SlefesluLr(BeTengl. ks cLpeoLD
SBWpsLILUBSSLILBLD LB  6ILMIHLSEBSETET  LDHM
8Lisemen HIIG 6FLCHTB 6eFweLT (G L
Up&56meTHEemENILILD  SleMLILIMGMLD  &SM6TOTEYLD  LDDHM)ILD
esfuuEsseb UHw swnfliy LS FWwedLpemn
cLpeOLD QLIS SlelsHELILLEB SenemLILGSDE.

Lmeroed 2 eflfsme SILpedLIBSH SIS

GURIBWIMGOTEH LIMeroed  260TLLR LBl  eLPEDSHEDT
SHEOTETlemME)  EUEDI(LPEDMSHEMET  SHLDEOLIBSHSI6TENE.
BLEOIGHTEOT BLI&ERHE BeoeoludGssw
SV GPODULD FHOHHEHETOT SLIGEHSHS
BemOLLGSSI BTOSHOSTLITES (LPeDMEMILILILD LDHMILD
QFWIEDLPEDMEBEHEHTET  SBLITHEHHES SHPLILIEDLH6m6T
SLRSMBLD SODIGPEODEDWIL|D auhiE SlpedLBGSHS
SpUbNSEH  OippeEner  eumdbuler  WPpwHEseT
GURIBIWIMETEH LMeed 2 UUBSLLER ghUGSSLILILL
GuwbuGHSHLULULL cpeoer O erel@
SN G PMDEEHSHSHTET 66w [T U 60 D & 6 6T
SeOLIIRUILSNES 256 BnEl.

61 MRI & LI 60T &l LI IT 610 6D 2
ghuGSsSLILLL  GDUESSILLL  cLpSHET  SleTeli®
SN GWPMDEEHHSHTET 66w [T U 60 M & 6W 6
seoLUUSDHE 2 S6ydngl. eumBwmerg Lleer 2
BLsemenm  SleelIBEUSDOSENS  6(H  EUEDI(LPEDDEMIL
2 _meunsduetengl. Ged ungs femel  eurkiBufeor
NS (pemmLILIY 65 (LPLPEMLDUITEDT CLPEDSEDT SHE0T60 6mME)
WHITE WPedD EUEDT(LPEDDEENET 2 [HEUMSHBILETENS!.
8z eeuell BmieucmiseTmed GangHemerr QFLIWLILILILG
2 _miF eFiwiULGeTengl.

eumBwneory  ungbuflwibmesr  Slemefledt
SlgliuemLuled  SlewDBHH  HEOL(PEODE6MedBHSI
SLun@sefetr SlQLILIEDLILIENELDHS HEDL (LPeNDHEHHE
LDMMIUSHSTS 6 2 miHwiner LOMILD  6XEhehmeor
Leunmest  BHOMOM  6flemed  BreooTLl  (LPDMEMULI
SlbeoLBsBU6Tengl.  euRIBWITeTEH  Heordl  GeumiuL
eIy SLTsEnH@ ShSHI6UNS 6UEDIEMLDUITET CLPEDSEDT
SR eTsHemH uprwfluu@sn®  eurm & ull er
PHOLLTETTHEBSGLD, — SISHLIQUITET  OMUSHDS
Q&EMNBLUSHES LUTELGSDSI.
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to support the execution of its growth plans and
business strategies, while meeting the regulatory
capital requirements at all times.

Strengthening the Resilience: Basel-lll Initiatives
Basel-Ill guidelines which are a comprehensive set

of reforms, to strengthen the regulation, supervision and
risk management of the banking sector were issued by
Reserve Bank of India in May 2012. Liquidity Risk
Management and Basel-lll framework on Liquidity

Standards were alsoissued in July 2012.

The capital standards and new capital buffers will
require banks to hold more capital and higher quality of
capital than under the current Basel Il rules. The new
leverage ratio introduces a non-risk based measure to
supplement the risk-based minimum capital

requirements.
The new liquidity ratios under Basel-Ill framework

on Liquidity Standards ensure that adequate funding is
maintained. The Bank is complying with RBI guidelines
in computing and reporting the Liquidity Coverage Ratio

(LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NFSR) norms.
Our Bank has been proactively conducting internal

assessment of adequacy of capital, liquidity ratios and
leverage ratios in accordance with Basel-1ll standards.
The Bank's capital position is in compliance with Basel-
Il expectations, well above the minimum requirements.

21.Board of Directors

eurmiBwineorg  PLwneor  ewng umG ICAAP
CLPELBHENT &S eligGHema LTSS C\&Te0o® eurkiBuledt
euemisdl  SLLMSERSHGSLD emuny 2 HBHEhHELD
ShBTEUTS 2_6TEMS).

Limeroed 3 (LpwlhaAGeT :

uremsd 3 elHWPemmSBET GURIBSH  HEMMEWLL
6ueDlemLDLILGSHSIUSDELD, SHETOTSHTEULILSNELD LDHMILD
8L GenetorembéET&aD uMps Mamel  eumiduimed
2012 G s eeuefuiL ULl @b (P LDEDLDWITEOT
ENSHSHHLONGSLD.
GLeonevoremd  LDOHMILD  LMeroed 3 eXP(LpemmE6TiedTLLR

ueoorLLLp&s  GCamiun@ser &L
LeooTLIL|LP&S Gamun@GaeT eeuerfiui L L gi.

yBw cpeogeor QpBlpenmaerieorue SDELITSieTer
umemed 2  elSwpemmseafeotue  HevorsELLILIGBLD
CPEOBEOTHMS  SHITLIQEILD
amesEnsE CHemaulluGEDs.
aprlpenpaaierue LS
Gungioneor B eweusBBLLMS 2 MiF CFILISDSI.
GURIBWIMGOTEHI [BLD  [BMLIRME&GTEOT LIGOOTLILLDES 6MB&LD
oL Ber B8 eldzsemp
&emL L1115 M & meor Mflemel  eumiBufed

OIFHLDMET  ELPEDSHEOTLD
LIT6ro6d 3

Biemwn  eNdBmisen

15 60 60 Wi T 60T
ungs
B (LpemmaEemeN eTHTCHMTSHSI|ETENSI.

[BLDG| EUBIBIITEOTSH] (LP6OT [FL6UIEHEMEWITES LITE6D
3 apmlpenmaefeorie cpeogHer GHemel, LIGTOTLILLDSES
NEFMIGET DOMILD LMIS cLPOSOTIHEDES HLEDISHETE0T
amBuleor cpeosenm Mg umeved 3
el B pemmaefieonuly GHemeulILBLD GHenDHSLILE Slemene
L e SlPsnsGer 2_eTengl.

The Board of the Bank as on March 31, 2018 consisted of 12 Directors. During the year under review
(2017-18) and as on date the composition of Board was as under:

SNo.| Name Designation Particulars
1| Thiru K.V.Rama Moorthy MD & CEO Majority sector (Banking)
2 | Thiru S. Annamalai Non Executive Part-time Chairman | Minority Sector
3 | Thiru S. R. Ashok Director Additional , Minority Sector
4 | Thiru D.N.Nirranjan Kani Director Additional , Minority Sector
5 | Thiru B. S. Keshava Murthy | Director Independent, Majority sector (Banking)
6 | ThiruA. Shidambaranathan | Director Independent, Majority sector (Accountancy)
7 | Thiru P. C. G. Asok Kumar Director Majority Sector (SSI)
8 | Thiru K. Nagarajan Director Independent, Majority sector (Law, Agriculture & Rural Economy)
9 | Thiru B. Vijayadurai Directar Independent, Majority sector (Accountancy)
10| Tmt S.Ezhil Jothi Director Additional, Majority sector (Corporate Law)
11| DrK.V.Rajan Director RBI Nominee
12| Thiry Anup Kumar Director RBI Nominee

E




96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018

' Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead of life

All Directors, other than Managing Director and
CEOQO are non-executive Directors on Board.
The composition of the Board of Directors is governed
by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Companies
Act, 2013, and the Code of Conduct on Corporate
Governance adopted by the Bank. The Board
comprises of 12 Directors as on 31.03.2018, with rich
experience and specialized knowledge in various areas
of relevance to the Bank, including banking,
accountancy, small scale industry, agriculture,
Excluding the MD & CEO, all other members of the
Board are Non-Executive Directors and four Directors
out of the total twelve Directors are Independent
Directors. Declaration has been obtained from the
Independent Directors as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.
The remuneration and other benefits paid to MD & CEO
of the Bank and other Non-Executive and Independent
Directors during the financial year 2017-18 are
disclosed in Corporate Governance Report.

22. Changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors and other Key Managerial Personnel

As per the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approval of RBI vide its
letter No. DBR. Appt. No. 12067/08.55.001/2016-17
dated April10, 2017 and subject to the approval of the
members in the general meeting as required under the
Companies Act, 2013, Thiru K.V.Rama Moorthy was
appointed as the Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank for a period of three years
with effect from September 4, 2017.

Smt Shivavel Ezhil Jothi (DIN: 07772888) was re -
appointed as the Additional Director of the Bank with
effective from October 4, 2017 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 149 (1) (b) and 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 after automatic vacation of office
on September 30, 2017.

The Board of Directors at their Meeting held on 28th
October 2017 co-opted the Thiru S.R.Ashok and Thiru
D.N.Nirranjan Kani as additional director pursuant to the
provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
the place of Thiru S.R.Aravind Kumar and Thiru
V.V.D.N.Vikraman, who resigned on 27th October 2017.
RBI had appointed Thiru Anup Kumar as an additional
Director vide their letter dt.27.10.2017 in the place of
Thiru K.N.Rajan, who retired Thiru P.Yesuthasen has
automatically vacated his office on 25.11.2017 upon
completion of his 8 year term, as per Section 10A(2A) of
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Brieuns SWs@SHT LDOMID HeWEewLD  [Bieuns
oiganfl seiy Slewesgs SWSGSHTHEBLD CFWIOSTIT
BWSGSHTEHET SpeUNTaEeT. SWHGSHT GLP SlemLDLILMETS)
6URIS GQLPEIGLPEMD FLLLD 1949, Bmieuerr sLLLD 2013
OMILD EURIBWITED ghmis edmeTeruurL.  STTULGTL
&6EUITE0TE0T6D [FLHMS 6¥F ShBl FLLeNBLPenDSEHEHE
2 U@ 2 (HeunssLULLBETeng. SWsSESBT &(LDeUTeoTs),
s Slgniueud bOHMID eurkiBulwied, Hevorsdiied, fm)
QBMBled&EnGHENeT Hemm, efleusmud Gumeotm LedGeum)
slenmsefed eurld sMibHe Ly SiDleyLedr &snlowl 12
BWsGDHTHEemeT 2_eTenLsSWjeTengl. Bieuns SWsESHT
sefy DD SWESSHISEET CFWesTIT  SWHESHITSH6T

spauniser. 12 SwsGhisefed, 4 SusGbiseT
HeoTeiFemFWTeOT SWHSHIHET  SheUNHsear.
BnieueTsFLLD 2013601 LR  &60T60NFemFUITEDT

BwsEpisefLLb 2 nBamsl auDLILLB6TengI.
2017-181b  BHwinevoriged.  [Brieuns  SWSGSH.

QEFWeFTTUDD DOMILD & 60T 60fl & 6w & Wi IT 60T

BWsEHTHEDGE 6UPMISLILGELD 2oduild hnIb Ss

cRImEHET Bmeuer Seuss  Sinlsensuied
QeuefluiL L GeTeng.
22. BuwsGniser & womib  19n  (psdw

GLpeomevoremLd LisooflufLSH&6D LDIHMIRISET :

Buwipeotld  OMILD  2wrBuis@peieot  LiflbgiemnD
OMID umgs Mfemel eurmBufedr eguUged 10, 2017
Gsduir DBR. Appt.No.12067/08.55.001/2016-17
QUILSHED HleBSHHe0T LIQU|LD, [Bmieueors &L LLD 2013601 SLp
CopemeulLBLD  GUBLABIT  UMHSSLP  snllSHHeo
2_mi UL eor I & erfl 6ot RUUS Q&S 2 LuL®
B®.K.V.gmoeprisd — Bieuns  Sws@BmT  LDOHMILD
Hemeoemd  Brieuns  SiFsmilwins  BwILSISSLILLLIT.
Bmwd.fAeuBeued  erfled G  (DINO7772888)
BmieuerseLLb 2013 Wifley 149(1)(b) wHmd 161-6dT LI
BWwsGHT &Weldlphg QFLILLDUT 30, 2017 Sletm)
elGefsaslLLLnT. Sigenier WeorG SH&ELIUT 4,
2017 WPs6ed FnBsH60 SWsHESHINS BUILBISSLILILLTT

2017 SsGLmur 28 &b Csd mewLOUDD
BWHGHTHET G Sal L HH0, S&GLmum 27, 2017-6d
8®.S.R.epapewni. Se.V.V.D.N.afé&8yer
SpBGwnm  pregdevrmbm  QAFWISHMESG  LUBHONSH
B1.S.R.&1@snmé womid Sab.D.N.Bretrectraeil snGs6d
BwsEnises CobesBasLILLLeT. famel eumid
Bm.Co.efl.pngevfleor usedsmed  27.10.2017-86d
PReIemLHHMS OSTLIHE  HdH. A UGSLDIT
Sleusemen Fa(BHd SWHGHINSG BWLOSSTH. 6URIS
Q(LPRIGLPEOD 1949 10A(2A) @&edruig
Bm.P.gasnger Sleursefledr ugeisneobd 25.1.2017
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After retirement of Thiru P.Yesuthasen, Independent
director, the board of director has re-designated Thiru K.
Nagarajan (DIN 02274426) and Thiru B. Vijayadurai.
(DIN 07403509) as Independent director of the bank
w.e.f 19.01.2018 subject to the approval of Members in
the ensuing AGM for a period of 5 Years.

Thiru CS Prakash Chandra Panda was appointed
as a company secretary of the Bank with effect from
17th April, 2017.

23. Appointment of independent directors

In tune with the definition of Independent Director as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of Companies Act,
2013 and based on the confirmation/disclosures
received from the Directors, the following are classified
as Independent Directors of the Bank as on the date of
this report

1. ThiruB. S. Keshava Murthy (DIN 06965816)
2. ThiruA. Shidambaranathan (DIN 02904738)
3. ThiruK. Nagarajan (DIN 02274426)

4. ThiruB. Vijayadurai.(DIN 07403509)

24. Declaration by independent directors

As mentioned elsewhere Thiru B.S. Keshava
Murthy, Thiru A. Shidambaranathan, Thiru K.Nagarajan
and Thiru B.Vijayadurai Independent Directors have
given their declarations as referred to in sub-section (7)
of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the effect
that they meet the criteria of independence as provided
inthe Act.

25. Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 the Bank has appointed Smt
Shivavel Ezhil Jothi (DIN: 07772888) as Woman
Director on the Board of the Bank.

26. Directors' Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(5) of the
Companies Act2013, itis hereby confirmed that

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the
financial year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the accounting policies adopted by the Bank has
been applied consistently and  judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank
at the end of the financial year 2017-18 and of the profit
of the Bank for that period;

Oledim)| 8 ShevorB&EET [BedMEY ELUDMENS OSTLITHS
BneoTnsGe SlgeuessHed Shhgl 6NIGeNSSLILILLTIT.
Bm.Pagssnger qiey eupm HUnG

BwesenpT GUWenerg Sab.K.Bregmeger
(DIN02274426) wpmib Sam.B.elgwgeny
(DINO7403509) SLECWnem T 6 ! & ud eor
SHETEvllFEMFWITEDT  BWHGSHITE 5  eUBLBISEBHE

Bwuwsss. AGM-8e6é 2 miulfer s efer
euUUsasGLUL® Sa.C.S.0psnee &hSom  LmesorLT
euRBuleoT BmieueTE QFWIeOTen NS gLyed 17, 2017
(Wp&ed BUILSISSLILILLITT.

23. BHE0T60NFEDFITEOT SIS S HTSH6M60T [BUILDEUTLD :
Bmjeuenr sULD 2013 9fley 149(6)&edr

8p ufibgiewy  QFLWOULL  SeoTeoflFemaWwmeoT
BWHGHTHEHSHHTET EUMTIIENTIL|L 6T SUISGHTSH6rMLLD
8mha eupluLL 2 NSLESSIHHD / eeueMiILBSSISHED
SpBweunmleor SlpliLemLuied euenFLNIGSILLL  &Hs
Snflsensuien Caded LNeT 6URIBUN6T 560T60!F6mEFUITEOT
BWSGHITEH6T 6T6lT EUEDSLILGSSLILL (BET6TEOTT.

1. B1.B.S.Cageucpisd (DIN06965816)

2. 8. A.Agbupmprgeor (DIN02904738)

3. Bap. K. prasgmegeor (DIN02274426)

4. 8m.B.algwgiemy (DIN07403509)

24. BHe0TevflFensIWITe0T SWwisEbiiserfeor Sinfleili

8®.B.S. Gasgaueprins .
Bm.A.Asbugpnger,  Hap.K.pregneger  woOMID
B.B.elgwigieny SpBw seoteoflFemnswIneT SWsESbTssT
2013 &b Shevor® Bmieveot sLLLD fley 149 o L iifley
@ & GO GeTeMLY HEIGET SifleflLsener
6ULDTRIE 2_6iT6rmeDTIT.

25. QLI600T SWISGHIT

slbuesfl  &LULWD 149 &b Ufledeor
efi@asefleoT Ll e6umld &fed 66T SWHSHITS
Bmws.feuBeusd  eTfleoBxmrnd  (DINO7772888)
BBl SLILILLTIT.

26. SWHGHTSH6T GILMMILIL|60TTEY AM&Hems

BmieuentmigeT  FULLD 2013 9fley

134(B)8e1 & Comansd Seovms &g
2_mIBUGSSLILILBETENS.

Sl 2018 &pb ShevoTiEedT DM 31 &bl

GCsd (pipeuemLBES  BHWIMETOTIENSTET  6UIBHLMHET
HEOUTHEEMS  SWMTLLSD OUNIBHSHInIUl  HEOOTEHBILIED

apBlpemnaser  NeOTUDMULILLET. (6w MUl Teor
eNen&&MmIGEHLD SlerflebaLILIL(BeTengl.
. UBISWINED  ghmis  Q&meTemiLLL

BEU0THGS CIETeTemSHE6T ASMTLTFAWNS LWLITLUGSSLILLB
eudpBeotmeor. Geyb  Siliyser OHMILD  LBITGSET
SpBuwiemey 2017-18 BFwimevorigedr SmBuied eursiBueor
efleurmiseflsdt 2 _evoremibuinest LbOHMILD  GrBemLDWITeDT
LUMTemeNenW]  GULPHBIGOUSNES  BWMLILDT6OTSTHEYLD,
Si&sMeLILGHUT0 SoMUsSSnHENEa|LD JnaLILLL .
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(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for

preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;
(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts for

the financial year ended on March 31, 2018, on a going

concern basis;
(e) the directors had laid down internal financial

controls to be followed by the Bank and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were

operating effectively; and
(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

27. Details of contracts or arrangements with

related parties
No contracts or arrangements in the nature referred

to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 read with Rule 15 of
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014 were entered into by the Bank with related parties
during the year under review. The details of
remuneration paid to the Managing Director & CEO
forms part of the 'notes to accounts' pursuant to the
requirement of Accounting Standard 18. However, as
the office of Managing Director is not a place of profit as
defined in Section 188, no disclosure with regard to the
said payment of remuneration is annexed to this report.

28. Board Level Performance Evaluation
The Companies Act, 2013 stipulates evaluation of

the performance of the Directors including Chairman,
Board and its Committees. In terms of the said
provisions, the Bank has devised the process and the
criteria for the performance evaluation, duly approved
by the Board. The process for formal annual

performance evaluation is as under:
Committee of Independent Directors at their separate

meeting evaluates the performance of Non-
Independent Directors including Chairman of the Bank

and the Board as awhole.
The Board evaluates the performance of the

Independent Directors (excluding the director being
evaluated) and submits its report to the Nomination &
Remuneration committee.

8. BwsGHT GW Bnieuers &L He0r
2013 &b Shevorigedt  eNPserfleotile,  eurkIBuledT
QFTHSHIHHEMETL LNHISMILSHGSD Gonsle opmid Wn

PRIBOHMENEUENET  HEBHHD LDOMILD  &H60oTLBISHED
SpBweunrmens GUNEILDTET HeUoIHGSL  LIB6)SemerT
upmofliusmE  Ppewowimesr  OMILD  GuTgILbmeoT

SlssHemn TBSHSIH OBTEITLF.

FF-. 2018 b &pevonigedr o 31 Spb Cad
YpeiemLbs B  SheuppETEr  QIBLIHED
&60015HGHHEM6T SWHSBTSHET SWIMSHSHI6T6meotT.

o . BWHGHTHeT  SIDOLBSDU|6Ten 26T
BFs  sLEUUTESET  eumBwmed  NerunmUiLGSEng
LHmID OiHHemasw 2 eMBHs  HLBEUUTGS6T
GungibmeTemauInea|D SbULe|D eFweLIGS6TmeoT
LDOHMLD

er, Bwaesomms e, g w meor
apBlpennsenel  HULLOILG OUMIEHEILD SleweoTHS
sLLMseMer  elPpempuiedr LR  SeUmIGaSDS

GurgibmaTsTsad  HDOUL  OFWEOLBUSTHELD
CUGSSIETET6OTIT.
27. GUBIBWILEOT  OSHMLITLemLWeUTSCenn(®  OFls

QLILIHSBISET Sl6De0G 2L 60TLISHen&UN60T efLTRISET
ahs @b QUUHSMBEHL  ADOg

2 | eTLIRGEDSBSEBLD BmieuenssLLID 2014 afd Lifley

188601 2 LI9fley (MDed (umS @ LOMID Sigeor

OFBNIMIGET)  eUmE  OHNLTYemLWeur&erflLLD
gnuGsSsLLLEeNeenen. Brieuns Suis@mpT 2ohul efiugd
seOTHEGPemD  efF 1860 GMIUNLBeTerLl
BT & GHHEbHHMeT 6l 6 & & MRl & 6T & p
QaMBE&SLILIL(BET6ME.

28. BWsGh GLp O1FWedBedT BLITEH :

sLbeenll FLULLD, 2013 HemeeuT &GP LDMHMILD
ST  GUWHHET 2 eTaflllL SwEGbTserer
eFwWeBnemeoT WHISIE OFLSDG. EmpUULL  eNSser
SlglinenLufed, eurBiBuledr 6lFwOBNeT LIS IpHaTeT
QFWIEDPemD LDOHMILD SllgliLienL&emem SLULLSIL [Biieurs
SLPeNETTEd  QLILGHED  GULPRIBLILILBETENS.  UBLAHST
eFwedmet LS ghaTeT  OFwewenn  SGL
Q&MGBHSLILIL(BETETS.

1. peTevfigemEwIneT SuwsGBhIsaiar G
Sleursafiett Heofll  Snl LEHHO HeOTevllFemns  Sleeons
BWsGHTEH6T, 6URIBUINEIT SHemeoeurT LDOHMILD Bieuns &rp
2 LIl Sleusefen OFWBDenet AIIE OFLBDS.

2.8WeEBHT G OHEOT  HevTesllsenFIITeT
BwsGeiaeiedr  Fwednemeor  LHIIG  OFLF
(LISE eFLIWD SWwsEHenT Sefy) BWILDETD LbHMILD
2P 15G(LPEYHE SNGe0T Sinflbenaenil FDMINGSEDE!.
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The Board evaluates the performance of Board level
committees. Nomination & Remuneration Committee
evaluates/reviews the performance of each Director
and recommends the appointment/ reappointment/
continuation of Directors to the Board. Based on the
recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Board will take appropriate action.

29. Bank's policy on directors' appointment and
remuneration

The Bank has a Board approved Compensation
Policy which deals with the Compensation & Benefits of
the Employees of the Bank and Managing Director &

CEO.
As a banking company, the bank is required to have not

less than fifty-one percent of its directors, fulfilling the
specified eligibility criteria referred to in Section 10 A (2)
of Banking Regulation Act, 1949. Further, for
determining the independence of directors the Bank
strictly follows the criteria laid down in sub-section (6) of
Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013.

The remuneration of the MD & CEO is
recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC) to the Board for approval after
considering the factors prescribed under the
Compensation Policy. The Board considers the
recommendations of NRC and approves the
remuneration, with or without modifications, subject to
shareholders' and regulatory approvals. The
remuneration payable to MD & CEO is subject to prior
approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Therefore,
the remuneration or any revision in remuneration to MD
& CEOQ is payable only after receipt of the approval from
RBI.

The other non-executive directors are paid only
sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board and
its Committees. None of the directors including the MD
& CEO receives any profit linked remuneration. The
sitting fees payable to the non-executive directors did
not undergo any change during the year 2017-18.

30. Board/Committee meetings
The Bank"s Board met 21 times, and its sub-committees

including the Committee of Directors held a total of 95
meetings during the year 2017-2018 as follows.

3.8WHEGHIGLD SNHeT GLP [Bemed G(Lpsseriedr
eFwebdnemeor  LHUNEBSDE.  [BwbeoTd  LDHMILD
oG SWs@bisefer eFwednener HIIE /
LOMISHIIE)] EFLIEDS LDOMILD SwisESmTeefeor BUILD6DTLD
/ wnpBuibend / Bessed ufbgenrsslLGBSDE.
Buwipeorb  bHMID  exFuisGLp  ufibglengufeor L
Brieuns & 2l BLelgsems aTBHSLILGLD.

29. BwsEnisefer BUILDEID DHMILD Serduibd Lm
GURIBUNEOT O&TETEmS :

6l MRl & W I 60T &l Breunms
8 Gse
oo SlITSHEBHSLD, [Bieuns SWsESHT HenedemiD Bieuns

& (Lp 6U IT 6D

Smssfssliur L QBMETems  6UMRIS

SlFanfle@LD LNIBHSIEUSTS OSHT600TBETETSI.

ame  QUWREGWsHn FULD 1949 Udifley
1081(2)-60TUIR W s GHTs 6T sbUsH gl Qb
e5NHHEDGLD  GODOUTE  S(HEHEHEH8m LTSN
8nmluuems BeomGeupnl o 6Teng. UM

Bws@niselen &sbhdrsems Sioneiliuded o Liifey
6. Yfley 149, seenll FULD 20136d GWILLILGeTem
efligaemen NeoTLHM)BMSI.

Brieuns SWsGHT OHMID HeMEDenLD [Bieuns
Sifsnfluieor oowfuisHems [BUWIDETD LOMILD 2Bl
&weletr b UlbglemI&sEILGLD SMTIetisensT &dhSH60
6&MeooT6 SWESHT G sl LHPed QUG SILLIEGLD.
NRC-eor &([HSHP 6D
URIGSNITEefleor OMID famel eumiBuleor SlenIpBsE

urflib slem T & emer Q& mevor(®

2 'L, LDAMHDRIGEHLETT Slebedg E6DEDMDed DergiLiLd
MD&CEO-s& 6s55
Geuevorigw eeruid lgmel eumiBufedr (pedT SleDILDSHEHE

omésfssluGEns.

o rucrg. MD&CEO-efer soduisded gGsemid
LomHLD SephsTed ShPw famel eurnBuler 6LILSHIHE
YeoreoTCy O\&BM(BEHSLILIGBLD.

QEFWesTIT  SWsHSHIHEHSHS
SLL60OTLD [BIT6NT&S &P LDOHMILD SHSH60T SI6metoT & (Lpexled

2 _L&MIHSHED

&60IhGl E\BMETLIEIHSS LBEL asn@GsslILGSEng. MD
& CEO 2_sierflL. SWIESHTHEBEES GOMLILD FLDLIBSLILIL L
oorfuildb QHETE&HESLULGEUSEODED.
8Ws GBS EHsE
BLLe0UTHHE0 2017-186D 61h% 6(H LDMDHM(LPLD EedemeD.

aFweETym

sMB&H&SLIUGBLD 2 _I'&MIHS 6D

30. SW&EGHIT G (LD LDHMILD &|6WE0TEHLD Fnl LIBISH6H

2017-18  &Levoriged  6uMmIS Ul 60T
BWsEGHT G 21 (PedDU|LD HEWeTOT GLpSH&H6T 95
(PEDDU|LD FnlQU|GTETSI.
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Sl.No. Date of Board Meeting ereoor | BWESBT Fal LD BewLoUDD Cad
1. 24.04.2017 1. 24.04.2017
2. 15.05.2017 2. 15.05.2017
3. 17.05.2017 3. 17.05.2017
4. 29.05.2017 4. 29.05.2017
5. 14.06.2017 5. 14.06.2017
6. 10.07.2017 6. 10.07.2017
7. 08.08.2017 7. 08.08.2017
8. 18.08.2017 8. 18.08.2017
9. 04.09.2017 9. 04.09.2017
10. 09.09.2017 10. 09.09.2017
1. 19.09.2017 1. 19.09.2017
12. 06.10.2017 12. 06.10.2017
13. 27.10.2017 13. 27.10.2017
14, 28.10.2017 14, 28.10.2017
15. 10.11.2017 15. 10.11.2017
16. 27.11.2017 16. 27.11.2017
17. 21.12.2017 17. 21.12.2017
18. 19.01.2018 18. 19.01.2018
19. 07.02.2018 19. 07.02.2018
20. 02.03.2018 20. 02.03.2018
21. 21.03.2018 21. 21.03.2018
Sl.No. Name of the Committee Date of Meeting
1. Audit Committee 24.04.2017
2. Audit Committee 04.05.2017
3. Audit Committee 13.06.2017
4. Audit Committee 14.06.2017
5. Audit Committee 10.07.2017
6. Audit Committee 20.09.2017
7. Audit Committee 07.10.2017
8. Audit Committee 04.11.2017
9. Audit Committee 08.12.2017
10. Audit Committee 21.12.2017
1. Audit Committee 01.02.2018
12. Audit Committee 01.03.2018
13. Management Committee 25.04.2017
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SI.No. Name of the Committee Date of Meeting
14 Management Committee 16.05.2017
15 Management Committee 30.05.2017
16 Management Committee 11.07.2017
17 Management Committee 14.07.2017
18 Management Committee 28.07.2017
19 Management Committee 09.08.2017
20 Management Committee 17.08.2017
21 Management Committee 08.09.2017
22 Management Committee 07.10.2017
23 Management Committee 28.10.2017
24 Management Committee 10.11.2017
25 Management Committee 28.11.2017
26 Management Committee 09.12.2017
27 Management Committee 22.12.2017
28 Management Committee 06.01.2018
29 Management Committee 20.01.2018
30 Management Committee 08.02.2018
31 Management Committee 03.03.2018
32 Management Committee 22.03.2018
33 Capital Planning Committee 17.11.2017
34 Customer Service Committee 13.06.2017
35 Customer Service Committee 08.09.2017
36 Customer Service Committee 22.12.2017
37 Customer Service Committee 22.03.2018
38 Fraud Monitoring Committee 16.05.2017
39 Fraud Monitoring Committee 09.08.2017
40 Fraud Monitoring Committee 28.11.2017
41 Fraud Monitoring Committee 03.03.2018
42 HRM Committee 25.04.2017
43 HRM Committee 11.07.2017
44 HRM Committee 07.10.2017
45 HRM Committee 10.11.2017
46 HRM Committee 20.01.2018
47 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 08.02.2018
48 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 20.03.2018
49 Independent Directors Committee 21.03.2018
50 IT Strategy Committee 25.04.2017

& s
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SI.No. Name of the Committee Date of Meeting
51 IT Strategy Committee 13.06.2017
52 IT Strategy Committee 09.08.2017
53 IT Strategy Committee 08.09.2017
54 IT Strategy Committee 28.10.2017
55 IT Strategy Committee 22.12.2017
56 IT Strategy Committee 20.03.2018
57 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 24.04.2017
58 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 28.10.2017
59 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 19.01.2018
60 NPA Monitoring Committee 25.04.2017
61 NPA Monitoring Committee 11.07.2017
62 NPA Monitoring Committee 28.11.2017
63 NPA Monitoring Committee 08.02.2018
64 Risk Management Committee 30.05.2017
65 Risk Management Committee 11.07.2017
66 Risk Management Committee 28.10.2017
67 Risk Management Committee 20.01.2018
68 Risk Management Committee 22.03.2018
69 Share Transfer Committee 02.05.2017
70 Share Transfer Committee 29.05.2017
71 Share Transfer Committee 13.06.2017
72 Share Transfer Committee 24.06.2017
73 Share Transfer Committee 15.07.2017
74 Share Transfer Committee 09.08.2017
75 Share Transfer Committee 08.09.2017
76 Share Transfer Committee 19.09.2017
77 Share Transfer Committee 07.10.2017
78 Share Transfer Committee 27.10.2017
79 Share Transfer Committee 28.11.2017
80 Share Transfer Committee 09.12.2017
81 Share Transfer Committee 22.12.2017
82 Share Transfer Committee 06.01.2018
83 Share Transfer Committee 20.01.2018
84 Share Transfer Committee 06.02.2018
85 Share Transfer Committee 23.02.2018
86 Share Transfer Committee 16.03.2018
87 Wilful Defaulters Committee 11.07.2017
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SI.No. Name of the Committee Date of Meeting

88 Wilful Defaulters Committee 03.03.2018

89 Committee of Directors 29.05.2017

90 Committee of Directors 14.06.2017

91 Committee of Directors 03.07.2017

92 Committee of Directors 11.07.2017

93 Committee of Directors 01.08.2017

94 Committee of Directors 18.08.2017

95 Committee of Directors 04.09.2017

Directors Name No of Board No of _Board No 9f co:?n(i)tftee
meetings held meetings Cor.nmlttee meetings
attended | Meetings held attended

Shri.S.Annamalai 21 20 15 15
Shri S.R.Aravind Kumar 13 13 28 28
Shri.P.C.G.Asok Kumar 21 16 40 34
Smt S.Ezhil Jothi 21 21 13 13
Shri.B.S.Keshava Murthy 21 20 43 43
Shri.K.Nagarajan 21 21 48 48
Shri K.N.Rajan 11 10 10 9
Shri K.V.Rajan 21 21 29 29
Shri A.Shidambaranathan 21 21 74 74
Shri.B.Vijayadurai 21 21 62 62
Shri V.V.D.N.Vikraman 13 12 25 24
Shri P.Yesuthasen 15 12 19 14
Shri.S.R.Ashok 8 8 25 25
Shri.D.N.Nirranjan Kani 8 7 19 17
Shri.Anup Kumar 7 6 8 8
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31. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board is chaired by
Thiru A. Shidambaranathan, who is a Chartered
Accountant. The other members of the committee are
Thiru B. S. Keshava Murthy, Thiru K. Nagarajan, Thiru
B. Vijayadurai (Independent Directors) and Thiru
K.V.Rajan, Thiru Anup Kumar (RBI Nominee Directors).
The constitution of the Committee is in compliance with
the regulatory requirements. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are as per the Companies Act,
2013 and RBI guidelines.

32. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was

reconstituted with six directors as its members including
three independent directors and is in compliance with
the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act
2013 and RBI guidelines.

33. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship (SR)

31. 5600f&H6m&HEHELD :
56001 SH6m8

SLeleT  Hemeeugns 266
Bab.A.AHDLIBNHENT SlUTSH6T 6 LILLUI SHETUTSHSITENIT.
anflugdenr o nilferisems Hb.B.S.Casaucpiss.
Ba.K.prepnegeor,  Hap.B.eflgwgieny  (HeomevfiFems
Bws@missn) OO Sb.K.V.oneeor, Sib. SleniiGLomT
(RBI Buwibeor Bwis@misst) 2 _ererneort. &mbs SlemLbLIL

Bmeueor UL 2013  womib  flemel  eumid

QULIBTL BHEOEHEHHES S6ToTHSHLDNS 2_6T6g.

32. BUILDEUTLD LDMMILD 2eTBUIEEHLD :
wrhPlwenssuurL uflbgleny  OMID

B 1HELPENED CLPEOTT) HEOTEONFEDFUITETT SUIHSBITEHET
2 UL &ym 2 MLfeTTEensTs: Clsnevo@erengl. &g
Bmieueor FULb 2013 Wfley 178 womib rfleiel eurmid
QULBML BHEVEHEBHES S6T0TSHSHLDNSG _6T6Tg.
FepBUOUIMILL  GEp  LbMmmILD
UBIGSHTITSEM60T 2 _MeY(LDemm @GP :

3 3.l mieueor

Committee

The Bank has constituted a Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee of the Board in pursuance of
the requirements of Section 135 and a Stakeholders'
Relationship Committee of the Board in pursuance of
the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013. The CSR Committee met twice during the year
under review.

34. Annual General Meetings

The desire and the efforts of the Bank to conduct its
94th and 95th Annual General Meeting for the years
2016-17 and 2017-18 has not materialised so far
because the bank's petition moved before the division
bench of Madras High Court for holding AGMs is yet to
be heard. Bank has advised the legal counsel to
expedite early listing of the case in order to hold AGMs of
the bank.

35. Corporate Governance

The Bank's Corporate Governance philosophy is
woven around its total commitment to ethical practices
in the conduct of its business, while striving hard to
enhance the stakeholders' value. Your Bank has
endeavored to adopt the best corporate governance
practices across the spectrum of its activities. It also
adheres to the principles of transparency and
accountability in transactions, disclosure of information,

Wrfley 135 effsemer HNeTUOMILD 6UeMSUTED
GURIBWIMGOTH [BMI6U6DT Felpd GIUMMILIL GSLD 6Q60T6mMI|LD
Wirfley 178601 Bmieuenr FLLLD 2013 eflfsemen LleoTLIDMILD
2_pejpenn S
QMDD gDUBESSWG. BT &elpsll GLIMMILIL
S SeleuBLEHBD BT6etor® (P FHSSHSIGTETS!.

aUem&HUT6D LIMBI &SI &erfl 60T

34. eELMHBT 6ILNgH Sl L IBIS6T :

IRE 94 WOMID 95 EUBLMHST CUNSHIHELD
Snl LEIGET 2016-17 oMb 2017-18 ShetoiG HLHS
S8weoellevemed, &g FLOUMHSLOMENT euRIBUietT elensas
LDEOTIS 6D
eFILWILILL(B S6TenlD eNFTIemettTs:@ GUIILDED 2_6TeNgl.
UTEESL BLEBAUSDSG
BBOTDSSOBHS SleDIDd OUNEUSDS EuURISUI6DT
FLL euedgIenTrILLD SinfleymisBueTengi.

De) ~ 6\seTemedT 2 WIS BNHSHED

6 MBI & Wi IT 60T &

35. &b GLbedmevoremLD :
Ul &

@GemevoTEMID & & GI6ULD
uRGSDfledr LbElemL Sifsifles HiReTbns  (LPWmE
eFILgleTengl. GLoaID SigedT 6uettlls [HLHMSHUN6D 2_aiT6rm
QU &S &5 601
Oiriueoofiliy &OiL NeoTeoTlILL B6Tengl. 2 RIS6T 6URS

HEDL (LPEWM & 6T (P (LD EMLDILIT6E0T

6IMRIEEHEDEDMLD (LpLRW|GLDT SimIes6ede0ND &g Bmieueot

SpHEHEm&EUTNETT  [FeDL(pemm&EBemeT  LNedTUDDm  OLH
Ywpduled FEBULIRBHSS. S8 616tofls HLEUREEmSEET,
BHEeUHmeT  eeuafuiBHed,  QIRemLLLTG,  Feps
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integrity, social responsibilities, and statutory
compliance. The Bank has followed the directions and
guidelines issued by RBI from time to time regarding
Corporate Governance. Further, the Bank also adheres
to its time tested traditional values based on business
ethics and contribution to society as a principle.

It has also complied with the various requirements of the
CompaniesAct, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013 with
regard to corporate governance.

The Bank has set up the following committees of the
Board for focused governance in the important
functional areas and for effective control of the affairs of

eumpiiy UL eNPsemen &HewLLgSHd Shdwieumnied
GleuerfiLILEMLILITEDT E\&MeTem&Hemen LeoTLDMIBmE!. ek
BmieustT  Shemensuled  SleueuliGungl  GULPMISLILIEBLD
aBrpe»DEST DD MDD
auflen Gsedleoruye  aFweoLGSDg. GEIb ks
apmpled  OpUlPenDEEET  FALPESEDEG
GULDMRIGEUEMS C\SBTETENHWITS OFWIOLGSDE.

fl&men 6 i & ul 6ot

LDSLILIT60T

6unmIs BmieueoT Shepemaufed BmIeUeTs FLLLD
1956 WOHNID BMIEUETEFFLLLD 2013-6@ &6t0TeaHLDMLI
uebGeum ETHHSHSRIBEmET CFILIGIETENG. CURIS (PSS
QFWIEOLML(B LUGDe6rled 6urmis BLeUphenss6rled &iuimeor

HEUTILD  CFQSHUSDSLD  WOMID  SLGBUMTL DL
the Bank. sLUlRUIUSHGLD WeTaudl & W ésemer

SlemLDSHSIETENS).

S.No, Name of the Committee 6. 6T6T0] Gpeledr eI

1. Management Committee 1 Bieunss SevenseEp

2. | Information Technology Strategy Committee 2. | po6ued OFMPRILL OFLD SLLEGL

3. | Audit Committee 3. | sowlemasewp

4. | NPA Monitoring Committee 4. | O5WRUMLOD BB SUIETWIEED G

5. | Fraud Monitoring Committee 5 | Gunslp GaewmadT BELALDT EUeNdTeTITLD

6. Customer Service Committee MWWME@L? o .

- 6. CUMREBEMBIITETTEET CFmeUHELD
7 HRM Qommlttee : : 7. LDevfigeuen (GLDEOMETOTEMLDEE LD
8. | Disciplinary Committee (Appellate Authority 8. | oume pLapims 6w
for Officers) ©@gsieenssner GLEOWDUIE)

9 Risk Management Committee

9. 8L GLoeomenoremid &L

10. | Nomination and Remuneration Committee
11. | Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
12. | Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

13. | Share Transfer Committee

14. | Independent Directors Committee

15. | Capital Planning Committee

16. | Review of Willful Defaulters Committee

10. | [BUILDETLD LDMHMILD TS IBE LD

1l. FeLpE OILIMMLIL6TOTTEY &P

12. URIGSTITSET 2_DeyLPenn &P

13. | UMI@ OO G

14. | pevrevfisensuner SWSSHTEeT LD
15. CLPEOSENT S LEGLD

16. | Sonevoll SEHEHID SHLOUE OFUSSTS
sLemefaefen Loemmiiey SULs@&wp

The Bank has been exhibiting its keenness to reach and
maintain high standards in corporate governance by
constituting various committees, both mandatory and
non-mandatory, to guide the bank in crucial aspects of
banking business. As a mark of its urge to embark on the
path of excellence in corporate governance, the Bank
has chosen voluntarily to selectively adhere to the
provisions of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Bank considers
shareholders rights as paramount and takes all efforts to
protect that right as well as facilitate the participation of
shareholders to exercise the rights

eumiBwneorg  fApuuner G  GLoeometoTemLD

QswWeLBsHsS uGaum — GWssemeT  SHewLDSH S
CEBMETENHHEWEMILLD  6XFHewemLLd  FDHLBSSW|6TETSI.
8sem fAply Sibswons SEBlI e@umiewenn &L
LD O M| LD
GleuafilILGESIHD) 2015 &ed &evorBeien 6B (LpemmEHEm6IT

(BLe® D LI L1 Wi 6D G 5 6w 61 & W 61T

Weorupnl  euBEDE. EURIBWITETSH  UMIGSNITSH6r6e0r
2_rflemLbsemen LTHISMLILSDESLD LDOMILD UMRIGSNITEereor
umGaspemu  SFsMiusnGLD  eredeomellsLDmeoT

WPWhHFlHememLLD IBSS UBBDS!.
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36. Compliance Function

The bank has embraced compliance as a part of
good governance and not with the intention of being
purely regulatory in its approach. Hence, the Bank has
institutionalized a strong compliance culture and
mechanism across the organization, founded on the
principles of transparency and trust by involving all the
stakeholders. The Bank has a dedicated Compliance
Department headed by Deputy General Manager for
ensuring regulatory compliance, across all its
businesses and operations. The key functions of this
department includes, dissemination of key regulatory
updates affecting the various business verticals of the
Bank, review of processes from a regulatory compliance
perspective, provide guidance on compliance-related
matters, among others.

37. Compliance with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013

The Bank has complied with the various provisions
of the Companies Act,2013 to the extent that they are
applicable to the Bank.

38. Internal Auditors

The Bank is required to appoint an internal auditor
as per the requirements of Section 138, of The
Companies Act, 2013, who should either be a chartered
accountant or a cost accountant, or such other
professional as may be decided by the Board to conduct
internal audit of the functions and activities of the Bank.

As the Bank already has concurrent auditors,
internal inspecting officers, compliance department etc.
pursuant to the various requirements applicable to a
banking company, performing all the activities expected
to be done by the Internal Auditors, the requirement of
internal audit was already being complied with.

39. Statutory Auditors

M/s. Maharaj N R Suresh and Co., Chartered
Accountants, Chennai has vacated their position as the
Statutory Central Auditors of the Bank after completing 4
year of continuous service. The board of directors
placed their appreciation to M/s. Maharaj N R Suresh &
Co for service rendered. The Board of Directors has
recommended the appointment of M/s G.Balu
Associates LLP, Chennai as the Statutory Central
Auditors of the Bank for the year 2018-19, to Reserve
Bank of India. Their appointment is subject to the
approval of members at the Annual General Meeting.

36. eursls 19eoTumm] BemmGeumnm Geuevoriou lemese

6uRe  Heded  SHUufedT @B  USSWNs
BuHHEHMS FgOHMS OHTEOOUTLE.  OF60r
S gm & W em M ul e WP W em W Wwns
QUWmIGaBBlWpennaemer  UleTubDmnib
CI&MEUOTL G Sl6D6D. 6T60T(G6U 6UMRIS (LP(LDEUSILD 6MEI6NMEDT,
QR5SIEMLPLIL| HEOMFFMILD LDOMID SleWLDLIL| (LPLPEUGILD
BMICUGTLDWILDTGSLLLL . SleDe0THS LIBIGSNITHEBLD

CmrssLd

FLOUBSHLUULL  6GeuelUUMLSHEOTeMD  LDHMILD
BLONSmBEUNEOT  OBTeTenHEHmET  SlRLILIEDL TS
osnetoiLgl. Spmens  glewevor 6wung  GLbeomermT
Sleusefledr  HemeoewLDUID — SleMETHFH ~— CUTHSHS

BLOUIRSHEDS CIFWIDLITBEHEMET  HE00THTe00f&HSLILIGSDS!.
8setm WpeBW Crmessd eNunumy UTSLienU SeoorLmilseD,
wperGernme & b M M LD
ULPIBML(BHEDSHEMENILLD QULDMHIGBDSI.

asweu®BSs e

37. Bmeuent LD 2013-6drLle NedTUhHm Beuevorioulemel
2013-60T1LILR

GURIBWITGOTEHI  [BMIEN6DT  FLLLD
Bmieveosr sl Uifleysemer  QUTIHSSLOMEOT  (LPemDUT6D

QFWIOLBSS 6UBSDSI.

38. 2_61 &600l5H6m&EWIM6TTEHET :
Wirfley 138 Goemeuseafleorup eurmd @b ULLWIS

BEUUIGHSBT  SD0F 6 OlILHS LDPLL  SHEOTHSMILIT
Olebedgl LDHM OBMPlD (PpewD &FMHS [HLEDT 2 6T
Fevolisemawimengns  Buiblss — Geuetor(BLD  eTedTMILD
URISUIET QFWEOLITB&HET LDDMID [FLEUIRSENHSET 26
Heoolibems  QFILIWILILGBLD  eTedmIld  &peled  (Lpigey
QFLIWILLILL .

2 61 Hevolsemawmeniser  CHemeusGamu
aIRSWIed gnaEeTdal SHeoolebemaILITETTE6T, 2 6T Sbliiey

oigenfleer, Seuasgemn SHBECWNT 2 eTENHTEDd
GaupurL  Goemeusenld  ghseTGen  &evorésLd
QEWIwILILIL (BeTerTg).

39. FLLLULLTAILDTEN &6001&HemeIUITemTSH6l :
M/s.amgnes N.R.&Grele Slevor Gam Sleurrael

DSBS HeUOHENHIITENINS &SLHS [HeoTE ShevoTBSH6T
QFWELLB 6UbHSHEOTT. SUSGSHTHET L Oleursens
GFWEOLIT(B&HEMeN  LIMIMLIQU|6TeNg. SWSSBHTEeT &L

2018-1960r  eumIBUNEOT  FLLLULTEUDTEOT  LDSHHUI
seoofisenawnergna M/S.G.urey SIGsmAGweiv LLP,
6F6lTemenT  Sleusemen  Buwbles  ShSw  Merel

euRIBUILLD uflbgleny QFLIW (PIge) 6GIFIIH 2 6Tesl.
Seurserledr BUIDEOTLD 6UrBIBUIEIT SheTOTB ELINGIHE LD
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The proposed Auditors have confirmed their
eligibility to be so appointed in terms of Section 141 of
CompaniesAct, 2013.

40. Comments on Auditors' Report

The Notes on Accounts and the Significant
Accounting Policies referred to in the Auditor's Report
and forming part of the annual accounts and the
references made by the Auditors in their Report are self-
explanatory. The Auditors have not made any
observations or adverse comments warranting any
explanation on the part of the Board as referred to in
Section 134 (3) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013.

41. Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors

There is no fraud reported by auditors under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013

42. Secretarial Audit

As the Bank is a public company having a turnover
of more than 250 crore, in terms of Section 204 of
Companies Act, 2013, Secretarieal audit has to be
conducted and a report as prescribed in Form MR-3 of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is required to be
annexed to this report.

Accordingly, the Bank had appointed M/s P Sriram &
Associates, , Practicing Company Secretaries, Chennai
as its Secretarial Auditors to conduct the secretarial
audit of the Bank for the FY 2017-18. The report of the
Auditoris annexed as Annexure 2

There are no material remarks or observations in
the report which require any explanation on the part of
the Board, except the following:

(i) Regarding compliance with Section 12 (1) of

Banking Regulation Act, 1949: -.

The Bankis taking effective steps to comply same.
(i) Regarding non conduct of AGM:-

We are waiting for High Court order for early conduct

of AGMs.

(iii) Regarding the requirement of appointing CFO:-

The Bank is taking steps to appoint / re-designate a

executive as CFO.

(iv) Other observation made by the Secretarial Auditor
will be complied in due course.
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43. Compliance to Secretarial Standards
The relevant Secretarial Standards issued by the

Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and
adopted by MCA have been complied with by the Bank.

44. Funding sources of renewable energy
The Bank has been supporting and financing

various activities for development of alternative energy
generation. The Bank recognizes Wind and solar
energy as main sources of best renewable, pollution
free energy throughout the year and considers funding
these initiatives as its contribution to the worldwide effort
against global warming. Accordingly, bank encourages
setting up of solar panels by financing Solar energy
generation plants. The Bank has also taken various
steps to conserve energy in its premises

45. Corporate Social Responsibility
As stated elsewhere the Bank has constituted a

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and
has also adopted a CSR Policy. The policy document is
available on the Bank's website. The disclosure in
respect of the CSR activities of the Bank as required to
be made as per the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is given at Annexure 3.
The Bank has spent an amount of [12.21 Crore

towards CSR out of the mandatory CSR of 1 10.55
Crore as per the Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. The amount does not cover the entire portion of
the budget as per the CSR stipulation. To ensure that the
amount earmarked for CSR is spent effectively and
CSR activities are taken up professionally, the Bank has
decided to set up a trust with the exclusive authority of
spending the corpus which will be contributed from the
mandated CSR spending. The trust will identify, plan
and execute various schemes for social welfare and
upliftment in areas which will be identified by the Trust
and trustees. The spending will be properly channelized
for the wholesome benefit of the weak, marginalised
and the needy segments of the society. The process for
creating the trust has already commenced, and will be
operative shortly.

43. Q5W6E SIHeNe0&HEHEE SBetuImbIGSH6D
BMIEUETTHSHE0T  HLDEILIEDN  OFWIEOMENITEET

(CSI Bmieveord womb MCA-60 eupmIBLILLL

QSMLITYeMLW  6FWIS ST [BeMEDSH6T  GURISILITED
SevoTRISLILIL BeiTereoT.
44. &Hmed UsILI&EHE55H8 MOTRIGEN

AHm SHHmed 2 _pusHenul GLobLGEUSDETS
aumE LGN HLONGMNEHNET HhHMSS UBBDSI.
yel  QeulUDULIDIBISHE  eTHIMeT 2 eo&emmeil
WYUDASEHHES SisetT LmsefluUTs &hg (PUnssense
ShevoiB WPPEUSID ADBE LBILNGEsSS56E DNSLESSILD
8eeus SLDPAIGSHTEOT  (PHEWL  SLSNILNG  SIDM)
ONID i SpHmed eumd Smissledng. Sseoruie.
Gl SHHDed 2 PUSS SpevBEsHS BHHWeAILSET
cpeold  gyifl  @efwned SpDDEd  Slewss  EumIB
oegEHLDENBENG. OHET CUETTESHHD ShDMED LNFHISTHES
LeDGeuM) [FLEUILGENSHHENEITLILD 6UMRIS TBSHSICTENS.

45. Bm|6edT Felp& GILIMMLIL] :

wHn SLmseafed GHUELLE Gunetm eumid
(b &eps CMMILILETONTE)] &(PEw6eN SH6WLDBSIETENSI.
GoQILd H FeLps ELIMMILILIETOTTEY CISTETEmSHeMIL eTDMmI&
O\&MeToT(BETENGl.  O\BMETens — SOheuetolD  eurRISUIe0T
SemeToTLSENHHED 2 _6Tengl.  [BMICUETTRIGET  eXlBa6T
2014-60TLle  Semevurll 3-60  euRIBUNDT  Feps
QIUIMMILIL|6T0TTE)Y HLEIpSHem&EHET GBILLILLILLB6TEg.

sLbelLenfl FLL LD 2013-601 19fley 135-60TLILQ 6UMRIS

eb.2.21 Gamgemw CSR asqusduigl. ¢b.10.55 Gamg
sLLMumssULLRBHESE. CSR  efdwpenmuier Ui
LLEOIELIP60T GIDMES LGS 2 6TenL&Blg SeDemeD.
SoLbLL
esauflasliuLeld womib CSR mLeupsenssenst
esmpled fHuns eGSHS 6sMeTaTLILGENNS 2 M

CSR-8® e@@&&slULL  OFTEn&HMW

Q& ww, SLLTW Fep & 6l LI I M) LI L] 600T IT 6
sl BOBHE LUMIS6MLL QFLILLD LeII&Hems
esvauplE@  UgssGuns OHsMISHILET 6D

OINEHLLEMET  SleMDHSH 6UMRIS  (LPIEe)|  CIFIISIGTENSI.
SIN&HLLEm6T LDHMILD SIDMISTEUEDTEETTED SlemLIMTEMLD
SMeOoTULUBLD LGPH&6Med &elpsd [HEO SLLMISET LDHMILD
GobunGesner LeOGean SLLRIGEmeT SlemLILINGTLD

snevorLg  SLLLIEGHL  WOMID  65WeLGSHSISH
aFeelleTDNeTg. FWHTWHHT  Led6erLD M6
QUmIBLLULUCL.  OnID  Sleusdlwinerr  Wiflefeorleor

HEDEDTHEBGHETS  gilwner  (pempuied Gsgeyb. Slews
2 _meuns@LD  65Wed gnserGey  ShublisgiedlL g
eflempeied \&FWIeDLI(BLD.




96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

N

Be a step ahead of life

46. Extract of annual return

An extract of the annual return referred to in Section
92 (3) and Section 134 (3) (a) in Form MGT-9 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 is given as Annexure 4 of this report.

47. Number of cases filed, if any, and their disposal
under section 22 of the sexual Harassment of

46. eHLIHST LIgeud unml S566D :

ugeutd MGT-9 Wifley 92(3) womib 134(3)(9)
Uirfley BrieueTmisefeor (GLoeomevoremid LDMHMILD [BIreunsLD)
efBpemmaat, 2014 L Sewevorll 4-60 &b Slnflsens
SemevutsaLILIL BeTengl.

47. Geuemed MMIHHD (HGLIL. &GBLIL LDHMILD H&HSLD)
FLLLD, 2013 &0 6Levorsemedr LImedluIed &I60TLIM|&S6D

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal)Act, 2013

The Bank has zero tolerance towards any act on the
part of any executive/lemployees which may fall under
the ambit of 'Sexual Harassment' at workplace, and is
fully committed to uphold and maintain the dignity of
every woman working in the Bank. The Policy provides
for prevention and protection against sexual
harassment of women at workplace and for and
redressal of such complaints. All the employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy.

Number of complaints pending as at the beginning of the
financial year - Nil

Number of complaints filed during the financial year - 1
Number of complaints pending as at the end of the

financial year - Nil.

48. Strictures and Penalties

During the last three financial years, no penalties or
strictures imposed/passed against the Bank by the
MCA and/or any other statutory authorities on matters
relating to Share Capital. However, RBI by an order
dated June 19, 2018, in terms of Section 47A(1)(c) read
with Section 46(4)(i) of the Banking Regulation Act,
1949, has imposed a penalty of %6 crore for non-
compliance with the directions issued by RBI with
regard to the action of the bank in issuing Bonus shares
in favour of 6 non resident entities holding 46862
original shares which was termed as violation of the
permission granted under FEMA.

49. Material Changes and Commitment Affecting
Financial Position of the Bank

There are no material changes and commitments,
affecting the financial position of the Bank which has
occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Bank i.e. March 31, 2018 and the date of the Directors'
reporti.e. June 6, 2018.During the year under review, no

Wfley 22-6o1 & gGHEMID QI  GULDEHS., HTHHED

QFWIWLILILIL L. 6)LD&G&H6M60T 616001600185 6mE.
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significant and material orders were passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going

concern status and Bank's operations in future.

50. Information Security:

To protect Bank's critical customer information and to
maintain a resilience in business continuity, Information
Security is given due importance. A separate
Information Security Department (ISD) is formed under
Risk Management Department, headed by an Asst.
General Manager as Chief Information Security Officer
(CISO) and a Senior Manager as Information Security
Officer.

51. The position regarding Gopalakrishna

Committee Recommendations:

In terms of RBI guidelines, Bank has established a
robust Information Security Governance framework.
Gap Assessment with respect to RBI guidelines (Shri
Gopalakrishna Committee Recommendations) was
carried out. 614 actionable items applicable to the Bank
were identified and compliance has been achieved fully.

No further requirements identified during the year.

The status was reviewed by RBI Auditors during RBS
2017 - 2018. Regular review of the implementation is
being done keeping in view the changing technology
developments / needs of the Bank and Board appraised

on the same.

52. Others
As the Bank has no activity relating to conservation

of energy and technology absorption, such particulars
are not required to be furnished under sub-section
(3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 read
with Rule (8)(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

2 _HHIEYHET EUIDUSHGLLLL HEU6MED GLIMIHEMTSHTILD
OMILD TSTHTDSHHD 6URISE QFWIDLTBHENEN LITHSHELD
SLEUUMLLTEMT&ET Slebedd HHLDOTDRIGET  Sl6ded)
BBLoedTmmRisenTed BemnEGeunmLiLIL 6X6demeD.
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Annexure |
1. The statement containing particulars of the

employees as required under Section 197(12) of the act
read with rule 5(2) of the companies (Appointment of

Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2016

2. Top ten employees in term of remuneration drawn.
Annexure Il

Secretarial Audit Report

Annexure Il

Annual Report on CSR Activities.

Annexure IV

Form NO.MGT-9

53. Acknowledgment
The Board places on record its appreciation of the

valuable patronage, co-operation and goodwill received
by your Bank from customers, fellow bankers, financial
institutions and Non-Resident Indians. The continued
support and co-operation of the employees and
customers have been a constant source of strength to

the Bankin all its endeavors.
The Board places on record its gratitude to Reserve

Bank of India and other regulatory authorities, the
Government of India and State Governments for their

continued guidance and support.
The staff members of the Bank have been working

with dedication and deep commitment. Teamwork at
every level, well supported by appropriate technology
architecture, has been the hallmark of the Bank's
performance. The Board places on record its
appreciation of the excellent contribution made by each
and every member of the staff, who have made our
achievements all along possible and is confident that

such contribution will continue in the coming year.
For and on behalf of the Board
K.V.Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO

Place : Thoothukudi
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Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1)of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
57,V.E Road,

Thoothukudi,

TamilNadu 628002

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited (hereinafter called the “Bank”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Bank and also the information provided by the Bank, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial auditincluding the Court Orders and, without expressing
any opinion on subject matter of pending litigation or matter covered in Order of the Hon'ble Court,| hereby report thatin
my opinion, the Bank has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Bank has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting/ observations made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Bank for
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of:

1) The CompaniesAct, 2013 and the rules made there under[“Act™;

2) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulation and Bye-laws framed there under to the extent applicable;

3) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings

Other Specific Laws applicable to the company

1) Inrelation to other laws we have relied on the representation made by the Company and it's Officers for system
and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations as
applicable to the Bank.
(a) Banking Regulation Act, 1949read with Rules made thereunder
(b) Reserve Bank of IndiaAct,1934
(c) Securitization and reconstruction of Financial Assets and enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002
(d) The Bankers Book Evidence Act, 1891
(e) Banking Companies Rules, 1949
(f) Prevention of Money laundering Act, 2002 read with Rules made thereunder
(9) Information Technology Act, 2000
(h) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

@
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| have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Bank has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. The subscribed capital and paid up capital of the Bank is not in compliance to provisions of Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 which requires the subscribed capital of the Bank should not be less than one-half
of the authorised capital , and the paid- up capital should not be less than one-half of the subscribed capital.

2. The Bank has kept in abeyance the payment of dividend and bonus in respect of 1,18,666 equity shares on
account of various reasons including dispute which is pending before Hon'ble Courts.

3. The Bank has not convened Annual General Meetings (AGM) for the financial year ended 31st March 2016 &
31st March 2017 and has approached (as per details provided) Hon'ble High Court for appointment of
Chairman of the AGM (as multiple cases involving shareholders dispute is pending before Hon'ble High Court of
Madras) to smoothly conduct the AGM (last few AGM being heldenbloc and Hon'ble High Court has appointed
Chairman for these meetings including last AGM), however, the matter has not been taken for hearing till date.
Bank has represented that based on multiplicity of the litigation covering shareholdings and percentage of
shares held by different group which is pending before the Hon'ble High Court and due to pendency of its
application as indicated above, the Bank could not convene AGMs for the Financial year ended 31st March,
2016& 31stMarch, 2017 pursuant to Section 92 & Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. The provision of companies Act 2013 which mandates retirement of minimum one-third of Directors at each
AGM. However, as stated in clause 3 of the report, the AGM for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2016
& 31st March 2017 has not been held and hence re-appointment of Directors those who ought to have been
retired by rotation at the AGM has not taken place.

5. The Company has not appointed Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as on date of this report as contemplated under
Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. The Board has approved the appointment and remuneration of Mr. Rama Moorthy Kumarabommarajpuram
Venkata, as Managing Director and CEO with effect from 9thJuly 2017/4th September 2017 and same was also
approved by Reserve Bank of India. However, the said appointment and remuneration of the
Managing Director has not yet approved by shareholders as contemplated under Section 196 & 197 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013

7. Statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own
performance and that of its committees and individual directors as contemplated under Section 134 (3) (p) read
with Rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not mentioned in the Boards' Report. However such
evaluation has been duly made by the Board and the same was duly recorded in the miniutes.
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| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Bank is duly constituted pursuant to the Interim Order passed by the Hon'ble Division
Bench, High Court, Madras declaring the appointment of Directors with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The subsequent changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act/ RBI
Directives.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent atleast seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. The Minutes of the meetings
have recorded the discussions, observations, directions and resolutions of the Board/ Committees of the Board.

I have examined the systems and processes of the Bank in place to ensure the compliance with general laws like Labour
Laws, Employees Provident Funds Act, Employees State Insurance Act, considering and relying upon representations
made by the Bank and its Officers for systems and mechanisms formed by the Bank for compliance under these laws
and other applicable sector specific Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations applicable to the Bank and its observance by
them.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Bank commensurate with the size and
operations of the Bank to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

(i) Public/ Rights / Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity.

(i) Redemption / buy-back of securities.

(iii) Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.
(iv) Merger/ amalgamation / reconstruction etc.

(v) Foreign technical collaborations.

Place: Chennai Signature:
(P.Sriram)
P. Sriram & Associates
FCS No.4862/C PNo: 3310

Note:This Report is to be read with my testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.
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Annexure A
To

The Members,

Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
57,V.ERoad,

Thoothukudi,

Tamil Nadu - 628 002.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Bank. My responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on ouraudit.

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices, the Bank had
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the Bank.

4. Whereverrequired, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.,

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

Place: Chennai Signature:
(P. Sriram)
P. Sriram & Associates
FCS No.4862/C P No: 3310
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Annexure Il
Annual Report on CSR Activities

1. Abrief outline of the bank's CSR policy:

The CSR Policy of the bank outlines the type and scope of activities to be undertaken as part of the Bank's commitment
to contributing to the overall progress of the society, people and the environment while aligning the same with the
general policy prescriptions of the Government of India in the matter of growth and development. It also aims at
complying with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014 and allied notifications issued by the Government of India.

The specific activities to be undertaken by the Bank within the parameters as specified in Schedule VII of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 are as follows:

Financial inclusion - to coverunder clause (ii) of Schedule VI,

Provision of solar powered streetlights - to cover under clauses (iv) and (x)

Provision of food to orphanages/old age homes - clause (i)

Planting of trees/saplings - clause (iv)

Donations to schools, vocational institutions etc. -clauses (ii)and (iii)

Organising blood donation camps, eye testing camps etc. -clause (i)

Donating bicycles, sewing machines etc. - clause (i)

Setting up alibrary for the public - clause (v)

Providing RO plants to schools, old age homes etc. - clause (i)

Construction of toilets etc. - clause (i)

Training centre for promotion of nationally recognised sports - clause (vii)

Avocational training/empowerment/skill building institute in the line of RSETI (Rural Self Employment Training
Institute) or so could be started by the Bank for imparting training to various sections of people in the society
especially rural youth and women. Providing financial assistance to ITls also could be considered clause (ii)
Setting up bore-wells, water treatment plants, fresh water disposal plants including RO plants etc. in villages,
schools etc. clause (i).

Developing rural market places clause (iii), (x) and (xi)

Provision of infrastructure and aiding machinery for differently abled people, like wheel chairs, cycles, ramps
etc. clause (i) and (iii)

Electrification of villages, especially through solar energy clause (x)

.Healthcare and sanitation facilities for villagers especially womenfolk clause (i)
xviii.Provision of free medical camps, medical consultancy, clinics etc. clause (i)

Setting up of creches and day care centres clause (iii)

Providing ambulances clause (i)

Providing financial assistance for fees, maintenance expenses and provision of various amenities to the
schools and charitable trusts meant for the specially abled/differently abled/mentally unsound children clause

(ii).
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The Composition of the CSR Committee of Board:
Thiru K. V. Rama Moorthy, MD & CEO
Thiru S. Annamalai
Thiru S. R. Ashok
Thiru D.N. Nirranjan Kani
ThiruA. Shidambaranathan

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:
Rs.527.67 Crore

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. Of the amount as in item 3 above):
Rs. 10.55 Crore

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
As perAnnexure

6. Incase the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial

years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board

report.
The amount does not cover the entire portion of the budget as per the CSR stipulation. To ensure that the amount
earmarked for CSR is spent effectively and CSR activities are taken up professionally, the Bank has decided to set
up a trust with the exclusive authority of spending the corpus which will be contributed from the mandated CSR
spending. The trust will identify, plan and execute various schemes for social welfare and upliftment in areas which
will be identified by the Trust and trustees. The spending will be properly channelized for the wholesome benefit of
the weak, marginalised and the needy segments of the society. The process for creating the trust has already
commenced, and will be operative shortly.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.
Itis hereby certified by the CSR Committee of Board as well as the Board of Directors that the sum incurred towards
various activities under the CSR initiatives of the bank during the year 2017-18 are in conformity with the CSR
policy guidelines of the bank and itis monitored as envisaged in the said policy.
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(1) (2) 3) (4) (5) (6) @) (8)
Sl. | CSR projector | Sectorin |Projects or Amount outlay | Amountspent | Cumulative | Amount
No | activity which the | programs (budget project | ©n the projects | expenditure | spent:
identified Projectis |(1)Local area | or programs wise | OF Programs upto the Direct or
covered | or other Sub-Heads: reporting through
Specify the (1)Direct period impleme-
State and expenditure on nting
district where projects or agency
. programs
projects or (2)Overheads
programs was
undertaken
1 | Providing RO Clause (i) | Tamilnadu 12,66,220 12,66,220 12,66,220 Direct
plants to
schools, old
age home etc
2 | Construction of | Clause (i) | Tamilnadu 45,19,750 45,19,750 57,85,970 Direct
toilets etc..
3 | Setting up Clause (i) | Tamilnadu 1,50,000 1,50,000 59,35,970 Direct
bore-wells in
schools etc.
4 | Healthcare and | ¢ 56 (i) | Tamilnadu 9,28,800 422361 | 6358331 Direct
sanitation
facilities
5 | Provision of free | Clause (I) | Tamilnadu, 10,80,000 10,80,000 74,38,331 Direct
clinics, medical Punjab,
consultancy etc west Bengal
6 | Donations to Clause (ii) | Tamilnadu 1,13,06,790 1,13,06,790 1,87,45,121 Direct
schools etc.
7 | Providing Clauses (ii)| Tamilnadu 10,65,580 10,65,580 1,98,10,701 Direct
financial
assistance to
[Tls etc
8 | Providing Clause (ii) | Tamilnadu 8,33,502 8,33,502 | 2,06,44,203 Direct
financial
assistance to
charitable trusts
meant for the
differently abled etc.
9 | Setting up of Clause (iii) | Tamilnadu, 9,61,000 9,61,000 | 2,16,05,203 Direct
homes and hostel Kerala
for women and
orphans, old age
homes etc
10| Provision of Clause (iii) | Tamilnadu, 4,82,916 4,82,916 2,20,88,119 Direct
infrastructure and
aiding machinery
for differently
abled people
11| Setting up a Clause (iv) | Tamilnadu, 25,000 25,000 2,21,13,119 Direct
library for the
public
Total 2,26,19,558 2,21,13,119
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FormNo.MGT-9

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31/03/2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. Registration and other details:

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

1 | CIN U65110TN1921PLC001908

2 Registration Date May 11, 1921

3 | Name of the Company Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited

3 | Address of the Registered office and 57, V. E. Road, Thoothukudi,
contact details Tamil Nadu 628 002
Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company / Limited by Shares
Whether listed company - (Yes/ No) No
Name, Address and Contact details of None

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated:
SI. Name and Description NIC Code of the Product/ % to total turnover of the
No of main products/ service company
’ services
1 BANKING NA 100

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sl. NAMEAND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ %OF APPLICABLE
No ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES SECTION
"| THE COMPANY ASSOCIATE HELD
1 NONE
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding Cumulative holding
during the year
No. of shares | % of Increase/
at the total Decrease in
beginning/end | shares | pate shareholding | Reason | No. of
Sl. | Name of the year of the shares Percentage
No. Bank
1 ROBERT AND 7054080 494983 | - - - 7054080 | 4.94983
ARDIS JAMES
COMPANY
LIMITED
2 STARSHIP EQUITY |0 0 22.12.2017 | 6727500 Bonus 6727500 | 4.72067
HOLDINGS LTD share
issued
3 SUBCONTINENTAL | 6617709 464363 | - - - 6617709 | 4.64363
EQUITIES
LIMITED
4 EAST RIVER 5305089 3.72257 | - - - 5305089 | 3.72257
HOLDINGS
LIMITED
5 SWISS RE 5072124 3.55910 | - - - 5072124 | 3.55910
INVESTORS
(MAURITIUS)
LIMITED
6 FI INVESTMENTS 2704899 1.89802 | - - - 2704899 | 1.89802
(MAURITIUS)
LIMITED
7 C.S.RAJENDRAN 2077346 1.45697 | Purchase | 2503 Purchase | 2079849 | 1.45872
8 HIBISCUS 1742979 1.22304 | 29.05.2017 | 250500 Purchase | 1993479 | 1.39882
ENTERPRISES LLP
9 MEENAKSHI.R. 1899792 1.33308 | - - - 1899792 | 1.33308
10 | SENTHIL.M. 1899792 1.33308 | - - - 1899792 | 1.33308

(ii)Share holding of Promoters:

There were ten persons who promoted the Bank in the year 1921 by subscribing to its Memorandum of Association,
collectively holding 11505 equity shares of Rs.10 each. Since all these persons are deceased now, we have not made any
attempt to identify the promoter group at present. Some of the descendants of these persons might be holding some
shares in the bank still. Since we are an unlisted company we have not formally categorized the bank's shareholders into
promoter group and non-promoter group.
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(iii) Change in Promoters' Share holding (please specify, if there is no change)- Not Applicable
(iv)Share holding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding Cumulative holding
during the year
No. of shares at| % of Increase/
the total Decrease in
beginning/end | shares | pate shareholding | Reason No. of
Sl. | Name of the year of the shares Percentage
No. Bank
1 Shri K.V Rama - - - - - - -
Moorthy
(MD&CEO)
2 Shri S.Annamalai | 342684 0.240 - - - 342684 | 0.240
3 Shri S. R.Ashok 47595 0.03340 | - - - 47595 0.03340
4 ShriP. C. G. Asok | 1577649 1.107 - - - 1577649 | 1.107
Kumar
5 Shri B. S. Keshava | - - - - - - -
Murthy
6 Shri K. Nagarajan | 7014 0.004 - - - 7014 0.004
7 Shri D.N 935367 0.65634 | - - - 935367 | 0.65634
NirranjanKani
8 Shri K.V. Rajan - - - - - - -
9 Shri Anup Kumar | - - - - - - -
10 | ShriA. 9018 0.006 - - - 9018 0.006
Shidambaranathan
11 | ShriB. 1503 0.001 - - - 1503 0.001
Vijayadurai
12 | Tmt S.Ezhil Jothi - - - - - - -
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V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for
payment
(% in crore)

Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits | Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning NIL NIL 32190.15 32190.15
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL| 32190.15 32190.15

Change in Indebtedness

during the Financial
year 448.00 65.00 238.18 751.18

- Addition
- Reduction

Net Change 448.00 65.00 238.18 751.18

Indebtedness at the end
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount
i) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 448.00 65.000 32428.33 32941.33
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VI. Remuneration of Directors and key managerial personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager during
2017-18:

(ing%)
S.No | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD / WTD
Shri H. S. Upendra Shri.K.V.Rama Moorthy
Kamath, (MD& CEO)
MD & CEO (04.09.17 to 31.03.18)
(01.04.17 to 17.05.17)
1. Gross salary
(a)Salary as per provisions
contained in section17(1) of 6,45,161.28 25,87,500.00
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)Value of perquisites under
section 17(2) Income-tax 4,54,657.61 2,92,939.00
Act, 1961
©Profits in lieu of salary B B
undersection17(3)Income-
taxAct,1961
2. Stock Option i i
3. Sweat Equity _ _
4. Commission
- as % of profit - -
- Others, specify...
5. Others
PF 34,65,644.00 -
Gratuity 7,21,154.00 -
PL encashment 9,86,111.00 -
Hospitalization Expenses 13,277.00 38,987.48
Total (A) 62,86,004.89 29 19,426.48
Ceiling as per the Act
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

(in
SI.No. | Name of Directors Sitting Fees | Commission | Total
1. Shri.S.Annamalai 7,95,000 Nil 7,95,000
2. Shri.P.C.G.Asok Kumar 9,90,000 Nil 9,90,000
3. Shri.S.R.Aravind Kumar 8,10,000 Nil 8,10,000
4. Smt.S.Ezhil Jothi 8,25,000 Nil 8,25,000
5. Shri.B.S.Keshava Murthy 12,45,000 Nil 12,45,000
6. Shri.K.Nagarajan 13,50,000 Nil 13,50,000
7. Shri.K.N.Rajan 4,35,000 Nil 4,35,000
8. Shri.K.V.Rajan 10,35,000 Nil 10,35,000
9. Shri.A.Shidambaranathan 17,40,000 Nil 17,40,000
10. Shri.B.Vijayadurai 15,60,000 Nil 15,60,000
11. Shri.V.V.D.N.Vikraman 6,90,000 Nil 6,90,000
12. Shri.P.Yesuthasen 5,70,000 Nil 5,70,00 0
13. Shri.S.R.Ashok 6,15,000 Nil 6,15,000
14. Shri.D.N.Nirranjan Kani 4,65,000 Nil 4,65,000
15. Shri.Anup Kumar Nil Nil Nil
Total 1,31,25,000 Nil 1,31,25,000
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD /
MANAGER / WTD
(in ?)
ﬁl(., Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO Company | CFO | Total
Secretary

1. | Gross salary

(@) Salary as per provisions 923649.24

contained in section 17 (1) of the

Income-tax Act,1961

(b) Value of perquisites under 128009.00

section 17 (2) Income-tax

Act, 1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section

17 (3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option
3. | Sweat Equity
4. | Commission

- as % of profit

-others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify

Total 1051658.24
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VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal
Companies Description Penalty / [RD/NCLT made,
Act Punishment/ | /| COURT] if any
Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)
A.COMPANY
Penalty RBI in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 47A (1)© read with Section
46 (4)(i) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 has imposed a penalty of Rs.6 Crore
Punishment vide their letter dated 19.06.2018 for contravention of the instruction/guidelines

Compounding

stipulated by RBI regarding issue of Bonus Shares to six non-resident entities.

B.DIREC

TORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NONE

C. OTHER OFFICERS INDEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NONE
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Basel lll - Pillar 3 Disclosures as on March 31, 2018

1. Scope of Application and Capital Adequacy

Table DF-1- Scope of application

Name of the head of the banking group

to which the framework applies:- Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Ltd.,
Qualitative Disclosures Applicability to our Bank
a. List of Group entities considered for consolidation. The Bank does not belong to any

group and does not have any
associate, subsidiaries, joint venture,
etc.

b. List of Group entities not considered for consolidation both | Not Applicable
under the accounting and regulatory scope of consolidation.

Quantitative Disclosures

c. List of group entities considered for consolidation The Bank does not belong to any
group and does not have any
associate, subsidiaries, joint venture,
etc.

d. The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all | Not Applicable
subsidiaries which are not included in the regulatory scope of
consolidation i.e. that are deducted and the name(s) of such
subsidiaries.

e. The aggregate amounts (e.g. Current book value) of the | Not Applicable
bank's total interests in insurance entities, which are risk
-weighted.

f. Any restriction or impediments on transfer of funds or | Not Applicable
regulatory capital within the banking group.
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Table DF-2-Capital Adequacy

Qualitative Disclosures

A. Asummary discussion of the Bank's approach to assessing the adequacy of its capital to support current
and future activities.

The Bank is following standardized approach, Standardized Duration approach and Basic Indicator
approach for measurement of capital charge in respect of credit risk, market risk and operational risk
respectively.

The computation of Capital for credit risk under Standardized Approach is done granularly borrower &
account wise based on the data captured through Core Banking Solution. Bank is also taking efforts on an
ongoing basis for the accuracy of the data. The various aspects of NCAF norms are imparted to field level
staff regularly through circulars and letters for continuous purification of data and to ensure accurate
computation of Risk Weight and Capital Charge. The Bank has used the credit risk mitigation in computation
of capital for creditrisk, as prescribed in the RBI guidelines under Standardized Approach.

The capital for credit risk on Loans and Advances, market risk and operational risk as per the prescribed
approaches are being computed at the bank's Head Office and aggregated to arrive at the position of bank's
CRAR. The bank has followed the RBI guidelines in force, to arrive at the eligible capital funds, for computing
CRAR.

Besides computing CRAR under the Pillar | requirement, the Bank also periodically undertakes stress testing
in various risk areas to assess the impact of stressed scenario or plausible events on asset quality, liquidity,
profitability and capital adequacy.

The bank conducts Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) on an annual basis to assess
the sufficiency of its capital funds to cover the risks specified under Pillar- 1l of Basel guidelines. The
adequacy of Bank's capital funds to meet the future business growth is also assessed in the ICAAP
document, which is approved by the Board. While the surplus CRAR available at present acts as a buffer to
support the future activities, the headroom available for the bank for mobilizing Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital
(subject to approval by the competent authorities) is also assessed to meet the required CRAR against future
activities.

The Bank has high quality Common Equity Tier 1 capital, as the entire components of CET1 capital
comprises of Paid up Capital, Reserves & Surplus and retained earnings.
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Minimum capital requirements under Basel-lll:

Under the Basel Ill Capital Regulations, Banks are required to maintain a minimum Pillar 1 Capital
(Tier-l + Tier-1l) to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of 9% on an on-going basis. Besides this
minimum capital requirement, Basel Il also provides for creation of capital conservation buffer
(CCB). The transitional period of fullimplementation of Basel Il capital regulation in India is extended
up to 31st March 2019. Accordingly the CCB requirements are to be implemented from 31st March
2016 in phases and are to be fully implemented by March 31, 2019 to the extent of 2.5% of Risk
weighted Assets. Hence the banks are required to maintain minimum CRAR of 10.875 % (including
CCBof 1.875 %) ason 31.03.2018.

The total regulatory capital funds under Basel- lll norms consist of the sum of the following categories
and banks are required to maintain 11.50% of Risk Weighted Assets (9% + 2.5%) by March 2019 with
the phase in requirements under CCB from 2016.

e Tier 1 Capital comprises of:-
o Common Equity Tier 1 capital (with a minimum of 5.5%)
o Additional Tier 1 capital (1.50%)
o Total Tier 1 capital of minimum 7%

e Tier2 Capital (2%)
o Total Tier 1+ Tier 2 should be more than 9%

e Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB). (with a minimum of 2.5%)
o Total capital including CCB should be 11.5%

In line with the RBI guidelines for implementing the New Capital Adequacy Frame Work under Basel
I, the bank has successfully migrated from April 01, 2013.

Component of Capital: ( % in millions)

Particulars Amount
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) Capital 33852.84
Tier 1 Capital 33852.84
Tier 2 Capital 1217.19
Total Capital 35070.03
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Quantitative Disclosure

(% in millions )

Particulars Amount
Capital requirement for Credit Risk:
3) | (@9% on risk Weighted Assets)
e Portfolios subject to Standardised Approach 16935.64
e Securitisation exposures

b) | Capital requirements for Market Risk @ 9 %:

e Standardised Duration Approach 1899.63
o0 Interest Rate Risk 1779.65
o Equity Risk 79.48
o Foreign Exchange Risk 40.50
Capital requirements far Operational Rsk @
) 9%:
e Basic Indicator Approach 2450.76
d) | Capital required under CCB (1.875%) 4434.59
e) | Tdotal Capital required 25720.62
f) | Total Capital funds available 35070.03
g) | Total Risk Weighted Assets 236511.38
Common Equity Tier | CRAR 14.31%
Tier | CRAR 14.31%
Tier Il CRAR 0.52%
h) | Total CRAR 14.83%

2. Risk exposure and Assessment

Risk is an integral part of banking business in an ever dynamic environment, which is undergoing radical
changes both on the technology front and product offerings. The main risks faced by the bank are credit risk, market
risk and operational risk. The bank aims to achieve an optimum balance between risk and return to maximize
shareholder value. The relevant information on the various categories of risks faced by the bank is given in the
ensuing sections. This information is intended to give market participants a better idea on the risk profile and risk
management practices of the bank.

The Bank has a comprehensive risk management system in order to address various risks and has set up an
Integrated Risk Management Department (RMD), which is independent of operational departments. Bank has a
Risk Management Committee of Board functioning at apex level for formulating, implementing and reviewing bank's
risk management measures pertaining to credit, market and operational risks. Apart from the Risk Management
Committee of the Board at apex level, the Bank has a strong Bank-wide risk management structure comprising of
Risk Management Committee of Executives (RMCE) and Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) at senior
managementlevel.

The Bank has formulated the required policies such as Loan Policy, Credit Risk Management Policy, Credit Risk
Mitigation Techniques & Collateral Management Policy, ALM Policy, Operational Risk Management Policy,
Investment Policy, Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy, Policy guidelines for Hedging Foreign Currency
Exposure, Concurrent Audit Policy, Inspection Policy, IS Audit Policy, KYC policy, Post Credit Supervision Policy,
Stock Audit Policy, Out Sourcing Policy, IT Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP),Risk
Based Internal Audit Policy, Stress Testing Policy, Disclosure Policy, ICAAP Policy, etc for mitigating the risks in
various areas and monitoring the same. The bank continues to focus on refining and improving its risk measurement

and management systems.
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Table DF-3- CREDIT RISK: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures:

a. CreditRisk

Credit risk is the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or counter-
parties. In a Bank's portfolio, Credit Risk arises mostly from lending activities of the Bank, as a borrower is
unable to meet his financial obligations to the lender. It emanates from potential changes in the credit quality
/worthiness of the borrowers or counter-parties.

Credit Rating & Appraisal Process

The Bank has well-structured internal credit rating framework and well-established standardized credit
appraisal / approval processes. Credit Rating is a decision-enabling tool that helps the bank to take a view on
acceptability or otherwise of any credit proposal. In order to widen the scope and coverage further and
strengthen the credit risk management practices, the bank has developed risk sensitive in-house rating
models during the year 2008-09 and 2009-10.

The parameters in internal rating take into consideration, the quantitative and qualitative issues relating to
management risk, business risk, industry risk, financial risk, credit discipline, and also risk mitigation, based
on the collaterals available.

Credit rating, as a concept, has been well internalized within the Bank. The rating for eligible borrower is
reviewed at least once in a year. The Bank also uses the credit ratings for deciding the interest rates on
borrowal accounts. The advantage of credit rating is that it enables to rank different proposals and to do
meaningful comparison.

With the view to migrate to advanced approaches in credit risk, the Bank has implemented the system driven
rating using web based rating model solutions (RAM & CRESS) acquired from M/s. Crisil Risk &
Infrastructure solutions Ltd.

The bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary power structure for sanction of loans. New
Business Group (NBG) has been constituted at HO for considering in-principle approval for taking up fresh
credit proposals above a specified cut-off.

Credit Risk Management Policies

The Bank has put in place a well-structured Credit Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Bank's
Board. The Policy document defines organization structure, role & responsibilities and, the processes
whereby the Credit Risks carried out by the Bank can be identified, quantified & managed within the
framework that the Bank considers consistent with its mandate and risk tolerance.

Credit Risk is monitored on a bank-wide basis and compliance with the risk limits approved by Board/Risk
Management Committee of Board is ensured.

The Bank has taken earnest steps to put in place best credit risk management practices in the bank. In
addition to Credit Risk Management Policy, the bank has also framed Board approved Loan Policy,
Investment Policy, etc. which form integral part in monitoring Credit risk in the bank. Besides, the bank has
also framed a policy on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques & Collateral Management with the approval of the
Board which lays down the details of securities (both Primary and Collateral) normally accepted by the Bank
and administration of such securities to protect the interest of the Bank. These securities act as mitigation
against the credit risk to which the bank is exposed.

@
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Classification of Non Performing Assets

The Bank follows the prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of non-performing assets as

under,

Vi)

interest and/or installment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in
respect of atermloan.

the account remains 'out of order' if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of
sanctioned limits / DP for more than 90 days in respect of Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and
discounted

the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short
duration crop.

the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long
duration crops.

in respect of derivative transactions, the overdue receivables representing positive mark-to-
market value of a derivative contract, if these remain unpaid for a period of 90 days from the
specified due date for payment

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of the quarter,
the accountis classified as non-performing. Anon-performing asset ceases to generate income for the bank.

b. Gross Credit Risk exposures as on 31st March 2018.

(% in millions)

Category Gross Credit Exposure
Fund Based' 302179.66
Non Fund Based’ 34165.95
Total 336345.61

1. Fund based exposure includes advances, un-availed portion (including credit card un-availed) of fund
based advances.

2. Non-Fund Based exposure includes outstanding Letter of Credit, Acceptances, Bank Guarantee
Exposures and credit equivalent of Forward Contracts.
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c. Geographical Distribution of Gross Credit Exposures as on 31 March 2018

(% in millions )

Corporate / Retail Bankin Total credit
Exposure Wholesale banking 9 Exposure
Distribution | 1e2SUry
FB NFB FB NFB FB NFB
Domestic 104535.34 | 119853.69 | 30079.69 | 182325.97 | 4086.26 | 302179.66 | 34165.95
Overseas 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 104535.34 | 119853.69 | 30079.69 | 182325.97 | 4086.26 | 302179.66 | 34165.95

d. Industry type distribution of credit exposures as on 31.03.2018

(X in millions )

Exposures

Industry Name FB NFB_ | Investment | Total
A. Mining and Quarrying 1157.50 443.46 0.00 1600.96
B. Food Processing 1643.62 | 3771.00 13.31 5427.93
C. Beverages (excluding Tea &
Coffee) and Tobacco 595.49 5.23 30.03 630.75
D. Textiles 41551.85 | 2851.79 7.34 | 44410.98
E. Leather and Leather products 185.65 4.28 0.00 189.93
F. Wood and Wood Products 1825.75 836.59 0.00 2662.34
G. Paper and Paper Products 2058.43 170.45 1.98 2230.86
H. Petroleum (non-infra), Coal
Products (non-mining) and
Nuclear Fuels 321.15 0.53 86.60 408.28
I. Chemicals and Chemical
Products (Dyes, Paints, etc.) 3115.51 55.82 49.49 3220.82
J. Rubber, Plastic and their
Products 1721.78 201.15 0.00 1922.93
K. Glass & Glassware 57.00 0.00 0.00 57.00
L. Cement and Cement Products 88.71 0.00 0.00 88.71
M. Basic Metal and Metal
Products 4313.59 285.94 285.06 4884.59
N. All Engineering 2103.06 547.86 6.47 2657.39
O. Vehicles, Vehicle Parts and
Transport Equipments 709.83 11.86 20.83 742.52
P.Gems and Jewellery 288.70 14.83 0.00 303.53
Q. Construction 1232.85 380.91 0.00 1613.76
R. Infrastructure 16257.55 | 1495.51 3071.51 20824.57
S. Other Industries, pl. specify 12498.82 | 8032.07 0.00 20530.89
All Industries (A to S) 91726.84 | 19109.28 3572.62 | 114408.74

b 6§
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The details of the industries wherein the bank's exposure in the related industry has
exceeded the 5% of total gross credit exposure as on 31.03.2018 is furnished below:

(% in millions )

Industry Fund Non Fund | % to Gross Credit
Based Based Exposures
Textile 41551.85 2851.79 13.20%
Infrastructure 16257.55 1495.51 5.28%

e. Residual Contractual Maturity Breakdown of assets as on 31.03.2018

(% in millions )

Balance
Cash | ith Banks
Maturity and Fixed Other Grand
and Money | Investments | Advances
Buckets Balance Assets Assets Total
with RBI at Call and
Short Notice

Next day 4163.95 49722 |  31045.80 5449 .07 o| 125520 42411.33
2-7 days 257.31 2500.03 2162.91 5343.62 0 143.12 | 10406.99
8-14 days 259.96 0 1126.90 3859.29 0 108.87 | 5355.02
15-30 days 413.64 0 1793.09 |  12400.90 o| 87571 15483.34
31 days &
Upto 2 310.26 0 2506.00 5159.21 0 150.66 | 8126.13
months
2 months &
Upto 3 267.65 0 1160.21 8075.39 0 30.36 | 9533.61
months
3to6

807.78 0 355131 | 13754.71 0 170.09 | 18283.89
months
6 months 2625.85 0 12304.20 | 28023.10 0 131.48 | 43084.63
to 1 year
;efrir 03 | 650174 20.00 | 32378.10 | 108360.55 0| 1174.61 | 148525.00
3to5years | 680.60 0 542541 | 15958.71 0| 7961.09| 30025.81
C:a"r‘;e 5 639.04 o| 1018220 3130263 | 1402.97 | 4436.93| 47963.77
Total 17017.78 3017.25 | 103636.13* | 237687.18* | 1402.97 | 16438.21 | 379199.52

(Covers Net Assets for Domestic Operations)
*Net of Provisions / depreciation




96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018

' Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead of life

f. Amount of Gross Non-Performing Advances (NPAs):

(X in millions )

Amount of Gross NPAs

Amount of NPAs (Gross) 8682.77
. Substandard 2939.73
. Doubtful 5620.34
. Of which DF1 3695.10
. DF2 1609.43
. DF3 315.81
. Loss 122.70
g.- Net NPAs 5132.85
h. NPA Ratios
. Gross NPAs to gross advances 3.60%
. Net NPAs to net advances 2.16%
i. Movement of NPAs(Gross): N

(% in millions )

Movement of NPAs

. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2017 6486.37
. Additions 12421.58
. Reductions 10225.18
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2018 8682.77

S
.

Movement of provisions
a. Movement of provisions for NPAs *:

(X in millions )

Particulars
. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2017 2667.18
. Provisions made during the period 6884.76
. Write off 5939.58
. Reductions 0.00
. Write back of excess provisions / Transfers 62.43
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2018 3549.93*

*includes floating provision
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b. Movement of Provisions of Standard Assets:-

(X in millions )

Particulars
. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2017 1601.30
. Provisions made during the period 237.61
. Write back of excess provisions 863.44
. Any other adjustments, including transfer between provisions -
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2018 975.47

c. Stock of Technical/Prudential Write -offs and recoveries made thereon;

(X in millions )

Particulars Amount
Opening balance for recoveries of Technical/Prudential written- off 4917 .17
accounts as on 01.04.2017
Add: Technical/Prudential write -offs accounts during the period 5939.58
Less: Recoveries from previously technical/ prudential written- off 731.58
accounts taken to income account during the period.
Closing balance as on 31.03.2018 10125.17
Non-Performing Investments (NPIs):
k. Non-Performing Investments 0.00
I. Provisions held for non-performing investments 0.00

m. Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments:

(% in millions )

. Opening Balance as on 01.04.2017 1022.51
. Provisions made during the period 413.86
. Write-off -
. Write-back of excess provisions
- On account of shifting of securities 216.17
- Staggering of provision to the year 2018-19 as per RBI relaxation 319.91
- Others 1.08
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2018 899.21
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n. Industry wise distribution of NPAs:

(X in millions )

Industry Name

As on March 2018

For the year ended Mar 31,2018

Standard Write — | Provision Standard
Gross Provision Asset off for NPA Asset

NPA for NPA | Provision Provision
A. Mining and Quarrying 0.26 0.26 3.58 702.48 0.00 0.14
B. Food Processing 23.42 9.98 3.70 524.63 2.25 0.05
C. Beverages (excluding
Tea & Coffee) and
Tobacco 1.76 0.44 1.40 0.00 (0.00) 0.1
D. Textiles 836.74 287.47 91.28 131.75 23.43 7.50
E. Leather and Leather
products 0.25 0.12 0.44 143.25 0.00 0.03
F. Wood and Wood
Products 78.29 34.00 3.71 258.53 6.69 (0.02)
G. Paper and Paper
Products 587.12 148.86 3.44 59.10 | (133.41) 0.34
H. Petroleum (non-infra),
Coal Products (non-
mining) and Nuclear Fuels 1.01 0.47 0.70 0.00 (0.01) 0.04
I. Chemicals and
Chemical Products (Dyes,
Paints, etc.) 2.75 0.90 4.68 55.75 (9.82) 0.43
J. Rubber, Plastic and
their Products 6.53 1.86 4.42 88.66 (7.04) 0.86
K. Glass & Glassware 0.00 0.00 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.01
L. Cement and Cement
Products 0.00 0.00 0.20 1.34 (0.02) (0.03)
M. Basic Metal and Metal
Products 14.96 4.60 8.72 | 2255.67 0.27 (447.00)
N. All Engineering 12.06 3.02 5.63 74.13 (4.03) 0.44
O. Vehicles, Vehicle Parts
and Transport Equipments 620.26 310.25 0.17 0.00 0.25 0.04
P.Gems and Jewellery 0.58 0.23 0.66 437.23 0.00 (0.15)
Q. Construction 29.29 10.65 2.50 443.25 3.07 0.38
R. Infrastructure 2 533.54 692.81 224.54 | 3213.58 | (2021.20) (21.23)
S. Other Industries, pl.
specify 285.09 86.30 25.73 21712 | (296.26) 0.59
All Industries (A to S) 5033.91 | 1592.22 385.59 | 8606.47 | (2435.83) (457.47)
All others 3648.86| 1611.92 589.88 | 1518.70| (684.92) 6.32
Total 8 682.77 | 3204.14 975.47 | 10125.17 | (3120.75) (451.15)
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o. Geographic distribution of NPAs:

(X in millions )

Particulars Domestic Overseas Total
Gross NPA 8682.77 0.00 8682.77
Provisions for NPA* 3549.93 0.00 3549.93*
Provision for Standard assets 975.47 0.00 975.47

*includes floating provision (Z 315.56 millions) claims receivable (CGTMSE, ECGC
& UIIC - 7 30.22 millions)

Table DF 4
CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FORPORTFOLIOS SUBJECT TO THE STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative disclosures:

a) General Principle:

In accordance with RBI guidelines, the Bank has adopted Standardized Approach of the New Capital
Adequacy Framework (NCAF) for computation of capital for Credit Risk with effect from 31.03.2009. Bank
has assigned risk weights to different assets classified as prescribed by the RBI for computation of capital.

External Credit Ratings:

Ratings of borrowers by External Credit Rating Agencies (ECRA) assume importance in the light of guideline
for implementation of the New Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel-Il). Exposures on Corporate / PSEs /
Primary Dealers are assigned with risk weights based on the external ratings. For this purpose, the Reserve
Bank of India has permitted Banks to use the rating of the seven domestic ECRAs namely (a) Credit Analysis
and Research Ltd., (CARE), (b) CRISIL Ltd., (c) Fitch India, (d) ICRALtd., (e) Brickwork Ratings India P. Ltd
(Brickwork) and (f) SMERA Rating Limited (SMERA) and (g) INFOMERICS Valuation and Rating Pvt Ltd.,
(INFOMERICS). In consideration of the above guidelines, the bank accepts the ratings assigned by all these
ECRAs.

The bank has well-structured internal credit rating mechanism to evaluate the credit risk associated with a
borrower and accordingly the systems are in place for taking credit decisions with regard to acceptability of
proposals, and level of exposures and pricing.

In case of bank's investmentin particular issues of Corporate / PSEs, the issue specific rating of the approved
ECRAs are reckoned and accordingly the risk weights have been applied after a corresponding mapping to
rating scale is provided.

With regard to the coverage of exposures by external ratings as relevant for capital computation under
Standardized Approach, the process is being popularized among the borrowers so as to take the benefit of
capital relief available for better rating of customers.

e Rating assigned by one rating agency is used for all types of claims on the borrowing entity.
e Longtermratings are used for facilities with contractual maturity of one year & above.
e Shorttermratings are generally applied for facilities with contractual maturity of less than one year.
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Quantitative Disclosures

For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardized approach, amount of a bank's
outstanding (rated and unrated) in the following three major risk buckets as well as those that are deducted
as perrisk mitigation are given below;

(% in millions )

Risk Weight Rated Unrated Total *
Below 100% 11503.01 145951.90 157454.91
100% 26796.73 49008.14 75804.87
More than 100% 49065.61 44749.89 93815.50
Total Exposure before mitigation 87365.35 239709.93 327075.28
Deducted (as per Risk Mitigation) 10164.89 52172.38 62337.27
Total outstanding after mitigation 77200.46 187537.55 264738.01

* This includes total gross credit exposure i.e. (FB+ NFB (including 2% of Forward Contract) + undrawn or
partially undrawn fund based facility)

Table DF 5
CREDIT RISKMITIGATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED APPROACHES
Qualitative disclosures:
Policy on Credit Risk Mitigation under Standardized Approach:

As advised by RBI, the Bank has adopted the comprehensive approach relating to credit risk mitigation under
Standardized Approach, which allows fuller offset of securities (primary and collateral) against exposures, by
effectively reducing the exposure amount by the value ascribed to the securities. Thus the eligible financial
collaterals are fully used to reduce the credit exposure in computation of credit risk capital. In doing so, the
bank has recognized specific securities namely (a) bank's own deposits (b) Gold/Ornaments (c) Life
Insurance Policies (d) Government Securities (€) NSC/KVP etc and (f) Units of Mutual Funds, in line with the
RBI guidelines on the subject.

Besides, other approved forms of credit risk mitigation are “On Balance Sheet netting” and availability of
“Eligible Guarantees”. On balance sheet nettings has been reckoned to the extent of the deposits available
against the loans /advances of the borrower (to the extent of exposure) as per the RBI guidelines. Further, in
computation of credit risk capital, the types of guarantees recognized for taking mitigation, in line with RBI
guidelines are (a) Central Government Guarantee (0%) (b) State Government (20%) (¢c) CGTMSE (0%)
(d) ECGC (20%) (e) Bank Guarantee in the form of bills purchased / discounted under Letter of credit (20%)
and (f) Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Trust for Low Income Housing (CRGFTLIH) (0%). The Bank has ensured
compliance of legal certainty as prescribed by the RBI in the matter of credit risk mitigation.

Concentration Risk in Credit Risk Mitigation:

All types of securities eligible for mitigation are easily realizable financial securities. As such, presently no
limit/ceiling has been prescribed to address the concentration risk in credit risk mitigants recognized by the
Bank.
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Quantitative Disclosures:

(% in millions )

a. For each separately disclosed credit risk portfolio, the total exposure (after, where
applicable, on-or off balance sheet netting) that is covered by eligible financial collateral
(FCs) after the application of haircuts is given below:

Portfolio category

Financial collateral

Quantum of exposure

covered
1. Funded — Credit Bank"s own deposits 13301.31
2. Funded — Credit Gold jewels 36851.60
3. Funded - Credit Life Insurance policies 237.78
4. Funded - Credit NSC/KVP 15.06
4. Non Funded Bank"s own deposits 11931.52

b. For each separately disclosed Portfolio, the total exposure (after, on balance sheet
netting) thatis covered by Gurantees :

1. Funded - Credit ECGC 800.00
2. Funded — Credit CGTMSE 360.08
Table DF - 6

Securitization: Disclosure for standardized approach

Qualitative Disclosures

The bank has not undertaken any securitization activity.
Quantitative Disclosures: NIL

Table DF-7
MARKET RISKIN TRADING BOOK

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) MarketRisk:

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a bank in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions
caused by the changes / movements in the market variables such as interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, equity prices and commodity prices. Bank's exposure to market risk arises from domestic
investments (interest related instruments and equities) in trading book (both AFS and HFT categories), the
Foreign exchange positions (including open position in precious metals) and trading related derivatives. The
objective of the market risk management is to minimize the impact of losses on earnings and equity capital
arising from market risk.

Policies for management of Market Risk:

The bank has put in place Board approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy and Investment Policy
for effective management of market risk in the bank. The policy sets various risk limits for effective
management of market risk and ensuring that the operations are in line with Bank's expectation of return to
market risk through proper Asset Liability Management. The policy also deals with the reporting framework
for effective monitoring of market risk.
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The ALM policy specifically deals with liquidity risk management and interest rate risk management
framework. As envisaged in the policy, Liquidity risk is managed through the mismatch analysis, based on
residual maturity / behavioral pattern of assets and liabilities, on a daily basis based on best available data
coverage, as prescribed by the RBI. The bank has put in place mechanism of short-term dynamic liquidity
management and contingent funding plan. Prudential (tolerance) limits are prescribed for different residual
maturity time buckets for efficient asset liability management. Liquidity profile of the bank is evaluated
through various liquidity ratios. The bank has also drawn various contingent measures to deal with any kind
of stress on liquidity position. Bank ensures adequate liquidity managed on a real time basis by Domestic
Treasury through systematic and stable funds planning.

Interest Rate Risk is managed through use of GAP analysis of rate sensitive assets and liabilities and
monitored through prudential (tolerance) limits prescribed. The bank has also put in place Duration Gap
Analysis framework for management of interest rate risk. The bank estimates Earnings at Risk (EaR) and
Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) periodically against adverse movement in interest rate (as prescribed in the
Policy) for assessing the impact on Net Interest Income (NIl) and Economic Value of Equity (EVE) with a view
to optimize shareholder value.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) /Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB)
monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and determines the strategy in the light of the
market condition (current and expected) as articulated in the ALM policy.

Quantitative Disclosures:

a) In line with the RBI's guidelines, the bank has computed capital for market risk as per Standardized
Duration Approach (SDA) framework for maintaining capital.
The Capital requirements for marketrisk in trading Book as on 31.03.2018

(% in millions )

Interest Rate Risk 1779.65

Equity Position Risk 79.48

Foreign Exchange Risk 40.50

Total 1899.63
Table DF 8

OPERATIONAL RISK

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Operational Risk:
Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems

orfrom external events. Operationalrisk includes legal risk but excludes strategic and reputation risks.

Policies on management of Operational Risk:

The Bank has framed Operational Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Bank's Board. Other
policies adopted by the Board which deal with management of Operational risk are (a) Information Systems
Security Policy, (b) Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy (c) Policy document on Know Your
Customers (KYC) and Anti Money Laundering (AML) Procedures (d) IT Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery Plan (ITBC-DRP).

The Operational Risk Management Policy adopted by the Bank outlines organization structure and detail
processes for management of operational risk. The basic objective of the policy is to closely integrate
operational risk management system into the day-to-day risk management processes of the bank by clearly
assigning roles for effectively identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling / mitigating operational risk
and by timely reporting of operational risk exposures, including material operational losses. Operational
risks in the Bank are managed through comprehensive and well-articulated internal control frameworks.
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Quantitative Disclosures:

a) Inline with the final guidelines issued by RBI, the Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator Approach for
computing capital for Operational Risk. As perthe guidelines, the capital charge for Operational Risk is equal
to the 15 % of the previous three years (2015-16, 2016-17 & 2017-18) average positive annual Gross income
as defined by RBI. As per such estimate, the capital requirement for operational risk as on 31.03.2018 is [J
2450.76 mn.

Table DF 9

INTEREST RATE RISKIN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book:

Interest Rate Risk is the risk where changes in the market interest rates might affect a bank's financial
condition. Changes in interest rates affect both the current earnings (earnings perspective) as also the net
worth of the Bank (economic value perspective). The risk from earnings perspective can be measured as
impact in the Net Interest Income (NII) or Net Interest Margin (NIM). Similarly, the risk from economic value
perspective can be measured as drop in the Economic value of Equity (EVE).

The Bank identifies the risks associated with the changing interest rates on its on-balance sheet and off-
balance sheet exposures in the banking book from a short term (Earning perspective) and long term
(Economic value perspective).

The impact on income (Earning perspective) is measured by using Earnings at Risk (EaR) with the
assumption that the re-pricing dates of assets and liabilities are evenly spread across the respective time
buckets and the change in interest rate is uniform across the maturity spectrum. The prudential limit on EaR
will be 10% of the previous year Net Interest Income (NIl). For the calculation of impact on earnings, the
Traditional Gap is taken from the Rate Sensitivity Statement and based on the remaining period from the mid
point of a particular bucket the impact for change in interest rates upto 100 bps is arrived at. The same is
reported to ALCO/Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB) periodically along with the Rate
Sensitivity statement on monthly basis.

The Bank has adopted Traditional Gap Analysis combined with Duration Gap Analysis for assessing the
impact (as a percentage) on the Economic value of Equity (Economic Value Perspective) by applying a
notional interest rate shock of 200 bps. As per the Guidelines on Banks” Asset Liability Management
Framework-Interest Rate Risk issued by the RBI (DBOD.No.BP.BC.59/21.04.098/2010-11 dated
04.11.2010), the Bank calculates Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) & the impact on the Economic Value of
equity (EVE). Assets and Liabilities are grouped as per Interest Rate Sensitivity Statement & bucket wise
Modified Duration is computed for these groups of Assets and Liabilities using account level coupon and
yield as per yield curves suggested by RBI, actual Re-price date of the individual account is considered for
bucketing, Weighted average Modified duration is calculated at account level by using “Market value”, the
yield is taken as per the internal rating and external rating mapping at account level, Modified duration is
calculated individually for each forward and swap contracts. For investment portfolio, the Modified Duration
of individual items are computed and taken. The DGAP is calculated by the Bank once in a month and is
reported to ALCO/ Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB).
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The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) / Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB)
monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and determines the strategy in the light of market
conditions (current and expected).

Quantitative Disclosures:
The increase or decrease in earnings and economic value for upward and downward rate shocks based on

the assets and liabilities outstanding as on 31.03.2018 are as follows.
1. The impact of change in Interest Rate i.e Earnings at Risk for increasing 100 Basis points interest rate

shockis [1471.20 mn (4.09 % of previous year Net Interest Income).

2. Change in Market Value of Equity for 200 basis points interest rate shock is 71 44602.74 mn (13.10 % of
Networth)

TABLE DF 10

General disclosures for exposures related to counterparty credit risk

Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) is the risk that a counter party to a transaction could default before the final
settlement of the transaction cash flows. Unlike a firm's exposure to credit risk through a loan, where the
exposure to credit risk is unilateral and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, CCR creates a bilateral
risk of loss to either party.

Counterparty credit risk in case of derivative contracts arises from the forward contracts. The subsequent
credit risk exposures depend on the value of underlying market factors (e.g., interest rates and foreign
exchange rates), which can be volatile and uncertain in nature. The Bank does not enter into derivative
transactions other than forward contracts.

Credit exposures on forward contracts
The Bank enters into the forward contracts in the normal course of business for proprietary trading and

arbitrage purposes, as well as for our own risk management needs, including mitigation of interest rate and
foreign currency risk. Derivative exposures are calculated according to the current exposures method.
Counterparty Credit exposure as on March 31,2018

( T in millions)

Current Credit . Total Credit
. Potential Exposure
Notional Exposure .
Nature o Future Credit | under Current
Amount (positive mark to E E
market value) xposure xposure
Method (CEM)
Forward
contracts 97605.69 365.09 1973.58 2338.67
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Composition of Capital Disclosure Templates

Part I: Template to be used only from March 31, 2017

(X in millions )

Basel lll common disclosure template to be used from
March 31, 2017
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves Ref No.

1 Directly issued qualifying common share capital 1425.11

plus related stock surplus (share premium)

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other 32427.73
reserves)

4 |Directly issued capital subject to phase out To be disclosed half yearly
from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock & yearly
companies)

5 |Common share capital issued by subsidiaries and
held by third parties (amount allowed in group
CET1)

6 |Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory 33852.84
adjustments

Common Equity Tier 1 capital : Regulatory adjustments
7__|Prudential valuation adjustments

8 |Goodwill (net of related tax liability)

9 |Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net
of related tax liability)

10 [Deferred tax assets

11 [Cash-flow hedge reserve

12 |Shortfall of provisions to expected losses

13 |Securitization gain on sale

14 |Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk
on fair valued liabilities

15 |Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

16 |Investments in own shares (if not already netted off
paid-up capital on reported balance sheet)

17 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity

18 |Investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)
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Common Equity Tier 1 capital : Regulatory adjustments

\l

Prudential valuation adjustments

oo

Goodwill (net of related tax liability)

Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net
of related tax liability)

10

Deferred tax assets

11

Cash-flow hedge reserve

12

Shortfall of provisions to expected losses

13

Securitization gain on sale

14

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk
on fair valued liabilities

15

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

16

Investments in own shares (if not already netted off
paid-up capital on reported balance sheet)

17

Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity

18

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

19

Significant investments in the common stock of
banking, financial and insurance entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of
eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)

20

Mortgage servicing rights(amount above 10%

21

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of
related tax liability)

22

Amount exceeding the 15% threshold

23

of which : significant investments in the common
stock of financial entities

24

of which : mortgage servicing rights

25

of which : deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences

26

National specific regulatory adjustments
(26a+26b+26¢c+26d)

26a

of which : Investments in the equity capital of
unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

26b

of which : Investments in the equity capital of
unconsolidated non- financial subsidiaries




96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018

TN\B

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead of life

26¢

of which : Shortfall in the equity capital of majority
owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank

26d

of which : Unamortised pension funds expenditures

27

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common
Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier 1
and Tier 2 to cover deductions

28

Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity
Tier 1

29

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1)

33852.84

Additional Tier 1 capital : instruments

30 |[Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1
instruments plus related stock surplus (share
premium) (31+32)

31 |of which : classified as equity under applicable

accounting standards (Perpetual Non-Cumulative
preference Shares)

32

of which : classified as liabilities under
applicable accounting standards (Perpetual debt
Instruments)

33

Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out
from Additional Tier 1

34

Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1 instruments
not included in row 5) issued by subsidiaries and
held by third parties (amount allowed in group AT1)

35

of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to
phase out

36 Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory
adjustments
Additional Tier 1 capital: requlatory adjustments
37 |Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments
38 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1
instruments
39 |Investments in the capital of banking, financial and

insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued common share capital of the entity (amount above

10% threshold)
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40

Significant investments in the capital of banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside the
scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible
short positions)

41

National specific regulatory adjustments (41a+41b)

41a

Of which : Investments in the Additional Tier 1
capital of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

41b

Of which:- Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of
majority owned financial entities which have not been
consolidated with the bank.

42 |Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to
insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions
43 |Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1

capital

44 |Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1)
45 |Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + Admissible AT1) (29 + 44)] 33852.84
Tier 2 capital : instruments and provisions
46 |Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments plus
related stock surplus
47 |Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase out
from Tier 2
48 |Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments not
included in rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and held
by third parties (amount allowed in group Tier 2)
49 |of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to
phase out
50 [Provisions include the following
a) Investment Reserve 195.06 mn
b) Provision for Standard Asset including
restructured standard assets 975.47 mn
c) Provision for unhedged Foreign
Currency Exposure 31.90 mn
d) Provision for MSME Advances 14.76 mn 1217.19
51 [Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 1217.19
(46+ 47 + 48 + 50)
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments
52 |(Investments in own Tier 2 instruments
53 |Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments
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54

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and
insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions,
where the bank does not own more than 10% of the
issued common share capital of the entity (amount above
the 10% threshold)

55

Significant investments-in the capital banking,
financial and insurance entities that are outside

the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of
eligible short positions)

percentage of risk weighted assets)

56 [National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+56b)
56a |of which : Investments in the Tier 2 capital of

unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries
56b |of which : Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of majority

owned financial entities which have not been

consolidated with the bank
57 |Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital
58 |Tier 2 capital (T2) 1217.19
59 |Total capital (TC =T1 + T2) (45 + 58) 35070.03
60 |[Total risk weighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c) 236511.38
60a |of which : total credit risk weighted assets 188173.74
60b |of which : total market risk weighted assets 21106.98
60c |of which : total operational risk weighted assets 27230.66

Capital ratios and buffers

61 |Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted 14.31%
62 |[Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 14.31%
63 |[Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 14.83%
64 |Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum CET1

requirement plus capital conservation and

countercyclical buffer requirements plus G-SIB buffer

requirement, expressed as a percentage of risk

weighted assets)
65 |of which : capital conservation buffer requirement
66 |of which : bank specific countercyclical buffer requirement
67 |of which : G-SIB buffer requirement
68 |Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers (as a NA

National minima (if different from Basel lll)
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69 |National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different 5.50%
from Basel Il minimum)
70 |National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from Basel Il 7.00% 6.00%
minimum)
71 |National total capital minimum ratio (if different from Basel 9.00% 10.875%
[l minimum)
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk
weighting)
72 |Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial| ___
entities
73 [Significant investments in the common stock of financial |___
entities

74 |Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability)

75 |Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
(net of related tax liability)

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2

76 |Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect
of exposures subject to standardized approach
(prior to application of cap)

77 |Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under
standardized approach

78 |Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach
(prior to application of cap)

79 |Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal
ratings-based approach

Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only
applicable between March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2022)

80 |Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out
arrangements

81 |Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

82 |[Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out
arrangements

83 |Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

84 |Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out

85 |Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess
over cap after redemptions and maturities)

O
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Notes to the template

Row No.
of the
template

Particulars

(% in millions )

10

Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses

0.00

Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated with accumulated
losses) net of Deferred tax liability

0.00

Total as indicated in row 10

19

If investments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully
from capital and instead considered under 10% threshold for
deduction, the resultant increase in the capital of bank

of which : Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital

of which : Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital

of which : Increase in Tier 2 capital

26b

If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-
financial subsidiaries are not deducted and hence, risk weighted
then :

(i) Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital

(ii) Increase in risk weighted assets

50

Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital

1217.19

Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital

Total of row 50

1217.19
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Table DF-12:
Composition of Capital — Reconciliation Requirements
Step 1:
(X in millions )
Balance sheet
Balance sheet under
- as in financial regulatory
statements scope of
consolidation
As on As on reporting
reporting date | date
A | Capital & Liabilities
" | Paid-up Capital 1425.11 N.A
Reserves & Surplus 32622.78 N.A
Minority Interest 0
Total Capital 34047.89 N.A
ii. | Deposits 324283.32
of which : Deposits from banks 0.36
of which : Customer deposits 324282.96
of which : Other deposits (pl. specify)
iii. | Borrowings 5130.00
of which : From RBI 4480.00
of which : From banks 0
of which : From other institutions & 0
agencies
of v_vhlch : Others (pl. specify) Outside 650.00
India
of which : Capital instruments 0
iv. | Other liabilities & provisions 15738.31
Total 379199.52 N.A
B | Assets
i. ﬁ]?‘j?: and balances with Reserve Bank of 17017.78
Balance with .banks and money at call 3017.25
and short notice
ii. | Investments : 103636.13
of which : Government securities 87336.25

I E




96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018

' Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead of life

of which : Other approved securities 0.00
of which : Shares 331.39
of which : Debentures & Bonds 14787.47
of which : Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures /
) 0.00
Associates
of which : Others (Commercial Papers, 1181.02
Mutual Funds etc.) '
iii. | Loans and advances 237687.18
of which : Loans and advances to banks 0.00
of which : Loans and advances to 237687 18
customers
iv. | Fixed assets 1402.97
V. | Other assets 16438.21
of which : Goodwill and intangible assets 0
of which : Deferred tax assets 521.26
vi. | Goodwill on consolidation
vii. | Debit balance in Profit & Loss account 0
Total Assets 379199.52 N.A
Step 2:

1) As the Bank

is not having any subsidiary,

no disclosure

relating any legal entity for regulatory consolidation is made.

2) The entire paid up capital of the Bank amounting to 31425.11
million is included in CET I. (refer Item | of DF-11)

3) The break up for Reserves & Surplus 332622.78 mn as shown
in the Bank's financial statements is given hereunder for the
purpose of reconciliation for calculation of Regulatory Cagptal in

DF-11.

(% in millions )

As per Balance Sheet Amount As shown in DF-11 Capital

a) Statutory Reserves 11617.79 |ncluded in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
(item-3)

b) Capital Reserves 257.14 |Included in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
(item-3)

c)Revenue and Other 18543.41 [ncluded in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11

Reserves (item-3)

d) Investment reserve 195.05 [ncluded in Regulatory Tier |l capital DF-
11(item-50)

e) Special Reserve u/s 1649.00 |Included in Regulatory CET | Capital (DF11-

36(1) (Viii) of IT Act 1961 item 3)

f) Balance in P&L 360.39 |Included in CET | (item 3- DF11)

32622.78
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4) a)Other Liabilities:-a) Provision for Standard assets including
restructured standard assets ¥975.47 mn (ltem-50 - DF-11)

b) Provision for unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure ¥31.90 mn(item-50 -DF-11)

c)Provision for MSME Advances 3%14.76 mn (Item— 50 — DF — 11)

However they are shown under Tier Il capital for computation of Regulatory Capital
(DF-11) as noted in brackets as per extant RBI guidelines.

Step 3

Extract of Basel Ill common disclosure template (with added column) - Table DF-11
(Part | / Part Il whichever, applicable)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves

Source based on
Component |reference numbers  /
of regulatory |letters of the balance

capital sheet under the

reported by|regulatory scope of

bank consolidation from step
2

1 |Directly issued qualifying common share (and
equivalent for non-joint stock companies) 1425 11
capital plus related stock surplus '

2 |Retained earnings

3 [Accumulated other comprehensive 32427.73
income (and other reserves)

4 |[Directly issued capital subject to phase out
from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock

5 [Common share capital issued by

subsidiaries and held by third parties
(amount allowed in group CET1)

6 [Common Equity Tier 1 capital before 33852.84
regulatory adjustments

7 |Prudential valuation adjustments 0.00

8 |Goodwill (net of related tax liability)
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Table DF-1

Main Features of Requlatory Capital

S-No Description Equity Shares
1 |ssuer Tamilnad Mﬁlt'(c;antile Bank
2 Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg Not listed
identifier for private placement)
3 |Governing law(s) of the instrument Indian Laws
Regulatory treatment
4 | Transitional Basel Il rules Common equity Tier 1
5 |Post-transitional Basel Il rules Common equity Tier 1
6 | Eligible at solo / group / group & solo Solo
7 |Instrument type Common Shares
o Amountrocegnized h equaton epal Ro- | 11425, milon
9 |Par value of instrument 110 per share
10 |Accounting classification Shareholder's Equity
11 | Original date of issuance Various
12 | Perpetual or dated Perpetual
13 | Original maturity date No
14 |Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No
15 |Optional call date, contingent call dates and NA
redemption amount
16 |Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA
Coupons / dividends
17 | Fixed or floating dividend / coupon NA
18 |Coupon rate and any related index NA
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19 |Existence of a dividend stopper No

20 | Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory Fully Discretionary

21 |Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem No

22 | Noncumulative or cumulative Non-Cumulative

23 | Convertible or non-convertible NA

24 | If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA

25 | If convertible, fully or partially NA

26 |If convertible, conversion rate NA

27 |If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion NA

28 |If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into NA

29 |If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it NA
converts into

30 |Write-down feature No

31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA

32 | If write-down, full or partial NA

33 | If write-down, permanent or temporary NA

34 | If temporary write-down, description of write-up NA
mechanism

g5 Fosiion n subordnaton irercy i Suborinate t all ot
immediately senior to instrument) claims

36 |Non-compliant transitioned features No

37 |If yes, specify non-compliant features NA
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Table DF - 14

Full Terms and Conditions of Requlator Capital Instruments

The details of the Tier Il capital [Bonds]raised by the Bank

composition and mandate of the
Remuneration Committee.

Table DF-14 : Full Terms and Conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments

Instruments Full Terms and Conditions

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Table DF-15:
Disclosure Requirements for Remuneration

‘Qualitative (@) |Information relating to the|The Remuneration Committee
disclosures name has been changed as

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has been
formed with 4 Directors and the MD
& CEO. The mandate of the
committee is to fix remuneration in
line with the risk taken by
employees.

(b)

Information relating to the design
and structure of remuneration
processes and the key features
and objectives of remuneration

policy.

Bank's Compensation Policy,
containing the guidelines on
compensation of Whole time
directors/ Chief executive officers/
risk takers, control functionaries
etc., was approved by Board of
Directors in their meeting dated
23.05.2018. The key principle of the
policy would be that the
compensation shall be aligned with
the type and nature of risk taken by
employees.

Description of the ways in which
current and future risks are taken
into account in the remuneration
processes. It should include the
nature and type of the key
measures used to take account
of these risks.

Regional Heads, Branch Heads, IT
department officials and Dealers in
Treasury & IBD are paid special pay
based on risk taken by them.
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Description of the ways in which the
bank seeks to link performance
during a performance measurement
period with levels of remuneration.

A performance based incentive
scheme was approved by our Board
of Directors in their meeting held on
06.10.2017.

A discussion of the bank's policy on
deferral and vesting of variable
remuneration and a discussion of
the bank's policy and criteria for
adjusting deferred remuneration
before vesting and after vesting.

There is no deferred remuneration
paymentto employees.

Description of the different forms of
variable remuneration (i.e. cash,
shares, ESOPs and other forms)
that the bank utilizes and the
rationale for using these different
forms.

The remuneration is in the form of
cash only. There is no remuneration
in the form of Shares, ESOP and
other forms.

Quantitative
disclosures

(The quantitative

disclosures
should only
cover Whole

Time Directors /
Chief Executive
Officer / Other

Risk Takers)

*

Number of meetings held by the
Remuneration Committee
during the financial year and
remuneration paid to its
members.

Number of meetings held by the
Nomination and Remuneration
committee is three (24.04.2017,
28.10.2017 and 19.01.2018) and
remuneration paid to its members is
NIL.

—

* INumber of  employees
having received a variable
remuneration award during
the financial year.

Nil

* INumber and total amount of
sign-on awards made
during the financial year.

Nil

Details of guaranteed bonus,
if any, paid as joining / sign
on bonus.

Nil

* |Details of severance pay, in
addition to accrued benefits,
if any.

Nil
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(i)

Total amount of outstanding
deferred remuneration, split
into cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other
forms.

Nil

Total amount of deferred
remuneration paid out in
the financial year.

Nil

1),

Breakdown of amount of
remuneration awards for the
financial year to show fixed
and variable, deferred and
non-deferred.

Nil

(k)

Total amount of outstanding
deferred remuneration and

retained remuneration
exposed to ex post explicit
and / or implicit
adjustments.

Nil

Total amount of reductions
during the financial year due
to ex- post explicit
adjustments.

Nil

Total amount of reductions
during the financial year due
to ex- post implicit
adjustments.

Nil

Table DF 16

Equities-Disclosure for Banking Book Positions

The bank has no exposures in equities under Banking Book.

Table DF 17

Leverage Ratio Disclosure

The Leverage ratio act as a credible supplementary measure to the bank based capital requirement. The
Bank is required to maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 4.5%. The Bank's leverage ratio, calculated in
accordance with the RBI guidelines is as follows;
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COMPARISON OF ACCOUNTING ASSETS AND LEVERAGE RATIO EXPOSURE

(% in millions )

Particulars

Amount as
of June 17

Amount as
of Sep’17

Amount as
of Dec’17

Amount as
of Mar’18

Total consolidated assets as
per published financial
statements include SFTs

368211.70

369801.80

371411.47

379199.52

Adjustment for investments in
banking, financial, insurance
or commercial entities that are
consolidated for accounting
purposes but outside the
scope of regulatory
consolidation

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjustment for fiduciary
assets recognized on the
balance sheet pursuant to the
operative accounting
framework but excluded from
the leverage ratio exposure
measure

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjustments for derivative
financial instruments

1880.78

1648.85

1498.36

1973.58

Adjustment for securities
financing transactions (i.e.
repos and similar secured
lending)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjustment for off-balance
sheet items (i.e. conversion to
credit equivalent amounts of
off- balance sheet exposures)

44385.19

41500.29

41023.66

30590.08

Other adjustments

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Leverage ratio exposure

414477.67

412950.94

413933.49

411763.18
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Table DF -1

Leverage ratio common disclosure

(% in millions )

S.No

Leverage Ratio
Framework

Amount
as of
June 17

Amount
as of
Sep’17

Amount
as of
Dec’17

Amount
as of
Mar’18

On-balance sheet exposures

On-balance sheet items
(excluding derivatives and
SFTs, butincluding collateral)

368211.70

369801.80

371411.47

379199.52

(Asset amounts deducted in
determining Basel Il Tier 1
capital)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total on-balance sheet
exposures (excluding
derivatives and SFTs) (sum of
lines 1and 2)

368211.70

369801.80

371411.47

379199.52

Derivative exposures

Replacement cost associated
with all derivatives
transactions (i.e. net of eligible
cash variation margin)

Add-on amounts for PFE
associated with all derivatives
transactions

1880.78

1648.85

1498.36

1973.58

Gross-up for derivatives
collateral provided where
deducted from the balance
sheet assets pursuant to the
operative accounting
framework

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(Deductions of receivables
assets for cash variation
margin provided in derivatives
transactions)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

(Exempted CCP leg of client-
cleared trade exposures)

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Adjusted effective notional
amount of written credit
derivatives

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00
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(Adjusted effective notional
10 offsets and add-on deductions
for written credit derivatives)
Total derivative exposures
11 |(sumoflines 4to10) 1880.78 1648.85 1498.36 1973.58
Securities financing transaction exposures
Gross SFT assets (with no
recognition of netting), after
12 adjusting for sale accounting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
transactions
(Netted amounts of cash
payables and cash
13 receivables of gross SFT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
assets)
14 CCR exposure for SFT assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
15 |Agenttransaction exposures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total s_ecurities financing
oI Rl e (sum of 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other off-balance sheet exposures
Off-balance sheet exposure at
17 |gross notional amount 102656.70 | 96734.23 | 96690.62 97605.69
(Adjustments for conversion to
18 | creditequivalentamounts) (568271.51) | (55233.94) | (565666.96) | (67015.61)
19 | Offbalance sheetitems |, 355 19| 4150020 | 41023.66| 30590.08
(sum of lines 17 and 18)
Capital and total exposures
20 | Tier 1 capital 31839.86 | 31839.86 | 31839.86 | 33852.84
Total exposures (sum of
21 lines 3, 11, 16 and 19) 414477.67 | 412950.94 | 413933.49 | 411763.18
Leverage ratio
22 | Basel lll leverage ratio 7.68% 7.711% 7.69% 8.22%
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH 2018
8Ly Bewed GO &evosE 31-03-2018

(% in thousands)

Schedule | \o 1 31.03.2018 | As on 31.03.2017
SILL6U6m600T

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES :
CLPEDSEOT(PLD & QLIMM)LIL|&ETBLD
Capital 1 1425115 1425115
UMI@ eLPe0SH60TLD
Reserves & Surplus 2 32622776 30815270
Q&HIHSGSHET LDHMILD 6TEhAUIBLILIEDEN
Deposits 3 324283322 321901495
ULl BaeT
Borrowings 4 5130000 Nil
QUDD &L 60THET
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 15738309 15701781
85y OUMNIILESET ONID QSISEGS6T

TOTAL 379199522 369843661
ASSETS :
QFTSHSISHE6T
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 17017777 14582046
apnes SmUyd fsiel eumBuisd 2 eTemr &BLILLD
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 7 3017248 4875549
85y eumBuied 2 etem GHLILLD
Investments 8 103636131 115044766
WPEHEOBE6T
Advances 9 237687185 219723197
QENBSHS &L 60TH6T
Fixed Assets 10 1402973 1543865
BEMEOWITENT CIEMEHSIHSHET
Other Assets 11 16438208 14074238
85p QsFTHFIBEET

TOTAL 379199522 369843661
Contingent Liabilities 12 130574814 117682391
SHSTUUMIGemeT Slgnisilss aUTMILILSET
Bills for Collection 8275742 14868838
USHQIGS CILDMIGEHNE00TL. Lled&6iT
Significant Accounting Policies 17
WPHEW HETUTHG QBIILPEDME6T
Notes form part of Accounts 18
HEUUTHSE6T FLOLIHSLDTET 6leneHaH6),emT
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
GG GHILIL BT Sl Leuemevoraet, eurkld SmLLBene &HeursECaETdE Senetunhs LGSSWITEGLD.

Sd\- K.V. Rama Moorthy

Managing Director & CEO

Sd\- S.Annamalai Sd\- Anupkumar Sd\- S.R.Ashok

Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar

Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy Sd\- K.Nagarajan

Sd\- D.N.Nirranjan Kani

Sd\- K.V.Rajan Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan Sd\- B.Vijayadurai Directors
Directors Directors Directors

Thoothukudi

25.06.2018
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018

@wﬂu JI)QQL& 5665]'5@ 31-03-2018 (? in thousands)
Schedule For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
SIL L 6160600 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
INCOME
6 (HLDTEOTLD
Interest earned (auipuiistr opeod QLHDE) 13 32504925 33809605
Other Income (@sy eugbLoneoILD) 14 5061222 4305081
EXPENDITURE TOTAL 37566147 38114686
615606) &6
Interest Expended 15 20407554 22301536
QBMEB&HELILLL 6L LR
Operating Expenses 16 7098578 7055700
[BEDL(LPEDD 61FE06YSH6IT
Provisions & Contingencies 7840853 5590803
@516EGS6T ONILD THTLINTT 615606 86T
PROFIT / LOSS TOTAL 35346985 34948039
Se0rLILD/BeigL LD
Net Profit for the year 2219162 3166647
8ny eumLESSeT Ber SeomuLd
Add : Profit brought forward 238268 27063
Q5D QUBLSBW SeonusBHed L5BS asTens
APPROPRIATIONS TOTAL 2457430 3193710
RFIEEBBET OFILIGHEDEN
Transfer to statutory reserve 670000 950000
SLLLYTOUDNENT @SI6SLIDE IHDLILILLE
Transfer to other reserves 660000 1200000
DT QFSSL DG LDMHOLUILILL S
Transfer to capital reserve 65025 192110
CLPEOBHETT QEISSL NG LDMHDLILILL S
Transfer to Investment reserve 360 285
WEOB REHSELINES LMHOILL LS
Transfer to Special Reserve 36(1)(viii) 290000 270000
Aol QSISSLIRHE LLIHOILLLS
Dividend
Interim Dividend & Dividend tax paid 411656 343047
B saMe0 Seonu URSEG eufl 2 UL
Proposed Dividend(e_sGsdésiurL &eomu umiEE)
Tax on Dividend @eonu umiLighaner eurfl)
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 360389 238268
SIBSHS ObeTUTIENGTET C1&MeT0T(B QFEELILBLD ESHMems
Face value of the equity share is Rs.10/-
TOTAL 2457430 3193710
Earning per share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs) 15.57 22.22
Significant Accounting Policies 17
Notes form part of Accounts 18
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

Sd\- R.Ravindran Sd\- P.Suriaraj Sd\- PC.Panda

Sd\- M.A.Nayagam Sd\- D.Inbamani Company Secretary
Sd\- S.Senthil Anandan  General Managers

General Managers

Vide our report of even date attached
For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
FRN No. 01931S
Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Chartered Accountants
Thoothukudi Partner (M.N0.23838)
25.06.2018
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE | - CAPITAL

SILLEUNHETIT 1 LPEDSHEDTLD

50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
¢B.10/- 6figb 50,00,00,000 LMRIGSET

Issued, Subscribed, Called-up and Paid-up Capital
14,25,11,454 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

GULDMRIGLILLLGILD UMM G&METemIULLGILD .10/
eliglb 14,25,1,454

TOTAL

SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS

SILLEUMETTT 2 QFISESGE6T HNID erehFIUlBLILIED6Y
I.  Statutory Reserves
FLLLLTOULDTENT Q5I6SBEH6T
Opening Balance
Sy Saply
Additions during the year
BLLIL Shevonged Beribsg!
Il. Capital Reserve
PEOSENT Q&IBEBES6T
Opening Balance
Spyibu by
Additions during the year
BLOY Spevoriged GEibHEI
Less: Transfer to Share Capital (Bonus issues)
TOTAL

TOTAL

lll. Revenue and Other Reserves
CLPEOBETT QFISSBE6T
Opening Balance
&by Saply
Additions during the year
BLOY Spevoriged GaifbHE!
Less: Transfer to Share Capital (Bonus issues)

TOTAL
IV. Special Reserve U/s.36(1)(viii) of LT.Act

Anly @686 - eudmwneref sl lidfey 360 (Viii)
Opening Balance
Spribu by
Additions during the year
BLOY Spevoriged GEibHE!
Deductions during the year

BLLUL| Shevoriged HLEISHSI TOTAL

V. Balance in Profit and Loss Account
Seoru BeQLS Hevoradeitule LBlGSWImeor &eomuLb

TOTAL : (I, I, 11, IV & V)

(% in thousands)

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
5000000 5000000
1425115 1425115
1425115 1425115

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017

10947786 9997786
670000 950000
11617786 10947786
192110 109273
65025 192110
Nil 109273
257135 192110
18078106 18190818
660360 1200285
Nil 1312997
18738466 18078106
1359000 1089000
290000 270000
Nil Nil
1649000 1359000
360389 238268
32622776 30815270
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS

AL

Sl Leueneror 3 emaLILBH 6T

Demand Deposits
GaL L emeuliL|BBeaeT
I) From Banks
URIBS 6L LS BB

ii) From Others
LhmleurseriL bbb

. Savings Bank Deposits

GrLAlIL &H60TEGE6IT
Term Deposits
&S &M eneullBs
I) From Banks
eI sefL LBl BHSI

ii) From Others

hmleurraerliL bbb TOTAL

Deposits of Branches in India
Srfuneled SmesGLD Hewensefed 2 eten eneULIL|BBHsET
Deposits of Branches outside India

QeuefiBT@G Hemenserfisd 2 6o emeuLiLjBHaeT

(% in thousands)
As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017

361 475

27587739 25044727
54518010 49740216

Nil 220000

242177212 246896077
324283322 321901495
324283322 321901495

Nil Nil

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(% in thousands)

SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS

As on 31.03.2018

As on 31.03.2017

SlL6NEMETTT 4 GUDD &L GOTEH6IT

Borrowings in India

8rfuneled euNmISW HLEOT&HET

i. Reserve Bank of India

flamel eurmSuILLOmBHSI

ii. Other Banks

857 euRIBUILLSBHSI

iii. Other Institutions and Agencies
85y B8 BieuaTmRIseiLLEIGbS!
Borrowings outside India
QevefiBEnGaeflsd QDD HLEOTEHET

TOTAL

Secured borrowings included in | and Il above
unglenesluLL sLerser GG GuilirL | wpnib || Sed

4480000 Nil
Nil Nil

Nil Nil
650000 Nil
5130000 Nil
4480000 Nil
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(% in thousands)

SCHEDULE 5-OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

As on 31.03.2018

As on 31.03.2017

Sl Leuenettr 5 &7 OUTDILILEST LOHNID Q&ISESEGE6T
I.  Bills Payable

QanGasIUL. Geuevorigul Lled&eT

II. Inter Office Adjustments (Net)

BewensEbHHemLGW 2 66 [Heaieneusei

lll. Interest Accrued
QENB&HsLILL Geuevoriow! 6L IR

IV. Deferred Tax liability
Seafl emeusSILLL euflssner aUmmILILSeT
V. Others ( Including Provisions )
Hwenel (RR&I6SGS6T)
TOTAL

1633540 1733885
Nil Nil
2210343 2222548
570444 980312
11323982 10765036
15738309 15701781

SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

As on 31.03.2018

As on 31.03.2017

Sl Leuemeror 6 apnes Ly Mamel eurkiduied 2 eer
8wy

Cash in hand

agnés Sy

Balance with Reserve Bank of India in Current Account
lerel eurmiBuied BLLUL Sevore@sete 2 atem &bl

TOTAL

2203049 1668705
14814728 12913341
17017777 14582046

SCHEDULE 7-BALANCES WITH BANKS & MONEY
AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE

As on 31.03.2018

As on 31.03.2017

Sl Leuemeror 7 &gy euriBuied 2 _eten LD GSmiBwl
SM0SHHD CUMMRIBHFnIPUl OSHTEDHIL|LD

I. InIndia

Spduwineiied

[) Balances with Banks

857 eumiIBuiled 2 et SapLiy
a) In current accounts
BLLUL &600T6ES6red
b) In other Deposits
DO &H600TE G SH6rT6d

ii) Money at call and short notice

GNIBW &ETOHBD AIMRIGSHEIQUI CSHTENS
a)With Banks

euBIB&erfled

b)With other institutions
8571 BnieueTmiseLLOBHS!

TOTAL
II.  Outside India
QeuerfimrGaeried
a) In current accounts
BLLUL &600T8ES6red
b) In other Deposits
DD &H600TE G SH6rT6d
TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL

389405 192636
25 25
2500000 3450000
Nil Nil
2889430 3642661
127818 160888
Nil 1072000
127818 1232888
3017248 4875549
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS

SILEUEHETT 8 (PHEOBEHET

Investments in India

SirBuinefett Wp&eOGEE6T

Government securities

Olps USSITRIGET

Other approved securities

wHn Smdsfesiur, LSSImIs6T
Shares

LIMBI&&6T

Debentures & Bonds

HLEOT LSSTHRISET

Others - Mutual Fund, Commercial Paper
LDHmemeN - LFevLTBS, euTssHs LSSImIEeT

TOTAL

Gross Investments
QLDNSS CLPSHEOBEET

Less: Depreciation
sLP68 :

GalLDNeTSBn&NeT HIGESD
TOTAL

Investments outside India
ceuelBEn@aeaied WPeHSGEEET

(% in thousands)
As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017

87336246 94105070
Nil Nil
331394 301878
14787467 11602669
1181024 9035149
103636131 115044766
104535346 116067273
899215 1022507
103636131 115044766
Nil Nil
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (% in thousands)
SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Sl LeNmeTTT O BNESHS HLEOTHET
A I.  Bills purchased and discounted 5208802 5428318
1p610&6)600TL. QIFILISSHHILD eUMMBIBUISHILDTEOT LN6d86IT
Il.  Cash credits, overdrafts and loans
repayable on demand 155568280 138301797
UmasLILUDN, SFS UDM| 6lens LDHMILD
CaL@D aumpgl 6&MBHs CeletoTioul HLE0TSH6T
Ill.  Term Loans 76910103 75993082
&HM60&EEHBEYETEN &L 60THET
TOTAL 237687185 219723197
B I. Secured by tangible assets 230350605 217070698
QNG QFTHENS LNemetonDNs LD
II. Covered by Bank / Government Guarantee 5718097 1359328
6urEld LDPMILD SIFsNRIS 2_HETEUTSHSILET nloWis
Ill.  Unsecured 1618483 1293171
NemevonLILBl6bEOTSH S
TOTAL 237687185 219723197
C. Advances in India
8iduinelled HLeTEHET
I.  Priority Sector 144630485 128136637
weteflemio irfley
1. Public Sector 7679628 3897996
aungisgienmLl ley
lll.  Banks Nil Nil
SURIBHET
IV.  Others 85377072 87688564
LDDHMEmE
TOTAL 237687185 219723197
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (% in thousands)
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Sl Leuemetor 10 [BemeDILITETT QFTSHSIE&SH6T

l. Premises
SLIQL MRISET
At cost as on March 31, preceding year 680538 608205
WPHemSW Sphevor® LDMTE 316D euNmRISW eflemedLiLip
Additions during the year 17186 72333
BLLIL| SheToTIEed EUMMRIBUIS
TOTAL* 697724 680538
Deductions during the year - -
LU Spe0orged BLISS5S!
697724 680538
Depreciation to date 212918 205533
mreng euemguied GILILDTeTLD
TOTAL 484806 475005

Il Other Fixed Assets ( including furniture
and fixtures)
LImBemeowInesT QFTSHSHIHSH6T
(Sl@eueos OUNGBLEEHLD GarhgHemel)

At cost as on March 31, preceding year 3558073 3247700
WPHeDSI Shevor(® LDMTE 3160 euMMRISWI eXlemeDLiLip
Additions during the year 242004 313073
BLLIL Sh600TIged QUMRISWISI

TOTAL 3800077 3560773
Deductions during the year 3367 2700
TBLLIL| Sbevoriged SLSHII

3796710 3558073

Depreciation to date 2878543 2489213
mrengl euemgufled GsIILDmeDTLD

TOTAL 918167 1068860

* - Includes building under construction at cost
(Uin thousands)13267 (Previous year 13596)

GRAND TOTAL (I & 1) 1402973 1543865
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(% in thousands)

SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS

VL.

VII.

Sl Leuemetor 11 - 57 QFTHSHIGSHET

Inter-Office adjustments (Net)
BenensEnhBenL Gl 2 _6ierm [BeniemeveT

Interest accrued

eugGeuevoTioul UL LR

Tax paid in advance / tax deducted at source
pevTeoTesns aFSSW / Wiessd eFiurL eurfl
Stationery and stamps

USSBMIGET, LINITRIGET LDMMILD Olehaed SHEmeDEHET
Non-Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
BLET QUEEEEHSETE ALDD emBUIaT agmled &mns asnsgssem
Deferred Tax Asset

seiterl emeusSLLILL euflssner 615TSHSISHsH6T

Other Assets

857 66NSFIBHET

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017
Nil Nil
2649331 2687527
6839821 5718423
16490 10942
Nil Nil
521256 339020
6411310 5318326
TOTAL 16438208 14074238

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(% in thousands)

SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Sl Leuemertr 12 ShTUUMIGemeT Slgnisilss aUIMILILSET

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts
amIBs® erdnner meel G Canlsensaer

Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts
erBumiy SibBul aFeeuTetoll QULIHSHISET60TTE0
Q&snGes Geuevonoul GILITMILIL|S6T

Guarantee given on behalf of constituents in India
QUMRBEDSILITENTHEhSSMET (BhSWwneisd) 2 _sHBreungsd
Q&MBSHSHeMm6EY

Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations
SIBSHSHEUTHEBEHTET ShBHTEUTET [HL6UIREENEHSHEI6D
FDULSSnIUI QILITMILIL|S6T

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account not provided for and Liab.under DEAF
PssiuL Gaueuonowl QUUBSHIBEHSEHTEN cLPEISET
AFOEBERHEHTET QEBEILLL ASTEDE

As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017

123351 144934

97605693 72563580

20958528 34140491

11267619 10295690

619623 537696

TOTAL 130574814 117682391
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Profit and Loss account

(% in thousands)

SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED

For the year ended 31.03.2018

For the year ended 31.03.2017

SILL6UemET0T 13 6ULIR 6UEMEHUNED 6)IHLDITEOTLD

l. Interest / discount on advances / bills 23279979 25160156
BLETEGERES ULy LOMILD edsemen ipevseyerL 65ILIS eumsLieD

Il. Income on investments 8830042 7987360
Waed@seafieor Guifled eudHLDTEDTLD

M. Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of 228866 316587
India and other inter-bank funds
flemel eurmid OMILD Ssr eumidsefed 2 _erer
8mlUysErs&il auLlp

IV. Others 166038 345502
LDMHMemeN

TOTAL 32504925 33809605

SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

SILL6UemEToT 13 6ULIR 6UEMBUNED 6)IHLDITEOTLD

l. Commission, exchange and brokerage 1389055 1187632
BLSl6WeT LOOHMILD BTG 6UemEI6D

Il. Profit on sale of investments 615379 1457199
WeeSBsemen elHm euensEuled SeomuLb
Loss on sale of investments (67842) (40133)
WPsedBssmen eNHm euemBEUIed HERLLD

Il Profit on revaluation of investments --- ---
WedGaemen LNIWELISE OFLGmSLID SeomLLD

V. Profit on sale of land, building and other assets 1309 2266
[Beold, &LIpLLD DO AEnHEIEEmeT eAND euemsLisd Sevmud
Loss on sale of land, building and other assets (1196) (1163)
[BeoLd, &LIQLLD DOM EENEGIGEHDaT DD 6eueMELTED HEgLLD

V. Profit on exchange transactions 153264 169796
SibBul eFeeuTeoofl MHDLD epeold auDD &eomuLd

VI. Miscellaneous income 2971253 1529484
U euems&erfied 6)HLDTEOTLD

TOTAL 5061222 4305081
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Profit and Loss account (% in thousands)
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED For the year ended 31.03.2018 | For the year ended 31.03.2017
SlLLeUmeTT 15 6Ll 6Fe0eNE0TRIS6T
[.  Interest on deposits 20295815 22122720
ewallil] BH&EB&HSNET Gl
II. Interest on Reserve Bank of India / 26686 62513
Inter-Bank borrowings
flsel eumid WHMID 57 eumBseiLImHES UL
sLaOIGGMW QL lp
lll. Others 85053 116303
LDHMEmEN
TOTAL 20407554 22301536
SCHEDULE16 - OPERATING EXPENSES 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Sl LeUemeTTT 16 - SWHs 61Fe06Y 6T
. Payment to and provisions for employees 3621446 3778413
oo SlULITEEBEETE FITLDMEILD LOHMID QBHIEEG OFLILILILILL6mEY
II.  Rent, taxes and lightings 777687 710363
eunLems, eurfl OMILD LTSN QFe06YS6T
Ill.  Printing and stationery 90996 110722
OI5&HEn60 LDOMILD 6TLPSIOIMTIHET CUEMDEESET
IV.  Advertisement and publicity 46366 76365
eflenLburLD
V. Depreciation on Bank's Property 396715 402765
aumduien asnggiGaeMs) CHILILDTETLD
VI.  Directors Fees Allowances & Exp. 18759 17626
Bué@piaear Sev HNID Sleeusiav HMID FEEEBET
VII.  Auditors' fees and expenses (including branch auditors) 4029 11229
semlldevswneniseter Sev ONID OFeeBET
(Bewenaeliett HevvlebenaWNeTIGEEHESTET 60 Germpgeme)
VIIl. Law charges 3419 4250
ELL 615606 &6T
IX. Postages, telegrams, telephones, etc. 186328 148368
sUed, BHP, ABmmeCLs Qg6 seT
X.  Repairs and maintenance 145803 191842
UWDEILNTSEe DO LFTLDILIL 65606 saT
Xl.  Insurance 316355 290664
sMISLE QBTews
XII.  Other expenditure 1490675 1313093
LM Q\FEIEYEET
TOTAL 7098578 7055700
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
57, V.E ROAD THOOTHUKUDI-628002

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THEACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March 2018.

SCHEDULE 17: SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

GENERAL.:
A. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on an ongoing concern concept, historical cost convention
unless otherwise stated and conform to the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, (GAAP) which
encompasses applicable statutory provisions, regulatory norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) from time to time, Accounting Standards (AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable and current
practices prevailing in the Banking Industry in India and conform to statutory provisions and practices
prevailing within the banking industry.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements prescribed under the
Third schedule (Form A and Form B) of the Banking Regulations Act 1949. The items of income and
expenditure are taken on accrual basis except where specifically stated and it conforms to the guidelines
issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for banks.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptionsin
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on the date of the
financial statement and the reported income and expenses during the reporting period. Management
believes that the estimates and assumptions used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Future results could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future
periods.

Significant changes in Accounting policies

Proposed dividend:

In terms of Revised Accounting Standard [AS4] Contingencies and events occurring after Balance sheet
date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs through amendments to companies (Accounting
Standards) amendment rules 2016, dated 30 March 2016, the company has not accounted for proposed
dividend as a liability as at 31st March 2018. The proposed dividend was however accounted for as a
liability upto 31st March 2016 in line with the existing accounting standard applicable atthat time.
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2. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS:

i. Foreign currency balances both, under assets and liabilities, outstanding forward exchange contracts
and swaps are evaluated at the year-end rates published by FEDAI. The resultant profit / loss is shown
asincome/loss.

ii. Deposit accounts denominated in foreign currency such as FCNR (B), EEFC, RFC and placement of
such deposits in foreign currency are recorded at year-end Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of
India (FEDAI) rates. Foreign currency loan accounts are also disclosed at the year-end FEDAI rates.

iii. Foreign currency income and expenditure items of domestic operations are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

iv. Contingent liabilities on account of acceptances, endorsements and other obligations including
guarantees and Letters of Credit denominated in foreign currencies are translated at year-end FEDAI
rates.

3. INVESTMENTS:
A) Classification of investments has been made as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.

i) The entire investment portfolio of the Bank is classified under three categories viz. "Held to Maturity",
"Available for sale" and "Held for Trading".

Securities that are held principally for resale within 90 days from the date of purchase are classified under
the HFT Category. Investments that the company intends to hold till maturity are classified under the
HTM category or as per RBI guidelines. Securities which are not classified in the above categories are
classified under the AFS category.

» Transfer between the categories - Reclassification of investments from one category to other, if
done, is in accordance with RBI guidelines. Transfer of script from AFS/HFT Category to HTM
category is made at book value or market value, whicheveris lower.

» Incase of transfer of securities from HTM to AFS/HFT category, the investments held under HTM ata
discount are transferred to AFS/HFT category at the acquisition price and investments placed in the HTM
category at a premium are transferred to AFS/HFT at amortized cost.

» Transferofinvestments from AFS to HF T or vice versais done at the book value. Depreciation carried
if any on such investments is also transferred from one category to another.

The investments are classified for the purpose of Balance Sheet under five groups viz. (i) Government
securities, (ii) Otherapproved securities, (iii) Shares, (iv) Debentures and Bonds and (v) Others.

Brokerage/commission received on subscriptions is reduced from the cost.

Brokerage, commission, securities transaction tax etc. paid in connection with acquisition of investments are
expensed upfrontand excluded from cost.

Broken period interest paid / received on debt instruments is treated as interest expense / income and is
excluded from cost/ sale consideration.




' Tamilngd
96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018 I / B iy

Be a step ahead of life

B) Valuation of investments is done as follows:

i) Investments held under “Held to Maturity” are valued at cost price. Wherever the cost price is
more than the face value, the premium paid is amortized over the remaining period of maturity. Profit on
sale of securities under “Held to Maturity” category is initially taken to Profit & Loss account and then
appropriated to Capital Reserve Account. If there is aloss itis charged to Profit & Loss account.

i) Investments classified under “Available for Sale” category are marked to market on quarterly basis.
Shares held under “Available for sale” are marked to market on weekly basis. Scrip wise appreciation /
Depreciation is segregated group-wise. The Net Depreciation category wise is charged to Profit & Loss
account. The NetAppreciation in any category is ignored.

iii) Investments classified under “Held for Trading” category except shares are marked to market scrip-
wise on daily basis. Shares held under “Held for Trading” are marked to market on weekly basis. The net

depreciation group wise is charged to Profitand Loss account and the net appreciation is ignored.

iv) Investments received in lieu of restructured advances/under SDR scheme are valued in accordance
with RBI guidelines.

V) Investments are valued at year-end as per RBI guidelines as follows:

a) Central Government Securities are valued as per price list of RBI, prices declared by Primary Dealers
Association of India (PDAI) jointly with FIMMDA published by Fixed Income Money Market and
Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA).

b) State Government Securities and Other Approved Securities are valued after appropriate mark up
over Yield to Maturity (YTM) rates for Central Government securities declared by FIMMDA.

c) Debenture and Bonds have been valued with appropriate mark up over the YTM rates for Central
Government Securities declared by FIMMDA.

d) Quoted shares are valued at market rates quoted on NSE.

e) Unquoted shares are valued at book value ascertained from the latest available Balance Sheet and
in case the latest Balance Sheetis not available, the same is valued at Re.1 per company.

f) Preference shares are valued at YTM, if dividend is received regularly. Where dividend is in arrears,
appropriate depreciation is provided based on the number of years for which dividend is in arrears as per
RBI guidelines.

g) Mutual Fund units are valued at market rates/NAV/ Repurchase price as applicable.

h) Treasury bills, certificate of deposits and commercial papers are valued at carrying cost.

i) Provisions forinvestments are made as per RBI prudential norms.
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C. Prudential norms: Securities guaranteed by the State Government where the principal / interest is due but
not paid for a period of more than 90 days are treated as non performing investments and appropriate
provision is made and interest in respect of such investments is recognized as income only on cash basis.

D. (i) In terms of the instructions of RBI, the excess of acquisition cost over face value of securities kept
under “Held to Maturity” category is amortized up to the date of maturity and the amount amortized is
reflected as a deduction in Profit & Loss account Schedule 13 - Interest Earned, under item Il - Income on
Investments.

(i) Brokerage / Commission / Stamp Duty paid in connection with acquisition of securities are treated as
revenue expenses.

E. Accounting for REPO Transactions

Repo and reverse Repo transactions are accounted in accordance with the extant RBI guidelines. Securities
purchased/sold under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) with RBI are debited/credited to Investment
account and reversed on maturity of the transaction. Interest expended /earned thereon is accounted for as
expenditure/revenue.

4. ADVANCES AND PROVISIONS:

a) Advances are classified into Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets and provisions for
possible losses on such advances are made as per prudential norms/directions of the Board of
Directors/directions issued by Reserve Bank of India from time to time. With regard to the Standard
Advances, Provisions are made as per extant RBI guidelines. In addition to the specific provision made
towards identified NPAs, the bank also holds floating provision.

b) In addition, the bank adopts an approach to provisioning that is based on past experience evaluation of
security and other related factors.

c) Provisioning on categorized assets are made as follows:

Asset Classification

New Policy with effect
from 01.04.2017

Old Policy upto 31.03.2017

Sub-standard

25%

25%

Doubtful 1 Secured 25% Secured 25%
Unsecured 100% Unsecured 100%
Doubtful 2 Secured 40% For both secured and
Unsecured 100% unsecured 100%
Doubtful 3 100% on outstanding 100% on outstanding
Loss 100% on outstanding 100% on outstanding

NCLT referred loans

As per RBI instruction

Education loans were provided at 100% irrespective of NPA asset classification.

d) Sufficient incremental provisioning for Unhedged Foreign currency exposure is made as per RBI

guidelines.

Reserve Bank of India has given methodology to arrive at UFCE and for introduction of incremental provision

and capital requirements
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d) Advances disclosed are net of provisioning made for non performing assets and floating provisions,
provisioning on diminution in fair value of assets on restructured accounts.

e) In case of loan accounts classified as NPA, an account may be reclassified as per performing asset if it
confirms to the guidelines prescribed by RBI.

f) Accounts are written off in accordance with bank's policies. Recoveries from bad debts written off are
recognized in profit and loss account and included under otherincome.

5.FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

a) Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes freight,
applicable duties, taxes and incidental expense related to the acquisition and installation of the asset, except
foritems on which input creditis availed.

b) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided in accordance with estimated useful lives as specified in
Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013, and reckoning the residual value at 5% of the original cost of the
asset except for the following:

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum
Computer Hardware & Software 33.33%

Prescribed rate

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum
Building 1.67%

Office equipment 20%

Computer Hardware & Software 33.33%

Vehicles 12.50%

Furniture and Electrical Fittings 10%

c) Depreciation on additions is pro rata basis, from the date of capitalization.
d) Expenditure during construction/capital works pending completion is shown at cost.

6.EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The bank is following Accounting Standard 15 (Revised 2005) “Employee Benefits” as under:
(1) Inrespectof contributory plans viz - Provident Fund and Contributory Pension
Scheme, the bank pays fixed contribution at pre-determined rates to a separate entity, which invests in
permitted securities. The obligation of the bank is limited to such fixed contribution.
(2) In respect of Defined Benefit Plans, viz. Gratuity and pension as well as for leave encashment,
provision has been made based on actuarial valuation as per the guidelines.
(3) The summarized position of Post-employment benefits and long term employee benefits have been
recognized in the profit and loss account and balance sheet, as required in accordance with the
Accounting Standard-15.
(4) The actuarial gain/loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.
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7.TAXES ONINCOME

1. Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax. Current taxes are
determined in accordance with the provisions of tax laws prevailing in India. Deferred tax adjustments
comprise changes in the deferred tax assets or liabilities during the period and Deferred Tax is
determined in terms of Accounting Standard-22 issued by ICAI.

2. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted prior to the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized on a prudent basis for future tax consequences of timing differences by adoption of Profit and
Loss approach with their respective tax bases. The impact of changes in the deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in the profit and loss account.

3. Deferred tax assets are recognized at each reporting date, based upon management's judgment as
to whether realization is considered reasonably certain. Deferred tax assets are recognized on carry
forward of unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax
assets can be realized against future profits.

4. No withdrawal is made from the Special Reserve created and maintained under the provisions of
Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

8.REVENUE RECOGNITION:
Income and expenditure is generally accounted on accrual basis except in the following cases:
i) Inthe case of NPAs, S4A and SDR schemes Income is recognized on realization basis, in terms of
guidelines of Reserve Bank of India. Where recovery is not adequate to upgrade the NPA accounts by
way of regularization, such recovery is being appropriated towards interest in the first instance and
towards the principal/book values thereafter, except in the case of suit filed accounts. In case of Non-
performing investments (NPIs), the same accounting treatment as above is followed except otherwise
agreed.
i) Dividend on investments in shares, units of mutual fund, income from sale of mutual fund products,
locker rent, Insurance claims, commission on LCs, income on auxiliary services and other sevices,
overdue charges on bills, commission on Government business and insurance business are accounted
on cash/realization basis.
iii) Income related to credit card is accounted on the basis of the bills raised.
iv) Inthe case of suit filed accounts, legal expenses are charged to the profit and loss account. Similarly,
at the time of recovery of legal expenses, in respect of such suit filed accounts, the amount recovered is
accounted asincome.
v) Funded Interest on Standard Restructured Advances and Interest on FITL are accounted as per the
guidelines of Reserve Bank of India.
vi) Expenditure is charged on accrual basis except Electricity, Water, Rent, Property Taxes, Telephone,
Insurance, Annual Maintenance Contracts, Law Charges, Advertisement & Publicity and Traveling &
Conveyance.

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The bank reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with applicable Accounting
Standard-20. For the year under reference, both Basic and diluted earning per share being the same, is
computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the period.

10. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Bank has adopted the respective Accounting Standard prescribed under Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006 and follows indirect method.
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11. SEGMENT REPORTING

As per RBI guidelines on enhancement of disclosures relating to segment reportingunder ~ AS-17, the
reportable segments have been divided into treasury, corporate / wholesale, retail banking operations.
(a) The Bank recognizes the Business Segment as the Primary Reporting Segment and Geographical
Segment as the Secondary Reporting Segment, in accordance with the RBI guidelines and in compliance
with the Accounting Standard 17.
(b) Business Segment is classified into (a) Treasury (b) Corporate and Wholesale Banking (c) Retail
Banking and (d) Other Banking Operations.
(c) Geographical Segment consists only of the Domestic Segment since the Bank does not have any foreign
branches.

12. LEASES

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
Operating Leases. Operating Lease payments are recognized as an expense in the profit and loss account
on astraight line basis over the lease termin accordance withAS19 Leases.

13. CONTINGENCIES
Loss, if any from contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc are recorded
when itis probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

14 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Impairment losses, if any, on fixed assets are recognized in accordance with the Accounting Standard 28
'impairment of assets' and charged to profit and loss account.

15. NET PROFIT

The net profitis arrived at after provisions for:

i) directtaxes;

ii) possible losses on standard assets, restructured advances, NPAs and other contingencies;
iii) depreciation/diminution oninvestments;

iv) employee retirement benefits and

v) Otherusual and necessary provisions.

16. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, Balance with RBI, Balance with other Banks and money at
Call at Short Notice including cash in ATM, Coin Vending Machine and Cash Deposit Machine.

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Inrespect of Intangible Assets, the Bank has adopted the respective Accounting Standard (AS26)

18. ACCOUNTING FOR PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

a) As per the Accounting Standard 29, the bank recognizes provisions only when it has a present obligation
as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources is required to settle the obligation and
when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The required disclosure for contingent liability is made
on possible obligation that arises from past events, the existence of which depends on occurrence or non
occurrence of future event not under control.

b) Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statement since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realized.

Sd\- K.V. Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO

Sd\- S.Annamalai Sd\- Anupkumar Sd\- S.R.Ashok Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar

Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy Sd\- K.Nagarajan Sd\- D.N.Nirranjan Kani

Sd\- K.V.Rajan Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan Sd\- B.Vijayadurai .

. . . Directors

Directors Directors Directors

Sd\- R.Ravindran Sd\- P.Suriaraj Sd\- PC.Panda Vide our report of even date attached

Sd\- M.A.Nayagam Sd\- D.Inbamani Company Secretary For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.

Sd\- S.Senthil Anandan General Manager FRN No. 01931S

General Manager Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Thoothukudi Chartered Accountants
25.06.2018 Partner (M.N0.23838)

e o




' Tamilngd
96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018 I / B iy

Be a step ahead of life

TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
57, V.E ROAD, THOOTHUKUDI-628002

SCHEDULE 18:

NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018

1. The Financial Statements have been prepared in conformity with Forms A & B of the Schedule Ill to the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 to the extent applicable and practices generally
prevalentin the banking industry in India.

2. Duringthe year, all the 509 branches have been subjected to statutory audit.

3. Reconciliation of inter branch / office adjustment accounts has been completed up to 31.03.2018

4. (i) Inaccordance with RBI guidelines, the investments portfolio of the Bank has been classified into three
categories as given below:

Category Book value (Gross) (% in crore) % to total investments
Held to Maturity 6333.28 60.59%
Available for Sale 4120.26 39.41%
Held for Trading - --

Total 10453.54 100.00%

SLR securities under 'Held to Maturity' category accounted for 19.28% of Bank's Demand and Time
Liabilities as on 31.03.2018 as against the ceiling of 19.50% stipulated by Reserve Bank of India.

(ii) During the year, the excess of acquisition cost over face value of securities kept under 'Held to Maturity’
category was amortized up to the date of maturity and the amortized amount for the year aggregates to
[130.80 crore (previous year [123.55 crore). As per Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the said amount has
beenreflected as a deduction in Schedule 13 - Interest Earned underitem Il - 'Income on Investments'.

(iii) Interest received on sale of securities for [1247.47 crore (previous year [11072.47 crore) and interest paid
on purchase of securities [1263.95 crore (previous year [11111.05 crore) have been netted and shown under
the head 'Income on Investments'.

(iv) There was shifting of securities to the tune of [13123.31 crore (face value 113015.00 crore) from/to HTM
category. Previous year, there was shifting of securities to the tune of 11559.03 crore (face value 11550.33
crore) from/to HTM category.

(v) During the year ended March 31,2018, the value of sales/transfers of securities to/from HTM category
(excluding one-time transfer of securities permitted to be undertaken by banks at the beginning of the year,
sales to RBI under OMO auctions, repurchased of government securities by Government of India and
sale/transfer of securities consequent to reduction of ceiling on SLR securities under HTM) did not exceed
5% of the book value of investments held in HTM category at the beginning of the year.
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(vi) With a view to address the systemic impact of sharp increase in yields on Government Securities, RBI,
vide its circular dated 2nd April, 2018 has granted the option to banks, to spread provisioning for Mark to
Market (MTM) losses on investments in AFS & HFT categories for the quarters ended December 2017 and
March 2018. As per this relaxation, banks have the option to spread the provisioning for these two quarters
equally over up to four quarters, commencing with the quarter in which the loss was incurred. As per the
provisions of this relaxation, the provisioning for MTM losses on GSec and SDL investments in AFS category
has been spread for the quarters December 2017 and March 2018.

a) The particulars of the provisions for depreciation of the AFS investment portfolio for the quarters ended
December 2017 and March 2018 as under:-

Amount [ in crore

Actual provisions made during the FY 2017-18

For the Quarters Actual for the said quarters
MTM Loss | Dec 2017 (Q3) | Mar 2018(Q4) | Total Provision made in
2017-18
December 2017 5.22 1.31 1.31 2.62
March 2018 39.18 - 9.79 9.79
Total Provision 44.40 1.31 11.10 12.41

(b) The balance provision pertaining to 2017-18 required to be made in the remaining quarters of 2018-19:-

Amount [J in crore

Balance provisions required to made during the FY 2018-19

For the Quarters Actual for the said quarters
MTM Loss June 2018 Sep 2018 Dec 2018 | Total Provision to
Q1) (Q2) (Q3) be made in
2018-19
December 2017 5.22 1.30 1.31 -- 2.61
March 2018 39.18 9.79 9.79 9.80 29.38
Total Provision 44.40 11.09 11.10 9.80 31.99
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5. Additional disclosures

A. Capital

ltems Current Year Previous Year

Basel Il Basel lll | Basel Il Basel Il

Common Equity Tier | capital ratio (%) 14.35 14.31 | 13.30 13.27

Tier | capital (%) 14.35 14.31 |13.30 13.27

Tier Il Capital (%) 0.51 0.52 0.75 0.75

Tatal Capital Ratio (CRAR %) 14.86 14.83 | 14.05 14.02

Percentage of the shareholding of the

Government of India in public sector
banks NA NA

Amount of equity capital raised

Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital
raised of which;

Nil Nil
PNCPS:
PDI:
Amount of Tier 2 capital raised;
Nil Nil
Of which
Debt capital instrument:
Nil Nil

Preference Share Capital Instruments:
[Perpetual Cumulative Preference
Shares/ Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares/ Redeemable
Cumulative Preference Shares]
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B. i. Investments

(CJ in crore)
Items Current Previous
Year Year
201718 2016-17
(1) Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) InIndia 10453.53 11606.73
(b) Outside India, Nil Nil
(i)  Provisions for Depreciation
(a) InIndia 89.92 102.25
(b) Outside India, Nil Nil
(iii)  Net Value of Investments
(a) InIndia 10363.62 11504.48
(b) Outside India. Nil Nil
(2) Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments.
(i) Opening balance 102.25 34 97
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year 41.39 68.79
(iii) Lesg: erte-off/ write-back of excess 5372 0.81
provisions during the year
(iv) Closing balance
89.92 102.25
ii. Repo Transactions (In face value terms):
Minimum Maximum Daily Outstanding
outstanding | outstanding average as on
during the during the | outstanding | 31.03.2018
year year during the
year
Securities sold under repos
a) Govt Securities 50.00 448.00 13.02 -
b) Corporate debt Securities -- -- --
Securities sold under MSF
a) Govt Securities 10.00 100.00 1.47 -
b) Corporate debt Securities -- -- --
Securities purchased under
reverse repos
a) Govt Securities 10.00 1181.00 245.78 250.00
b) Corporate debt Securities -- -- --
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iii. Non-SLR Investment Portfolio

a) Issuer composition of Non SLR investments

(CJ in crore)
No. Issuer Amount Extent of Extent of Extent of Extent of
Private ‘Below ‘Unrated’ ‘Unlisted’
placement | Investment | Securities Securities
Grade’ (6)
securities
(1) (2) 3) (4) (5) (7)
1. | PSUs 256.49 67.00 -- -- 2.00
2. |Fls 982.24 171.51 -- -- 0.51
3. | Banks 357.39 76.00 5.00 -- --
4. | Private 105.39 - -- -- 37.98
Corporate
5. | Subsidiaries/ -- -- -- -- --
Joint Venture
6. | Others 6.00 -- -- -- --
7. | Provision held | (77.52) -- -- -- (36.84)
towards
depreciation
TOTAL* 1629.99 314.51 5.00 -- 3.65
Note:

(1) *Total under column 3 should tally with the total of investments included
under the following categories in Schedule 8 to the balance sheet:

a) Shares
b) Debentures & Bond

S

c) Subsidiaries / joint ventures

d) Others

(2) Amount reported under columns 4, 5, 6 and 7 above may not be mutually

exclusive

Break up particulars for Non SLR Investments:

(CJ in crore)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Shares 33.14 30.19
Debentures and Bonds 1,478.75 1,160.27
Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures - -
Others (CD,CP, MF) 118.10 903.51
Total 1,629.99 2,093.97
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b) Non performing Non-SLR investments

(CJ in crore
Particulars Amount
Opening Balance 0
Additions during the year since 1% April 2017 28.51
Reductions during the above period 0
Closing balance 28.51
Total provisions held 28.51

Break up for NPI

Category

Nature of Investment

Name of the Issuer | Amount (in Cr)

Non SLR
Investment under
AFS Category

Equity Shares

M/s BRG Iron &
Steel P Ltd.

1 28.51

C. Derivatives

The Bank has not entered into any forward rate agreement/interest rate swap or
exchange traded interest rate derivative during the year.

D. Asset Quality

i.a. Non-Performing Asset

(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year
(c) Reductions during the year
(d) Closing balance

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year
(c) Reductions during the year
(d) Closing balance

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Provisions made during the year
(c) Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions
(d) Closing balance

(C7 in crore)
Items Current | Previous
Year Year
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 2.16 1.74

648.64 | 418.94
124216 | 727.94
1022.52| 498.24

868.28| 648.64

381.92 200.74
553.68 434.49
422.31 253.31
513.29 381.92

266.72 218.20
688.48 293.45
600.21 244 .93
354.99 266.72

i.b. Non- performing Loan Provisioning coverage Ratio is 72.71%
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ii. Movement of NPAs
(T in Crore)
Amount Amount
Particulars as on as on
31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Gross NPAs as on 1% April 2017 (Opening Balance) 648.64 418.94
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 1242.16 727.94
Sub-total (A) 1890.80 1146.88
Less:-
(i) Upgradations 267.39 189.03
(i) Recoveries 161.18 65.46
(iii) Technical/Prudential write -offs 593.96 243.75
(iii) Write-offs --- ---
Sub-total (B) 1022.52 498.24
Gross NPAs as on 31 March 2018 (closing balance) 868.28 648.64
(A-B)
Stock of Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thereon:
(C1 in crore)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Opening balance of Technical/Prudential written -off 491.72 270.68
accounts as at 1% April 2017
Add: Technical/Prudential write -offs during the year 593.96 243.75
Sub-total (A) 1085.68 514.43
Less: Recoveries made from previously technical/ 73.16 22.71
prudential written-off accounts during the year
Closing balance as at 31st March 2018 1012.52 491.72
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(iii) Sector-wise NPAs
(T in Crore)
Sl. Sector* Current year (Fy 2017-18) Previous year (Fy 2016-17)
No. Outstanding Gross | Percentage | Outstanding Gross Percentage
Total NPAs of Gross Total NPAs of Gross
Advances NPAs to Advances NPAs to
Total Total
Advances Advances
in that in that
sector sector
A Priority
Sector
1| Agriculture and 515340 | 58.85 1.14 418292 |  63.01 1.50
allied activities
2 | Industry 3140.80 | 87.91 2.80 2971.13 71.49 2.40
2a | Of which;
Textile 1306.63 45.68 3.50 1243.27 34.76 2.79
3 | Services 5126.80 167.76 3.27 4605.61 132.33 2.87
4 Personal loans 1230.53 48.13 3.91 1201.09 46.39 3.86
Sub-total (A) 14651.54 362.64 2.48 12960.75 313.22 2.41
B Non Priority
Sector
1 | Agriculture and
allied activities 0.34 0 0 0.05 0 0
2 | Industry 3728.70 | 415.49 11.14 4389.21 269.12 6.13
2a | Of which; 1520.34 |  37.99 2.50 1509.87 22.02 1.45
Texile
3 | Services 2953.26 76.98 2.60 2558.43 54.03 217
4 Personal loans 2727.66 13.17 0.48 2217.94 12.27 0.55
5 | Food Credit 71.79 0 0 136.11 0 0
Sub-total (B) 9481.75 505.64 5.37 9301.74 335.42 3.65
Totd (A+B) 24133.29 868.28 3.60 22262.49 648.64 2.93
(iv) Concentration of NPAs
(L) in Crore)

As on 31.03.2018

As on 31.03.2017

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts

314.23

194.13
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(v) Disclosure on Divergence in the Ass ifi
The Reserve bank of India (RBI) VIDE DBR.BP.BC.NO.63/21.04.018/2016-17 dated

18™ April 2017 has prescribed certain additional disclosure to be made under “Notes to

Accounts” for the reference period i.e. FY 2017-18. (7 in Crore)
Particulars Amount

Gross NPAs as reported by the Bank on March 31,2017 648.64
Gross NPAs assessed by RBI as on March 31,2017 811.11
Divergence in GNPA 162.47
Net NPAs as reported by the Bank as on March 31,2017 381.92
Net NPAs assessed by RBI as on March 31,2017 519.99
Divergence in NNPA 138.07
Provision on NPAs as reported by the Bank as on March 31, 2017 290.37
Provision on NPAs assessed by RBI as on March 31, 2017 314.77
Divergence in Provision 24.40
Reported PAT for the year ended March 31, 2017 316.66
Adjusted Notional PAT after considering Divergence in provision 300.70

Note: The Bank confirms that the classification of NPA's and provision thereon were appropriately
done as per the accounting policy and the relevant guidelines based on the relevant facts available
at the time of finalization of the financial statements of the year ended 31March, 2017. The Risk
Assessment of the RBI was carried out in September 2017 and the report was issued in 4th
October, 2017. The divergence is possibly due to the availability of data subsequent to the
finalization of financial statements, data of other banks in the consortium available to the RBI,
certain interpretations of the regulations and decisions taken by the Joint Lenders Forum etc. The
Bank has complied with the above report by appropriately giving effect to all the items included in
the report, in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

(vi) Impact of Change in Accounting Policy in respect of Provision for NPA:

S.No | Particulars 1in Crore
1 Provision as per Earlier Accounting Policy
762.31
2 Provision as per Revised Accounting Policy (As per IRAC 684.57
norms)
3 Decrease in provision due to the above change and 77.74
consequent increase in Profit/Loans & Advances
(without considering tax effect)
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1. Disclosures on Flexible Structuring of Existing Loans:

(T in Crore)
Period No. of Amount of loans taken up | Exposure weighted average
borrowers for flexible structuring duration of loans taken up
taken up for for flexible structuring
flexible Classified Classified Before After applying
structuring | as as NPA applying flexible
Standard flexible structuring
structuring
Previous 1 57.99 NIL 7 Years 17 years
Financial
Year
Current NIL NIL NIL Not Not
Financial Applicable | Applicable
Year From
April to
March 18)

2. Disclosures on Strategic Debt Restructuring Scheme (accounts which are
currently under the stand-still period)

(C1 in Crore)
No. of Amount outstanding Amount outstanding Amount outstanding as
accounts | as on the reporting as on the reporting on the reporting date
where date date with respect to with respect to
SDR has accounts where accounts where
been conversion of debt to | conversion of debt to
invoked equity is pending equity has taken place
Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified | Classified
as as NPA as as NPA as as NPA
Standard Standard Standard
1 139.03 - NIL NIL 139.03 -

Note: 1. In the case of IVRCL Indore Gujarat Tdl ways Ltd. — The equity conversion
has been absorbed by other lenders at the allotment price for equity was not
accepted by us, earlier.
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3. Disclosures on the Scheme for Sustainable Structuring of Stressed Assets as
on 31.03.2018

(C1 in Crore)
No. of Aggregate Amount outstanding Provision Held
accounts amount In Part A In Part B
where S4A has | outstanding
been applied
Classified as NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable
Standard
Classified as NIL NIL NIL Not Applicable
NPA

4. Disclosures on Change in Ownership of Projects Under Implementation
(accounts which are currently under the stand-still period)

(I in Crore)

Amount outstanding as on the reporting date

glc?c;oug{s \F/)vrr(])é?gt bellcr)ﬁ(z Classified as Classified as -
have decided to effect standard standard Classified as NPA
i ) restructured
change in ownership
NIL NIL NIL
NIL NIL NIL
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viii) Details of financial assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction Company
for Asset Reconstruction

(CJ in crore)
Item 2017-18 | 2016-17
(i) | (i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of Nil Nil
accounts sold to SC/RC . .
Nil Nil
(iii) Aggregate consideration
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect . .
. ) Nil Nil
of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain/loss over net book value.
Nil Nil

ix). Details of non performing financial assets purchased/sold

a. Details of non performing financial assets purchased: (C7 in crore)
Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17
1.a) No of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
2.a) Of these number of accounts restructured Nil Nil
during the year
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
b. Details of non performing financial assets sold: (L1 in crore)
Particulars 2017-18 | 2016-17
1. No of accounts sold Nil Nil
2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
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xi)

Provisions on Standard Asset

(C) in crore)
Item Current Previous

year as at | Year as at
31.03.18 | 31.03.17
Provisions towards Standard Assets 97.48 160.13
Floating Provisions (L in crore)
Current | Previous

year as at| Year as at
31.03.18 | 31.03.17
Opening balance of floating provisions 29.20 29.20
The quantum of floating provisions made during the 2.36 -

year

Amount of draw down made during the year - -
Closing balance 31.56 29.20

E. Draw Down from Reserves
The bank has not made any draw down from the reserves during the year: Nil
(previous year Nil)

F. Business Ratios

Items Current | Previous
year year
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working 8.64% 9.18%
Funds $
(i) Non-interest income as a percentage to
Working Funds $ 1.35% 1.147%
(iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working 2.67% 2.38%
Funds $
(iv) Return on Assets@ 0.59% 0.86%
(v) Business (Depqsits plus advances) per 1309.04 1234.95
employee # (X in lakhs)
(vi) Profit per employee (% in lakhs) 5.16 7.22
(vii) Earnings per share ¥ 15.57 29 29
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$ Working funds is reckoned as an average of total assets (excluding accumulated losses, if
any).

@ 'Return on Assets' is with reference to average working funds (i.e. total of assets
excluding accumulated losses, if any).

# For the purpose of computation of business per employee (deposits plus advances)
interbank deposits is excluded.

G. Asset Liability Management (As certified by management)
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

(L in crore)
Deposits Advances Investments | Borrowings| Foreign Foreign
Currency | Currency
assets liabilities
1 day 201.06 544 .91 3104.58 | 0.00 41.80 19.06
2 to 7 days 489.28 534.36 216.29 0.00 15.87 0.42
8 to 14 days 552.07 385.93 112.69 | 198.00 34.62 0.07
15 to 30 days 761.21 1240.09 179.31 | 250.00 42.02 0.88
31 days to 2 months 604.53 515.92 250.60 0.00 105.14 2.93
Over 2 months and 1151.34 807.54 116.02 65.00 53.99 69.37
up to 3 months
Over 3 months and 2220.17 1375.47 355.13 0.00 39.20 13.66
up to 6 months
Over 6 months and 6527.40 2802.31 1230.42 0.00 219 65.05
up to 1 year
Over 1 year and up 16716.69 | 10836.05| 3237.81 0.00 13.58 113.08
to 3 years
Over 3 years and up| 1650.30 1595.87 542.54 0.00 16.32 78.89
to 5 years
Over 5 years 1554.28 3130.27 | 1018.22 0.00 46.99 0.00
TOTAL 32428.33 | 23768.72| 10363.61| 513.00 | 411.72| 363.41
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H. Lending to Sensitive Sector

i. Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(CJ in crore)
Category Current | Previous
Year Year
Exposure | Exposure
|) Direct exposure
(a) Residential Mortgages —
Lending fully secured by Mortgages on residential | 1984.14 1783.82
properties that are or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented
of which
Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority 1135.20 1069.75
sector advances
(b) Commercial Real Estate —
Lending fully secured by mortgages on commercial real | 244.42 253.71
estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
and construction, etc.). Exposure included non-fund
based (NFB) limits also;
(c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS)
and other securitized exposures —
a. Residential, Nil Nil
b. Commercial Real Estate. Nil Nil
II) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on 9 12
National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs).
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 2237.56 2049.53
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ii. Exposure to Capital Market

(L1 in crore)

Particulars

Current Year
2017-18

Previous Year

2016-17

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible
bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not
exclusively invested in corporate debt;

(i) advances against shares/bonds/ debentures or
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including
IPOs/ESOPs),convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary
security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent
secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary
security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertible debentures/units of equity oriented
mutual funds does not fully cover the advances;

(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers
and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and
market makers;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporate against the security
of shares / bonds/debentures or other securities or on
clean basis for meeting promoter’s contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources;

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected
equity flows/issues;

(viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the banks
in respect of primary issue of shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds;

(ix) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;

(x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both
registered and unregistered)

110.66

3.57

0.00

1.67

31.86

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

99.51

3.65

0.00

11.69

30.78

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

Total Exposure to Capital Market

147.77

145.63
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iii. Risk Category wise Country Exposure

As the country -wise net funded exposure does not exceed 1% of the Bank's total

assets for any country, no provision is required for the risk involved. (L1 in crore)
Risk Category wise Country Exposure
Risk Exposure(Gross) | Provision Exposure(Gross) | Provision
Category as at March held as at as at March held as at
31,2018 March 31,2017 March

31,2018 31,2017

Insignificant 169.34 NIL 171.76 NIL

Risk

Low Risk 121.08 NIL 194.87 NIL

Moderately 7.52 NIL 24.54 NIL

Low Risk

Moderate 13.56 NIL 0.99 NIL

Risk

Moderately 5.33 NIL 0.64 NIL

High Risk

High Risk 0.00 NIL 0.00 NIL

Very High 0.00 NIL 0.00 NIL

Risk

Total 316.83 NIL 392.80 NIL

iv. Details of single borrower limit (SBL)/group borrower limit (GBL) exceeded by
the Bank.

a) Details of single borrower limit in excess of the prudential exposure limits of RBI:
- Nil -
b) Details of Group borrower limit exceeded by the bank: Nil

l. Miscellaneous

i. Amount of Provisions made for Income-tax during the year;
(L] in crore)
Previous year

Current year

Provision for Income Tax Current Year 85.00 181.90
Earlier years 62.00 --
Total Provision for Income Tax 147.00 181.90

ii. Penalties imposed on the Bank by RBI : RBI has imposed penalty towards
mutilated and FICN notes amounting to (1 26,500/- during the year 2017-18

iii. Special reserve: As per section 36(1) (viii) of . T.Act 1961, the bank has created a
special reserve of [1 29.00 Crore during the year 2017-18.

@&
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iv. Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head

Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

(0 in crore)

Current Year Previous Year

Depreciation on Investment -- --
Diminution on Investment 9.37 46.30
Provision towards NPA 683.09 290.37
Provision towards Standard Asset 0.00 39.03
Floating provision for Advances 2.35 --
Provision made for Taxation 147.00 181.90
Deferred Tax -59.21 -6.23
Provision for un hedged Foreign currency - 0.96
exposure
Provision for MSME Advances 1.47 ---
Others :Diminution in fair value - Restructured - 6.75
Advances
Total 784.07 559.08
v. Details of complaints / unimplemented awards of Banking Ombudsman
A. customer complaints *
Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year as at --
01.04.2017
Number of complaints received during the year 2017-18 3923
(Including 3657 ATM failed transaction claims)

3827
Number of complaints redressed during the year 2017-18
(Including 3561 ATM failed transaction claims)

96*

Number of complaints pending at the end of the year as at 31.03.2018
(Including 96 ATM failed transaction claims which were settled within
7/4/18)

Number of complaints pending at the end of the year as at 31.03.2018
(Other than ATM failed transaction claims)

B. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman

Number of Unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year
Number of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year
Number of awards implemented during the year

Number of unimplemented awards pending at the end of the year

&
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vi. Letter of Comfort disclosure (CJ in crore)
Particulars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017

Letter of comfort issued in earlier years and outstanding 2643.52 2132.06

as on 01.04.2017

Add: Letter of comfort issued during the year 6445.21 7427.98

Less: Letter of comfort expired during the year 7830.83 6916.52

Letter of comfort outstanding as on 31.03.2018 1257.90 2643.52

vii. The details of fees / remuneration received during the year in respect of Banc

assurance business undertaken.

(L in Lakhs)
Commission on Banc assurance 31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017
Non Life Insurance Net of Service Tax 522.60 601.39
Mutual Fund Products 17.00 13.74
Life Insurance Net of Service Tax 164.67 167.28
viii. Concentration of Deposits
(L) in Crore)

31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 4335.37 4971.56
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to 13.37% 15.44%
Taotal Deposits of the bank
ix. Concentration of Advances

(CJ in Crore)

31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2583.85 2365.06
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to 10.71% 10.55%
Tatal Advances of the bank
x. Concentration of Exposures

(T in Crore)

31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 3270.16 3165.54
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ 10.07% 10.68%
customers to Total Exposure of the bank on
borrowers/customers

6. Disclosure Requirements as per Accounting Standards where RBI has issued
guidelines in respect of disclosure items for Notes on Accounts:

6.1. There were no material pertaining to prior period Income /Expenditure requiring
disclosure as per AS 5.

6.2. The heads of income recognized on cash basis are neither material enough nor do
they require disclosure under AS 9 on Revenue Recognition.

&
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6.3 Accounting Standard -15: Employee Benefits (CJ in crore)
2017-18 2016-17
Gratuity Pension | Gratuity | Pension

(i) Principal actuarial assumption
used
Discount Rate 7.68% 7.68% 7.20% 7.20%
Rate of return on Plan Assets 7.75% 7.75% 8.40% 6.50%
Salary Escalation 6.50% 6.50% 6.50% 6.50%
(ii) Change in Benefit Obligation:
Liability at the beginning of the year 136.22 470.84 115.89 433.98
Interest Cost 9.92 33.77 7.92 29.48
Current Service Cost 10.89 31.24 9.03 27.92
Past Service Cost 10.59 0.00 0.00 0.00
Benefit paid -14.19 -62.22 -11.89 -49.17
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation -9.18 9.77 15.27 28.63
Liability at the end of the year 144.25 483.40 136.22 470.84
(iii) Fair value of Plan Assets:
Fair value of Plan Assets at the 133.56 | 468.61| 114.90 | 434.63
beginning of the year
Expected return on Plan Assets 10.41 36.69 10.44 29.36
Contributions 5.87 38.77 21.47 52.40
Benefit paid -14.19 -62.22 -11.89 -49.17
Actuarial Gain / (loss) on Plan Assets -0.57 -3.64 -1.36 1.39
Fair value of Plan Assets at the 135.08 478.91 133.56 468.61
End of the year
(iv) Actual return on Plan Assets:
Expected Return on Plan Assets 10.41 36.69 10.44 29.36
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets -0.57 -3.64 -1.36 1.39
Actual return on Plan Assets 9.84 33.05 9.08 30.75
(v) Amount recognized in the
Balance Sheet:
Liability at the end of the year 144.25 483.40 136.22 470.81
Fair value of Plan Assets at the 135.08 478.21 133.56 468.61
End of the year
Amount Recognized in the 917 519 266 293
Balance Sheet
(vi) Expenses recognized in
The Income Statement:
Current Service Cost 10.89 31.24 9.03 27.92
Interest Cost 9.92 33.77 7.92 29.48
Past Service Cost 10.59 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expected Return on Plan Assets -10.41 -36.69 -10.44 -29.36
Actuarial Gain or Loss -8.61 13.41 16.63 27.24
Expenses Recognized in P & L 12.38 41.73 23.14 55.28
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Details of Provisions made for Other Long term Employee Benefits:

(L) in crore)
S.no Other Long Term 2017-18 2016-17
Benefits
1 Leave Encashment 2.95 10.43
2 Sick Leave -1.66 2.40

6.4 Accounting Standard-17: Segment Reporting
PART A: Operational Segments:

(L] in crore)
Particulars For the year ended 31.03.2018 For the year ended 31.03.2017
Corporat Corporat
Business e/Wholes | Retail e/Wholes | Retall
Segment Treasury ale Banking Totdl Treasury ale Banking Totd
Banking Banking
Revenue 975.94 901.76 1878.91 3756.61 1006.06 1033.29 1772.12 3811.47
Result
(Profit(+)/Loss(- 241.91 22.72 47.33 311.96 247 .14 90.83 155.78 493.75
)
Unallocated
income 2.25 -4.82
/Expenses
Operating Profit 309.71 498.57
Income Tax 87.79 181.90
Extraordinary
Profit
Net Profit 221.92 316.67
Other As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Information
Segment assets 11226.79 9357.43 | 16599.55 | 37183.77 | 12413.04 9321.16 | 14644.34 | 36378.54
Unallocated 5220 81.14
assets
Totd assets 37235.97 36459.68
f;%rlﬂt‘fg; 12673.91 | 7902.28 | 16465.16 | 37041.35 | 10525.05 | 9466.95 | 16236.12 | 36228.12
Unallocated 194.62 231.57
liabilities
Totd liabilities 37235.97 36459.69
Note:
1. Assets and Liabilities wherever directly related to segments have been
accordingly allocated to segments and wherever not directly related have been
allocated on the basis of segment revenue.
2. The Bank operates only in Domestic Segment.
PART B —Geographic Segments
Particulars Domestic International Total
31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017 | 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Revenue 3756.61 3811.47 -- -- 3756.61 3811.47
Assets 37235.97 36459.69 -- -- 37235.97 36459.69

b &
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6.5 Related Party disclosures (AS-18)

The Bank has identified the following person to be the key management person as

per AS-18 on Related Party Disclosures:

Thiru. H.S. Upendra Kamath — Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer —

01.04.2017 to 17.05.2017.

A. Emoluments:

(Amount in [J)

Particulars 01.04.2017 to 01.04.2016 to
17.05.2017 31.03.2017
Salary 6,45,161.28 50,00,000.00
Bank Contribution to Provident Fund 77,419.00 6,00,000.00
Other Benefits 4,54,657.61 1,22,532.40
Total 11,77,237.89 57,22,532.40

Thiru. K.V. Rama Moorthy — Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer —

04.09.2017 to 31.03.2018

(Amount in [1)

Particulars 04.09.2017 to | 01.04.2016 to
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Salary 25,87,500.00 ---

Bank Contribution to Provident Fund 3,10,500.00 —

Other Benefits 8,17,310.83 -

Tatal 37,15,310.83 ---

B. Others: Nil

C. There is no other transaction with the Managing Director & CEO.
6.6. Earnings per Share (AS - 20)
Items Amount Amount

2017 - 18 2016 — 17

Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders 22191.62 31666.47
(L) in Lakhs)
Average number of shares 142511454 142511454
Basic and Diluted EPS (in [1) 15.57 22.22
Nominal value per share (in [J) 10.00 10.00

6.7. Consolidated Financial Statements (AS - 21)

The Bank has no subsidiary and hence the need for consolidation of financial statements

does not arise.
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6.8. Accounting for Taxes on Income (AS 22)

In respect of Income Tax, the assessment has been completed up to the Assessment Year
2015-16 (Year ended 31.03.2015) Appeals are pending with appellate authorities for various
assessment year. The management does not envisage any liability in respect of the disputed
issues.

The bank had recorded the cumulative net Deferred Tax Liability of 1164.13 crore relating to the
period up to 31.03.2017 arising out of timing difference. The amount credited to the Profit and
Loss account during the year is [1 59.21 crore and the net Deferred Tax Liability is (1 4.92 crore
as on March 31, 2018.

The major components of deferred tax assets/liabilities as at 31.03.2018 arising out of timing
difference are as follows;

(C7 in Crore)
. Deferred tax | Deferred tax| Deferred tax| Deferred tax
Particulars Asset Liability Asset Liability
2017-18 2017-18 2016-17 2016-17
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2.86 1.78
Provision for NPAs/Bad Debts 14.74
Interest accrued on Investments - 9.62
Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) - 57.04 47.01
Depreciation on Investments -- 39.62
Provisions on retirement benefit,
Leave encashment etc 23.31 21.56
Provision for DFV on Restructured
Standard Assets 7.60 8.22
Others 3.61 412
Deferred tax asset/liability 52.12 57.04 33.90 98.03
Net Deferred Tax Asset/Liability -4.92 -64.13

6.9. Intangible assets (AS 26)

Depreciation on software is calculated on straight line method at 33.33% in compliance with

RBI guidelines.

6.10 Impairment of Assets (AS 28)

The fixed assets, mainly immovable properties, furniture fittings, the required indications
prescribed in AS 28, not being met with, in the opinion of the management, there is no

impairment of any asset of the Bank.

6.11 Contingent Liabilities (AS 29)

The details of provisions and contingencies, contingent liabilities, the movement of provisions
on NPA's and depreciation on investment which are considered material are disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements.

& .
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(L] in crore)
Particulars Provisions | Additions | Amount | Unused Provisions | Remarks
as atthe | During used Amounts | As at the
beginning | the year | during | Reversed | Close fo
of e th the During the year
year year the year
A. Provision 26.43 --- - 13.93 12.60
for Interest
sacrifice on
restructured
accounts(DFV)
B.Provision for 11.89 1.56 3.02 --- 10.43
Frauds
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: (T in Lakhs)
As on PARTICULARS As on
31.03.2017 31.03.2018
1. Claims not acknowledged as debt
Nil a)Counter suits filed by the borrowers against Nil
the Bank has initiated legal action.
10.68 b)Cases filed in Consumer/Civil Courts for 115.36
deficiency in services
1438.66 c)Any other claims against the bank not 1118.15
Acknowledged as debts.

10012.86 d)Income tax and service tax disputes 9886.00
341404.91 | 2.Guarantees issued on behalf of constituents 209585.28
102956.90 | 3.Acceptance, endorsements & other obligations 112676.19
731012.76 | 4. Other items for which the Bank is contingently 982853.16

liable.
1186836.77 TOTAL 1316234.14
6.12 Movement of Provisions for Contingent Liabilities
1 in Lakhs)

Balance as on 01.04.2017 1189.00
Provided during the year 156.00
Amount used during the year 302.00
Reversed during the year -
Balance as on 31.03.2018 1043.00

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd
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Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Under MSMED Act 2006 certain disclosures are required to be made relating to micro small
and medium enterprises. There have been not reported cases of interest payments due to
delays in such payments to micro small and medium enterprises. Auditors have relied upon
the above management assertion.

6.13 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)

(L) in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening balance of amount transferred to DEAF 5282.67 4590.44
Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 826.84 717.11
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 63.17 24.88
Closing Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 6046.34 5282.67

6.14 Un hedged Foreign Currency Exposure: The bank has a board approved policy
dated 21.03.2018 on Un hedged Foreign Currency Exposure.

Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBN)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued a notification dated March 30 2017 regarding
amendment in schedule Ill to companies Act 2013 wherein every company shall disclose
the details of SBN held and transacted during the period from November 8 2016 to
December 30 2016 in their financial statements ending March 31 2018. In terms of Section
129(1) of the companies act 2013 the provisions in Schedule Il are not applicable to the
banks and the same has been clarified by RBI that the disclosure is not applicable for banks.

Proposed dividend:

In terms of Revised Accounting Standard [AS4] Contingencies and events occurring after
Balance sheet date as notified by the Ministry of Corporate affairs through amendments to
companies (Accounting Standards) amendment rules 2016, dated 30 March 2016, the
company has not accounted for proposed dividend as a liability as at 31st March 2018. The
proposed dividend was however accounted for as a liability up to 31st March 2016 in line
with the accounting standard applicable at that time.

6.15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) is one of the Basel Committee's key reforms to develop
a more resilient banking sector. The objective of the LCR is to promote the short-term
resilience of the liquidity risk profile of banks. It does this by ensuring that banks have an
adequate stock of unencumbered high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) that can be converted
easily and immediately into cash to meet their liquidity needs for a 30 calendar days liquidity
stress scenario. The LCR is expected to improve the banking sector's ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and economic stress, whatever the source, thus reducing the
risk of spillover from the financial sector to the real economy. The LCR is calculated by
dividing a bank's stock of HQLA by its total net cash outflows over a 30-days stress period.
The guidelines for LCR were effective January 1, 2015, with the minimum requirement at
60%, which would rise in equal annual steps to reach 100% on January 1, 2019. This
graduated approach was designed to ensure that the LCR could be introduced without
material disruption to the orderly strengthening of banking systems or the ongoing financing
of economic activity. The present requirement, as on March 31,2018 is 90%.
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Banks must publish the number of data points used in calculating the average figures in the
template with effect from the January 01, 2017; the simple average should be calculated on
daily observations over the previous quarter.
ending March 31, 2017, the simple average should be calculated on daily observations.
The LCR related information based on simple averages of daily observations for the year
ended March 2018 is furnished below.

However, with effect from the financial year

LCR Disclosure Template — Financial Year ended March 31, 2018
(Consolidation)
(T in Crore)
Total . 9
Particulars Unweighted?® ;I'Io:al W:lghted
Value (Average) alue (Average)
High Quality Liquid Assets
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
1| (HQLA) 7198.74 6896.94
Cash Outflows
) Retail deposits and deposits from _ 21227.19 1716.45
small business customers, of which:
(i) Stable deposits 8125.30 406.26
(i) Less stable deposits 13101.89 1310.19
Un_se(?ured wholesale funding, of 1190.80 644.92
3 | which:
_ Operatlonal_ deposits (all 13.16 145
(i) counterparties)
) Non-operati_onal deposits (all 1177 64 643.47
(i) counterparties)
(iii) Unsecured debt 0.00 0.00
4 | Secured wholesale funding 146.87 0.00
5 | Additional requirements, of which 2429.26 2429.26
Outflows related to derivative
exposures and other collateral 2429.26 2429.26
(i) requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding
(i) on debt products 0.00 0.00
(iii) Credit and liquidity facilities 0.00 0.00
6 | Other contractual funding obligations 4371.88 297.64
7 | Other contingent funding obligations 4172.89 212.92
8 | TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 33538.89 5301.19
Cash Inflows
9 | Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) 331.27 91.55
o Inflows from fully performing 1142.08 666.07
exposures
11 | Other cash inflows 2365.24 2365.24
12 | TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 3838.59 3122.86
Total Adjusted ™
Value
21 | TOTAL HQLA 6896.94
22 | TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 2178.33
23 | LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 316.6159%
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*Unweighted values must be calculated as outstanding balances maturing or callable within
30 days (for inflows and outflows) except where otherwise mentioned in the circular and
LCR template.

® Weighted values must be calculated after the application of respective haircuts (for HQLA)
orinflow and outflow rates (for inflows and outflows).

" Adjusted values must be calculated after the application of both (i) haircuts and inflow and
outflow rates and (ii) any applicable caps (i.e. cap on Level 2B and Level 2 assets for HQLA
and cap on inflows).

B Qualitative disclosure about LCR:

The main drivers of LCR Results:
The bank is having an adequate stock of unencumbered high-quality liquid assets (HQLA)
that can be converted easily and immediately in private markets into cash to meet liquidity

needs for a 30 calendar days liquidity stress scenario.
The net cash outflows for the next 30 days have been arrived at after deducting the cash

inflows from the outflows for the period. The inflows and outflows have been arrived at

based on RBI prescribed haircuts and run-off factors.
The Bank's LCR has been more than the minimum regulatory requirement for all the dates

from April'17 to March'18.LCRof the bank for the Annual Financial Year 2017-18stood at
316.6159%.

Composition of HQLA

The Level 1 Assets of our bank comprises of Cash in hand & ATM, Excess CRR and SLR,
MSF (2% onNDTL)and FALLCR (9% on NDTL). Level 1 assetis the maindriver of HQLA,
contributing around 97% in the total HQLA of the Bank.

Level 2A and Level 2B assets are well within the cap of 40% and 15% of the stock of HQLA

respectively after the required haircut.

Corporate Bonds not issued by a Bank/Financial/NBFC which have been rated AA- or
above by an Eligible Credit Rating Agency have been classified under Level 2A assets.
Similarly shares notissued by a Bank/FI/NBFC which have been rated not lower than BBB-
have been classified underlevel 2B Assets.

Outflows & Inflows:

Deposits are the main source of funds for the Bank comprising around 85% of total
liabilities.

Currency mismatchin LCR:

LCR is expected to be met and reported in a single currency. The bank is not having
significant liabilities and HQLAs in any foreign currency.

Description of the degree of centralization of liquidity management and interaction
between the group's units:

The Bank does not belong to any group and does not have any associate, subsidiaries, joint
venture, etc.

&
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7. The amount of advances for which intangible securities such as charge over rights
licenses, authority etc., has been taken as collateral security and the value of such collateral

security

NIL

8. Inrespect of certain branches/offices where additional information was required, the data

available at Controlling/Head office was considered.

9. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to this

year's classification.

10. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees in the Financial

Statements.

Sd\- S.Annamalai
Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi
Sd\- K.V.Rajan

Directors

Sd\- R.Ravindran
Sd\- M.A.Nayagam
Sd\- S.Senthil Anandan

General Managers

Thoothukudi
25.06.2018

Sd\- Anupkumar
Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy
Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan

Directors

Sd\- P.Suriaraj
Sd\- D.Inbamani

General Managers

Sd\- K.V. Rama Moorthy

Managing Director & CEO

Sd\- S.R.Ashok Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar

Sd\- K.Nagarajan Sd\- D.N.Nirranjan Kani
Sd\- B.Vijayadurai

. Directors
Directors

Sd\- PC.Panda

Company Secretary

Vide our report of even date attached
For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
FRN No. 01931S
Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.N0.23838)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of
TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the attached financial statements of the TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED (the
“Bank”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 and the Profit and Loss account and the
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information in which are Incorporated in these financial statements are the returns of 14
branches audited by us and 495 branches audited by branch auditors .

Management's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and provision of sec 29 of the Banking
Regulation Act 1949 and circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India(RBI) from time to time.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provision of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the bank including its branches in accordance with the standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(1) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Bank's preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
inthe circumstances. Anauditalsoincludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the bank's directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

& e
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the
Companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required for the banking companies and give a true and fair view in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st
March 2018, and its profit & Loss and cash flows for the year then ended.

i. Inthe case of the Financial statement, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31,2018
ii. Inthe case ofthe Profitand Loss Account of the Profit for the year ended on that date, and
iii. Inthe case ofthe Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter
a) Sch-18 PARA-5 (D) (vi)
Impact of change in accounting policy

a) Provision at 100% on unsecured portion and 40% on secured portion in line with RBI Circular on
IRAC Norms dated DBR.No.BP.BC.2/21.04.048/2015-16 dated 01.07.2015.

S.No. Particulars (] in Crore
1. Provision as per earlier accounting policy 762.31
2. Provision as per revised accounting policy(As per IRAC 684.57
norms)
3. Decrease in provsion due to the abow change and 77.74
consequent increase in Profit / Loans & Advances(with out
considering tax effect)

a) Sch-18 para4(vi)(a) &(b)

RBI circular dated 2nd April, 2018 has granted option to banks, to spread the provisioning for Mark to Market
(MTM) losses on investments in AFS  categories for the quarter ended December 2017 and March 2018
over four quarters . The bank has exercised the option for the quarter ended December 2017 and March
2018 and the consequent deferment of provisionis Rs 31.99 crores .

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

1. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

2. Asrequired sub section 3 of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act 1949 we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory.

b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powers of the
Bank

c) The returns received from the offices and branches of the Bank have been found adequate for the

purposes of our audit.
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3. Furtheras required by Section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 we further report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
a) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as
appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our
audit have been received from branches not visited by us.

b) The reports on the accounts of the branches audited by branch auditors of the bank under section
143(8) of the companies act 2013 have been sent to us and have been dealt with in preparing our
report.

c) The Balance Sheet and Profitand Loss Account and cash flow statement dealt with by us in the report
are in agreement with the books of account and with the audited returns from the branches.

d) In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent
they

e) Onthe basis of the written representation received from the directors as on 31/03/2018 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being
appointed as a directorin terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With Respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of the bank
and the operating effectiveness of such controls referred to our separate report to our annexure-1

g) Withrespectto the other matters to be include in the Auditor's report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanation given to us

i. The Bank has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting standards for
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts including derivative contracts.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Bank.

4. Being a Banking Company, the Company (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, is not applicable.

For MAHARAJ N R SURESH AND CO.,,
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.:01931S

Sd/-

N.R.JAYADEVAN
PARTNER

Membership No.023838

25/06/2018
Tuticorin
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ANNEXURE - 1 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED, TUTICORIN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK
LIMITED, TUTICORIN (“the Bank”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Bank's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the bank considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Bank's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under Companies Act 2013 ( “the Act”)

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, ( 'the
standards') both issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the bank's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A bank's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A bank's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that;

I. pertain to the maintenance of records, that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Bank;

II. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the bank are being made only in accordance withauthorisations of management and
directors of the bank; and

[ll. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
ordisposition of the bank's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Bank has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the bank
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note issued by the ICAI

i. existing policies and procedures adopted by the Bank for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of
business.

ii. continuous adherence to Bank's policies.

ii. existing procedures in relation to safeguarding of Bank's fixed assets, investments, inventories,
receivables, loans and advances made and cash and bank balances.

iv. existing systemto prevent and detect fraud and errors.

v. accuracy and completeness of Bank's accounting records; and

vi. existing capacity to prepare timely and reliable financial information

For MaharajN R Suresh And Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn.No.001931S

Sd/-

N RJayadevan
Membership No. 023838
Partner

Date :25/06/2018
Place: Tuticorin
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

. . Year ended Year ended
Cash profit generated from operations | 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Cash profit generated from operations | Rs. In thousands
Net profit for the year 2,219,162 3,166,647
Add/Deduct
Loss/(Profit) on sale of assets (113) (1103)
Depreciation on Fixed assets 396,715 402,765
Provisions & Contingencies
(incl. Deferred tax adjustments) 7,840,853 5,590,803
Total 10,456,617 9,159,112
Cash flow from operating assets & liabilities Il
Increase/Decrease in liabilities
Deposits 2,381,827 18,212,845
Other liabilities & Provisions (7,804,325) (6,114,720)
Increase/Decrease in assets
Advances (17,963,988) 6,053,930
Investments 11,408,635 (26,397,697)
Other assets (2,363,970) 6,611,893
Total (14,341,821) (1,633,749)
A. Net cash flow from operating activities | + Il (3,885,204) 7,525,363
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale/disposal of fixed assets 3,480 3,803
Purchase of fixed assets (259,190) (385,406)
B. Net Cash flow from investing activities (255,710) (381,603)
Cash flow from financing activities
Interim Dividend incl.tax (411,656) (343,047)
Borrowings 5,130,000 (3,331,991)
C. Net Cash flow from financing activities 4,718,344 (3,675,038)
Total cash flow during the year (A+B+C) 577,430 3,468,722
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 01-04-2017
Cash & bank balances with RBI 14,582,046 13,978,201
Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 4,875,549 2,010,672
Total 19,457,595 15,988,873
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 31-03-2018
Cash & bank balances with RBI 17,017,777 14,582,046
Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 3,017,248 4,875,549
Total 20,035,025 19,457,595
Increase or decrease in cash flow 577,430 3,468,722

Thoothukudi
25.06.2018

Sd\- K.V. Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO

Sd\- S.Annamalai
Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi
Sd\- K.V.Rajan
Directors

Sd\- R.Ravindran
Sd\- M.A.Nayagam

Sd\- S.Senthil Anandan
General Managers

Sd\- Anupkumar

Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy
Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan

Directors

Sd\- P.Suriaraj
Sd\- D.Inbamani

General Managers

Sd\- S.R.Ashok
Sd\- K.Nagarajan

Sd\- B.Vijayadurai
Directors

Sd\- PC.Panda
Company Secretary

&

Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar
Sd\- D.N.Nirranjan Kani

Directors

Vide our report of even date attached
For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
FRN No. 019318
Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Chartered Accountants
Partner (M.No.23838)
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

Registration Details Registration No_l | | ! | 9 | 0 | 8 | State Code

Balance Sheet Date |3|1| |0|3| |2|0|1|8|
(Rupees in Thousands) (Rupees in Thousands)
Capital raised during the Year
Public Issue NI I|L Rights Issue N I L
Bonus Issue N| I|L Private Placement N 1| L

Position of mobilisation and Deployment of funds

Total Liabilities [3]7]9]1]9]9]5]2]2] Total Assets 13]7]9]1]9]9]5]2]2]

Sources of funds

Paidup Capital 114/2|5(1|1|5 Reserves and Surplus 3|2|6|2|2|7|7|6
Secured Loans 414/8(0|0(0|0 Unsecured Loans 3/2(4/9|3|3|3(2|2
Application of funds

Net Fixed Assets 11410]12]9]7|3 Investments 110]3|6/3|6[1|3]1
Net Current Assets 2|5(8(4|2|2|1]|0]|9 Miscellaneous Expenditure NI L
Accumulated Losses Nl I L

Performance of Company

Turnover 3|7/5/6|6]|1(4|7

Total Expenditure 3/14|4/6/9(0]9|0

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 3/0]9|7|0(5|7

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 2(21119]|1|6]|2

Earning per share in Rs. 116

Dividend Rate % 3|2

Generic names of three principal products / services Item Code No. : NOT APPLICABLE
of the Company (as per monetary terms) Product Description : Banking Company

Sd\- K.V. Rama Moorthy
Managing Director & CEO

Sd\- S.Annamalai Sd\- Anupkumar Sd\- S.R.Ashok Sd\- P.C.G.Asok Kumar

Sd\- S.Ezhil Jothi Sd\- B.S.Keshava Murthy Sd\- K.Nagarajan Sd\- D.N.Nirranjan Kani

Sd\- K.V.Rajan Sd\- A.Shidambaranathan Sd\- B.Vijayadurai

Directors Directors Directors Directors

Sd\- R.Ravindran Sd\- P.Suriaraj Sd\- PC.Panda Vide our report of even date attached

Sd\- M.A.Nayagam Sd\- D.Inbamani Company Secretary For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.

. FRN No. 019318

Sd\- S.Senthil Anandan General Manager Sd\- N.R Jayadevan
Thoothukudi  General Manager Chartered Accountants
25.06.2018 Partner (M.N0.23838)

.
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LTD

INTERNATIONAL BANKING DIVISION.,CHENNAI

LIST OF NOSTRO ACCOUNTS

Name of the Bank

Currency

Account Number

SWIFT Code

Commercial Bank of Dubai

AED

IAE220230000001001461068

CBDUAEAD

Al Ittihad street, Dubai

United Arab Emirates

Commerz Bank AG

AUD

400875030900AUD

COBADEFF

lJuergen-Panto-Platz 1

60301 Frankfurt am Main

Intermediary Bank:

IAUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND BANKING
GROUP LIMITED, MELBOURNE AU (BIC
CODE : ANZBAU3MXXX)

Standard Chartered Bank, Londaon

CAD

1272257758

SCBLGBZL

IBAN : GBO5SCBL60910412722577

Intermediary Bank:

Royal Bank of Canada (BIC : ROYCCATZ2)

IZuercher Kantonal Bank

CHF

CH5000700070001302132

ZKBKCHZZ80A

Bahnhofstrasse 9

Zurich 8010, Switzerland

\Wells Fargo Bank N.A

EURO

GB97PNBP16567106503162

PNBPGB2L

London branch

Bank of India

EURO

4310 EUR 002006

BKIDFRFPFP

Succursale de Paris

3, Rue Scribe, 75009 Paris,France

Commerz Bank AG

EURO

400875030900EUR

COBADEFF

Juergen-Ponto-Platz 1

60301 Frankfurt am Main

Standard Chartered Bank, London

GBP

00 01270402101

SCBLGB2L

1 Basinghall Avenue,

London EC2V 5DD, UK

IBAN: GB 12 SCBL 6091 0412 7040 21

Sort Code: 609104

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.

JPY

20848069

PNBPJPJX

Yamato International Nihonbashi

Bldg., 8th Floor

2-1-3, Nihonbashi Horidomecho

Chuo-Ku, Tokyo 103-0012, Japan

Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore

SGD

0106343548

SCBLSGSG

3 Marina Boulevard

## 27-01 Marina Bay Financial Centre

Singapore - 018981

Wells Fargo Bank N.A

uUusbD

2000193008674

PNBPUS3NNYC

11 Penn Plaza,4th floor.

New York NY 10001

ABA 026005092

Standard Chartered Bank

usbD

3582 089935 001

SCBLUS33

One Madison Avenue,New York

NY 10010-3603 U.S5.A
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LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

TAMILNADU
1 Thoothukudi Main 27 Mullakkadu 53 Prahasapuram
2 Madurai Main 28 Salem 54 Chennai T.Nagar
3 Sivakasi 29 Radhapuram 55 Rayagiri
4 Virudhunagar 30 Tisayanvilai 56 Kanjampuram
5 Nagercoil 31 T.Kallikulam 57 Podanur
6 Dindigul 32 Vellore 58 K.Puthur
7 Theni 33 Elayirampannai 59 Kannankurichi
8 Chennai-21 34 Kovilpatti 60 Ayyalur
9 Vilathikulam 35 Pudukottai (035) 61 Thanjavur
10 Muhavoor 36 Erode 62 Sonakanvilai
11 Kamuthi 37 Kumbakonam 63 Arumanai
12 Pavoorchatram 38 Aruppukottai 64 Usilampatti
13 Puthiamputhur 39 Kalloorani 65 Vallalnathi
14 Rajakkamangalam 40 Alangulam 66 Pannaipuram
15 N.Pudukottai 41 Bommidi 67 Rajapalayam
16 Coimbatore Main 42 Thickanamcode 68 Tirupur
17 Pudur 43 Thiruvarur 69 Odaipatti
18 Anjugramam 44 Villupuram 70 Kallimandayam
19 Tiruchirapalli 45 Palliyadi 71 Viralipatti
20 Chennai G.T 46 Verkhizambi 72 Pavithrampudur
21 Kommadikottai 47 Chinnamanur 73 Pottireddipatti
22 Megnanapuram 48 Colachel 74 Vattur
23 Yercaud 49 Agasteeswaram 75 Cuddalore
24 Kayamozhi 50 Eriyodu 76 Govindakudi
25 Tirunelveli 51 Sayalkudi 77 Vengadampatti
26 Thalakulam 52 Siruthondanallur 78 Karur
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LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

79 Palani

80 Pollachi

81 Puliampatti

82 Edalakudy

83 Madurai Simmakkal
84 Mayiladuthurai

85 Chennai Mount Road
86 Porulur

87 Padanthalumoodu

88 Mayiladumparai

89 Kappukadu

90 Kancheepuram

91 Thoothukudi South
92 Chengavilai

93 Vadamalaikurichi

94 Pandaravilai

95 Varaghur

96 Chockalingapuram
97 M.M.Kovilur

98 Madurai Chinthamani
99 Dr.Nanjappa Road
100  Chennai T.T.K.Road
101  Udumalpet

102  Tiruchengodu

103 Karaikudi

104  Pudukottai (128)

105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130

Namakkal
Ramanathapuram
Sattur
Thiruvannamalai
Nagapattinam
Coimbatore R.S.Puram
Dharmapuri
Sankarankoil
Mettupalayam
Chennai Aminjikarai
Marthandam

Hosur

Chennai Tambaram
Palayamkottai
Thirumangalam
Sivaganga

Cumbum

Sipcot, Thoothukudi
Chennai Perambur
Chennai Thiruvanmiyur
Valliyoor
Chengalpattu
Chennai Anna Nagar
Madurai Tallakulam
Gobichettipalayam

Chennai Purasawalkam

131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156

Thuckalay

Gingee
Tiruchendur Road
Kovilpatti Pasuvanthanai Road
Vadakkankulam
Alagappapuram
Kulasekaram
Perundurai
Bodinayakanur
Paramakudi
Virudhachalam
Pillayarpuram
Aranthangi
Surandai

Bhavani

Ranipet
Tindivanam
Krishnagiri
Arakonam
Sivakasi, A.J.College
Panruti
Sholinganallur
Shenkottai
Perumanallur
Rasipuram

Sathyamangalam
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157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182

Sriperumbudur
Kunnathur
Poonamalle
Valasaravakkam
Kottivakkam
Maduravoyal
Thiruvallur
Pallavaram
Gudiyatham
Guduvancheri
Melmaruvathur
Andipatti
Palamedu
Maraimalainagar
Neelambur
Annur
Vandavasi
Madipakkam
Naravarikuppam
Porur

Pettai Rural
Thiruthangal
Kavundampalayam
Chitlapakkam
Medavakkam

Chatrapatti

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208

Melur
Chengam
Somanur
Sankaraperi
Natham
Thuraiyur
Sathankulam
Sankari
Avinashi
Kaveripattinam
Elampillai
Panagudi
Ariyalur
Punnaiyapuram
Arcot

Authoor
Manapparai
Udangudi
Mudhukulathur
Thiruthuraipoondi
Kuthukkalvalasai
Poovanthi
Katpadi
Veppadai
Koolipatti

Bellaipalayam

209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234

Othakuthirai
Therekalputhur
Kanyakulam
Oddanchatram
Kallakurichi
Kariapatti
Kulathur
Thirunagar
Asesham
Kalakkad
Chekkadu
Perambalur
Adayalampattu
Chinnalapatti
Pallipalayam
Dasanaickenpatti
Pachanampatti
Uchipuli
Checkanurani
Bikshandarkoil
Devakottai
Tharamangalam
Kilambi
Dharapuram
Harur

Sevagampatti
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235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260

Chikkandarchavadi
T.Saveriyarpuram
Chinnappampatti
Soolakkarai
Coonoor
Pattukottai

Arni
Arumuganeri
Vembar
Chidambaram
Senapathipalayam
Aralvaimozhi
Attur
Kadayanallur
Pasuvanthanai
Komarapalayam
Thiruvengadam
Pallagoundenpalayam
Madampalayam
Villapuram
Srivilliputhur
Madurantakam
Kalangani
Athipatti
Mathvarayapuram

Tirupathur

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286

Reddiarpatti
Pappakudi
Venkateswarapuram
Vilampatti
Ambur
Iravathanallur
Thippanampatti
Edappadi
Senneerkuppam
Sulur
Kannicheriputhur
Sivathaiyapuram
Puthagaram
Kulayankarisal
Peraiyur
Vandiyur
Kuruvikulam
Vazhkkai
Poravachery
Lalgudi
Kanakkan kadu
Mettur
Somayampalayam
Servaikaranpati
87-Goundenpalayam

Sikkarayapuram

287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312

Tiruchendur
Allampatti
Ayapakkam
Rameswaram
Poonjeri
Malayandipattinam
Siruvalur
Saravanampatti
Thoothukudi Port Trust
Avadi

Thillai nagar- Trichy
Mdu SS colony
Karungal

Kulithalai
Ammapalayam
Neelankarai
Pudugummidipoondi
Kazhugumalai
Veerasigamani
Vedaranyam
Pallikaranai

Gudalur
Ayyampalayam
Ponneri
Dharmaapuri

Ariyakulam




96th Annual Report 2017 - 2018

N

Tamilnad
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Be a step ahead of life

313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341

Sithurajapuram
Keelaeral

Kallikudi

Kangeyam

Palladam
Vickramasingapuram
Nerkundram
Vengatadampatti
Kilakarai

Tirunelveli NGO Colony
Ganapathy
Singanallur
Regunathapuram
Ambasamudram
Kelambakkam
Tenkasi

Sirkali

SME Branch, Thoothukudi
Thoothukudi - Mattakadai

Chennai - Adyar
Chappadi
Madambakkam

Cbe Oppanakara Street
Nalumavadi
Chennai-Mylapore
Madurai- K.K Nagar

Srivaikundam

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360

Sivakasi,Palaniadavarpuram 361

362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369

Salem Ramakrishna Road

Chennai-Velachery
Midalam
Erichanatham
Periyanaickenpalayam
Kuniamuthur
Anthiyur

Mannargudi

Chennai_Nungambakkam

Kurinjipadi
Manamadurai
Periyakulam
Vasudevanallur
Chennai-Kodambakkam
Eruvadi

Ambattur
Cheranmahadevi
Silvarpatti

Therku Kallidaikurichi
Idumbavanam
Venkarai

Tirupattur
Adiyamankottai
Chennai- Guindy

Tirunelveli-Vannarapettai

Coimbatore Peelamedu
Madurai Palanganatham
Madurai Pudur

Trichy Srinivasnagar

O 00 9 O U B~ W D =
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ANDHRA PRADESH

Guntur
Vijayawada
Nellore
Rajamundry
Tadepalligudam
Vishakapatnam
Kakinada
Tirupathi
Kurnool
Nandyal
Gollapudi
Chebrolu
Pedanandipadu
Tanuku
Vinukonda
Jaggayyapet
Mandapeta
Chirala
Chilakaluripet
Narasaraopet
Kavali
Sirkalahasti
Bapatla
Bhimavaram
Vijayawada-Benz Circle

Gudur
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CHATTISGARH
Raipur

GUJARAT
Ahmedabad
Surat
Unjha
Vadodara
Surat, Ring Road
Sidhpur
Bardoli
Himatnagar
Vapi
Sachin
Deesa
Visnagar
Gandhinagar
Bilimora
Borsad
Rajkot
Amreli
Gondal
Anjar
Jamnagar

Dharangadhra

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE
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HARYANA
Faridabad

Gurugram
KARNATAKA
Bangalore City

Gulburga
Bangalore Cantt.
Mangalore
Hassan

Anekal
Nelamangala
Hebbagodi
Kanakapura
Yelahanka
Yadgiri
Ramanagara
Channapatna
Chamarajanagara
Kengeri
Ranebennur
Bagalkot

Dod Ballapur
Hubli

Mysuru
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KERALA

Tirupuram
Kottugal
Thiruvananthapuram
Kollam
Ernakulam
Kozhikode
Chenganachery
Kottayam
Kalamassery
Pappanamcode
Pathanamthitta
Kayankulam
Chavakad
Kanhangad
Palakkad
Malappuram
Payyanur
Kasargod
Kodungallur
Taliparamba

Thrissur

MADHYAPRADESH

Pithampur
Dhar
Indore

ORISSA
Cuttack
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LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE
MAHARASTRA PUNJAB UTTAR PRADHESH
1 Mumbai Mandvi 1 Ludhiana 1 Ghaziabad
2 Mumbai Vashi
umbai vashi RAJASTHAN UTTARAKHAND
3 Ichalkaranji 1 Bhilwara 1 Roorkee
4 Pune P Bhiwadi WEST BENGAL
5 Mumbai Andheri (E) 3 Taipur 1 Kolkata
6 Mumbai Sion
TELANGANA
7 Andheri(West), Mumbai
1 Hyderabad
8 Sewri,Mumbai
2 Secunderabad
9 Chembur,Mumbai
3 Rikab Gunj, Hyderabad
10 Mumbai Dharavi
4 Miryalguda
11 Boisar
5 Suryapet
12 Sukapur
6 Mehdipatnam
13 Vita
7 Hyderabad-Manikonda
14 Madhavnagar
8 Hyderabad-Malakpet
15 Ratnagiri
16 Jaysingpur
17 Nanded
18 Manmad UNION TERRITORY
19  Chiplun 1 Delhi
20 Khopoli 2 Pondicherry
21 Vasai 3 Karaikkal
22 Thane 4 Shahdara, Delhi
23 Mumbai Mulund 5 Karol bhagh, Delhi
6 Silvassa
7 Port Blair
TOTAL NO. OF BRANCHES - 509
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Year

1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988-89
1989-90
1990-91
1991-92
1992-93
1993-94
1994-95
1995-96
1996-97
1997-98
1998-99
1999-2000
2000-2001
2001-2002
2002-2003
2003-2004
2004-2005
2005-2006
2006-2007
2007-2008
2008-2009
2009-2010
2010-2011
2011-2012
2012-2013
2013-2014
2014-2015
2015-2016
2016-2017
2017-2018

Capital

19
19
19
19
19
19
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
28
14251
14251

PROGRESS AT A GLANCE
(Rupees in lakhs)

Reserves Investment Deposits Advances
134 2064 9269 5338
171 2815 12487 6580
240 3091 13409 6752
337 3915 14556 7345
424 4765 16795 7810
576 5473 17792 10820

1025 6309 22604 12445
1320 9309 30906 17257
1826 12012 40819 20662
2470 15975 54769 28838
3874 20912 78897 43210
5528 29306 104404 63412
7916 34100 111687 69580
11317 49698 125830 74619
15107 66238 160445 82547
18587 88605 205595 97147
22623 123899 266453 125504
27643 148532 319807 158835
33167 181571 372999 177266
39660 214211 408458 195998
47654 235371 440427 211399
55856 228557 482688 262624
65650 236194 520287 312639
75887 231641 601988 404672
85800 255354 767026 533132
98824 320719 956604 657169
114790 349919 1163930 828761
136573 376714 1379330 1075865
163456 489027 1711044 1377886
202179 534827 2022381 1625599
226931 677189 2264568 1714385
259403 767111 2564986 1933595
294139 886470 3036886 2257771
308153 1150447 3219015 2197232
326228 1036361 3242833 2376872

& .

Profit

49
58

90
136
157
228
235
305
498
665
1036
1683
2405
3420
3815
3503
4063
5040
5535
6376
8068
8235
10119
10578
12673
15021
18453
25090
31346
44028
30077
37940
40215

31666
22192

No. of
Branches
103
106
108
108
108
115
115
117
117
123
133
139
139
142
142
144
157
160
163
165
171
172
173
183
200
213
216
233
280
320
370
430
487
505
509




